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EMECO ANNOUNCES 2H08 NPAT OF $37.0M (UP 21.4% HOH) AND
FY2008 NPAT OF $67.5M (DOWN 9.6% PCP})

Second half NPAT of $37.0 million up 21.4% hoh
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Emeco today reported net profit after tax (NPAT) for the six months to 30 June 2008 of $37.0m, a 21% increase half on
half and increased FY08 NPAT to $67.5m, down 9.6% on pcp but in line with guidance delivered in February 2008
of $65 - $72m.

Emeco’s Managing Director, Laurie Freedman said “While the operational headwinds faced by the company in 1H08
and the early months of 2HO8 were explained to the market at length in February, a strong recovery in the balance of
the second half has been evidenced through both improved execution, weather and market conditions. While there is
much to do in continuing the improvement through FY09, we remain pleased with the momentum restored to the
business in the 2H(8”

FY07 1HOSA 2HOSA FY08 Change

' ASM __ASM ASM ASM %
Revenue 554.4 , 2882 329.7 617.9 114
EBITDA 207.3 98.6 114.8 213.5 3.0
EBITA 128.5 55.4 64.9 120.3 (6.4)
Margin (%) 23.2% 19.2% 19.7% 19.5%
NPATA 78.1 314 372 68.6 (12.1)
NPAT 74,7 30.5 37.0 67.5 (9.6)
EPS (cents) 11.8 438 59 10.7 9.6)
Working capital 2523 298.5 253.7 253.7 0.6
Funds employed 782.3 8708 8433 843.3 7.8

Note: | Earnings include specific items of $2.9m pre tax and §2.0m post tax relating to a writedown of US held parts inventory and a European

doubtful debt exposure

The Group’s revenue for FY08 of $617.9 million was up 11.4% while EBITA of $120.3 million was down 6.4% when
compared to FY07. This decrease in EBITA was driven predominantly by lower utilisation due to weather related
disruptions, infrastructure constraints on mine output, and the first half underperformance of the international
businesses




Profit on sale of rental assets (POSA) also reduced from $11.7 m in FY07 to $9.5m in FY08 and together with the
additional impact of increased borrowing costs resulted in NPAT for FY08 of $67.5m, down 9.6% on FY07 including
specific items. Specific items of $2.9m pre tax and $2.0m post tax were incurred due to a write-down of US held parts
inventory and a European doubtful debt exposure.

EBITA margins declined from 23.2% in FY07 to 19.5% in FY08 due to utilisation impacts of revenue, an increasing
cost base and a higher contribution from lower margin equipment sales and ancillary rental services. In particular, idle
rental fleet attracted minimum hour depreciation charges inflating the relative level of depreciation expense incurred
across the group.

Group funds employed increased 7.8% or $61 million over FY08. The growth in funds employed was primarily
attributable to an increase in rentat assets specifically in the US and Canadian regions resulting from moves to achieve
increased mass in the US and a rebalancing of the Canadian asset portfolio toward larger mining equipment and away
from smaller civil equipment. While working capital peaked at 31 December 2007, consistent with guidance at the first
half result, management reduced working capital levels by $49 million in 2H08. Going forward, management expects
working capital to remain around current levels, notwithstanding expected growth in the business.

Due to the lower utilisation levels in 1H08 and increased funds employed, ROFE declined to 14.0% on a 12 menth
rolling basis as at 30 June 2008. A significant recovery in utilisation in the 2HO8 through all geographies has seen
ROFE improve significantly, with management remaining committed to restoring ROFE to historical levels. As at 30
June 2008 global utilisation by value had increased to 82% from 68% at 31 December 2007 and run rate ROFE had
increased to 16.1%.

Australia

Emeco’s Australian business delivered a 9.6% increase in revenue year-on-year through further rental fleet expansion
and continuing strong demand for equipment purchases in the sales business. Despite increased revenues, earnings
were moderately tower (EBITA down 6.4% on FY07) largely due to external factors,

More specifically Emeco’s Australian rental business was adversely impacted mid year by severe weather conditions
and infrastructure capacity constraints in both major coal producing regions in Queensland and NSW, however
utilisation levels recovered in both regions by close of 2H08. The rental business also achieved substantial growth in
penetration of the WA iron ore sector.

The Australian sales business performed above expectations for FY08 and experienced a particularly strong second half
as a result of machines acquired at attractive prices in the first half of FY08 being disposed of in the second half. In line
with this strong second half performance, sales inventory declined from 292 machines at 31 December 2007 to 214
machines at 30 June 2008.

International
The second half of FYO08 saw a significant improvement in trading conditions in each of the international businesses
with the exception of Europe which slowed due to the strengthening Euro.

Indonesia experienced sofiness in the rental market during the first half of FY08 with low levels of utilisation resulting
in a 7.5% decline in EBITA from FY07 to FY08. However, in the second half of FY08 PTI experienced a strong
increase in demand for its rental offering, due to the combination of increased coal mining activity from higher coal
prices and the re-emergence of international mining contractors operating in the region.

The Canadian business grew its revenues by 30% in FY08 through a continued focus on the more capital intensive
mining equipment. Whilst the number of units at 30 June 2008 declined marginally from 281 to 277, the value of the
rental fleet increased by 17%. The strong utilisation in mining equipment was partially negated by a slow down in the
civil construction and conventicnal oil and gas markets.

In the USA, management achieved its goal of profitability in the 2HO8 with the US rental business gaining significant
traction due to increased mining activity in the Appalachian coal region. This improving earnings performance was
also attributable to establishment of a quality workshop facility in Kentucky, the recruitment of experienced
management and operational personnel, and the ongoing development of Emeco’s brand in the region.

The Europezan business experienced a softening in trading conditions during the second half of FY08, as the strength of
the Euro decreased the attractiveness of export opportunities outside the EU. Inside the EU, tightening of monetary
policy and benign growth in the major economies also impacted on opportunities.




Operating cash flows and capex

FY07 FY03 Change
ASM ASM Yo
Operating Cash Flow: 95.9 168.3 75.4%
EBITDA 207.3 2135 3.0%
Working Capital (80.0) (1.5) 98.1%
FX/Other 3.0 (7.6) (195%)
Interest (23.4) (22.3) 4.7%
Tax (16.0) (13.8) 13.7%
Net Maintenance Capex: (13.0) (77.8) 498%
Maintenance (60.3) (121.6) (101.6%)
Disposals 473 43.8 (7.3%)
Free Cashflow 82.9 90.4 9.0%
Growth Capex (182.9) (106.8) 41.6%

Emeco’s operating cash flow increased 75.4% from $95.9 million in FY07 to $168.3 million in FY08. A primary
contributor to this improvement was the significant reduction of working capital in the second half FY08, reverting to
more acceptable levels.

Gross maintenance and growth capital expenditure for the year ended 30 June 2008 was $228.4 million. Ofthis total,
net maintenance capital expenditure was $77.8 million. As we have stated previously, net maintenance capital
expenditure reflects expenditures on maintaining existing fleet (including significant rebuilds and purchases) offset by
disposals.

Growth capital expenditure in FY08 was $106.8 million and was primarily driven by organic growth in the Australian
fleet, the re-orientation in Canadian rental fleet from civil to mining equipment {(mentioned above) and scaling of the
US business. Current utilisation levels in the US and Canada sit at 80% and 70% respectively, up from 43% and 47%
in December. On a go forward basis growth capital expenditures will return to more conservative levels and reflect
management’s focus on significantly improving group ROFE.

Underlining the significant cash flow generation from Emeco’s installed asset base, free cash flow afier net maintenance
capital grew 9.0% to $90.4 million in FY08. The combination of improving utilisation and growth capital invested
during FY08 will be the primary drivers of cash flow and eamings growth in FY09, whilst any growth capital invested
during FY09 is expected to deliver incremental cash flow in FY10.

Balance sheet and gearing

In early August the Company successfully finalised the refinancing and increase of its debt facilities from $515 million
to $630 million with a syndicate of 8 large domestic and international banks. The $630 mitlion of facilities comprise a
$595 million 3-year revolving senior debt facility and a renewable $35 million 1-year working capita) facility. Due to
current adverse global credit markets, effective borrowing costs for the Group are expected to increase by
approximately 130bps in FY09.

Final dividend

A fully franked final dividend of 2.5 cents per ordinary share has been declared by the Board. The final distribution will
be paid on 30 September 2008 on shares registered at 5.00pm on 5 September 2008,

Outlook and guidance
Mr Freedman said, “The near term outlook remains positive for Emeco however we are monitoring the significant

uncertainty as to how the impact of the global economic slowdown will tum out. Predictably, we are witnessing the
counter cyclical resilience of Emeco’s business mode! with increased enquiry levels from capital constrained customers




who do not have the capability to meet their equipment needs through intemal funding nor the confidence to acquire
such long life assets for their shorter term needs.”

“Notwithstanding these uncertainties, we are encouraged by the level of utilisation of our asset base as we completed
FY08 and entered the new financial year and we remain confident of this continuing momentum through FY2009,
Based on our current assessment of the macro environment and customer demand across our global operations, we
expect full year FY09 NPAT in the range of $75 — 81 million,” Mr Freedman said.

Further enquiries should be directed to:
Mr Laurie Freedman Mr Stephen Gobby

Managing Director and CEQ Chief Financial Officer
+61 8 9420 0222 +61 8 9420 0222




APPENDIX 4E
Preliminary Final report
Period Ended 30 June 2008

Name of entity

[ Emeco Holdings Limited

ABN or equivalent company reference

A.CN.112 188 815
Results for announcement to the market
Reporting Period: Year ended 30 June 2008 (Previous corresponding period: year ended 30 June
2007) .
% 2008 2007
Change $A million $A million
Revenues from ordinary activities 11.4% 617.9 554.4
Profit from ordinary activities after tax attributable
to members of Emeco Group 20.3% 67.5 56.1
Net profit for the period attributable to members of
Emeco Group " 20.3% 67.5 56.1
Dividends
Date the dividend is payable 30 September 2008
| Record date to determine entitlements to the dividend 5 September 2008
Amount per security
Amount per security Franked amount per security
Final Dividend: Current year 2.5 cents 2.5 cents
Previous year 2.5 cents 2.5 cents
Amount per security Franked amount per security
Interim Dividend: Current year 2.0 cents 2.0 cents
Previous year 1.0 cent 1.0 cent
~ Amount per security Franked amount per security
Total Dividend: Current year ' 4.5 cents 4.5 cents
Previous year 3.5 cents 3.5 cents
Brief explanation of any of the figures reported above:
¥ In reference to the prior year, “Emeco Group™ means the consolidated entities of Emeco Holdings Limited and Emeco
(UK) Limited and covers the period where Emeco (UK) Limited was both a minority interest and when it was acquired as
a subsidiary on 4 August 2006.




APPENDIX 4E
Preliminary Final report
Period Ended 30 June 2008

Ratios and Other Measures

NTA backing Current Period Previous
corresponding Period

Net tangible asset backing per ordinary security $0.76 $0.7

Details of loss of control of entities having material effect
No control over any entities was lost during the period that had a material effect.

Accounts
This report is based on accounts that have been audited.

Commentary on Results
For commentary on the results of the Emeco Group, refer to the accompanying media release, audited
financial report and directors’ report.




Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
ABN 89 112 188 815
Annual Financial Report

30 June 2008

Emeco Holdings Ltd
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Chairman’s Report

Dear Shareholder

On behalf of the directors I am pleased to present Emeco Holdings Ltd’s annual report to sharcholders for
the 2007/2008 year,

Performance for the year

The past financial year has presented a series of major challenges for the Company. Adverse weather
conditions combined with infrastructure bottlenecks in Queensland and New South Wales resulted in
reduced utilisation and earnings from our rental business in Australia. For much of the first half of the
year we also experienced sofiness in the markets serviced by our rental businesses in North America and
Indonesia. ‘

As a result of these difficult trading conditions, eamings before interest, tax and amortisation (EBITA)
decreased by 6.4% from $128.5 million in the 2006/2007 year to $120.3 million in this financial year.
Net profit after tax (NPAT) for the year was $67.5 million.

The one pleasing aspect of this year’s profit result was the significantly improved eamnings performance
experienced in the second half of the year across all of our markets. NPAT increased 21.3% to $37.0
million for the half year ended 30 June 2008 from $30.5 million in the first half year.

Funding

It is pleasing to report that in recent weeks the Emeco Group has successfully finalised the refinancing of
its debt facilities. The refinancing, which includes an increase in the size of the facility will provide us
with a secure platform to plan for and fund our growth aspirations over the medium term. We believe our
success in completing these new funding arrangements in the current challenging capital markets is
recognition of the durability of Emeco’s business model and its future prospects.

Dividend

The dividend policy of the board is to distribute to shareholders approximately 35 to 45% of annual
NPAT and to frank dividends to the fullest extent possible. In line with our policy the directors have
declared a final dividend of 2.5 cents per share, taking the full year fully franked dividend for the
2007/2008 year to 4.5 cents. The final dividend will be 100% franked.

Our people

A central part of the value Emeco provides to its customers is the skills and talent of its employees. Cur
reputation as a customer-focused provider of high quality equipment rests largely on the capabilities of
our employees to manage Emeco’s assets and fulfil the needs of our customers. Qur employees have
remained focused on our customers and the goals of the Emeco Group during a challenging year and [
would Iike to record here on behalf of all my fellow directors our acknowledgment of their efforts.

We seriously accept our responsibility to ensure'that our employees are kept safe while they are at work
at Emeco. During this year we have significantly stepped up our safety efforts with a new safety and
environment management system being rolled out across all of our locations. We will continue to refine
and develop the safety system and will be looking to achieve significant improvements in our safety
performance in the year ahead.

Emeco Holdings Ltd



Chairman’s Report contd.

The future

The outlock for the commodities sector in all of our areas of operation remains strong and we believe the
global demand for commodities will support Emeco’s growth prospects for the medium term, particularly
as infrastructure bottlenecks in Australia begin to ease. Having experienced a high level of enquiry for
rental equipment in the second half across all of our domestic and international rental businesses, we
expect this demand for Emeco’s equipment and services will continue and will underpin our performance
in the year ahead.

Whilst we will be focusing on exploiting organic growth opportunities as they arise, we will continue to
evaluate acquisition opportunities in Emeco’s existing operational regions. However, we will be applying
rigorous return criteria to all prospective acquisitions and will not praceed with those which are not value
accretive for sharcholders.

We think that the prospects for our rental and sales businesses around the world are encouraging and we

remain confident that Emeco can deliver steady and sustainable growth for sharcholders over the next few
years.

Alec Brennan
Chairman

Emeco Holdings Ltd



Managing Director’s Report
Overview

Our performance over the year can best be described as a story of two halves. During the first half of FY08
we experienced a number of concurrent challenges resulting in a disappointing leve! of activity and
consequently lower than expected profitability. These challenges presented themselves in a number ways
in each of our regional operations,

In Australia, continuing infrastructure constraints on mine output and unprecedented flooding led to
reduced levels of activity in the first haif of the year. Accordingly, utilisation of the rental fleet was mixed
across Australia. However, as weather conditions eased, utilisation of the rental fleet increased, supported
by a general increase in demand from the mining sector. The Australian sales business performed strongly,
particularly in the second half of the year as sales inventory purchased at competitive prices in the first half
was subsequently disposed of at favourable margins.

In Indonesia, a number of our international mining contractor customers were steod down from contracts in
preference to Indonesian contractors as a result of recent mine ownership changes. While materially
impacting earnings in the first half, a re-engagement of international contractors, supported by our new
operational facilities in Balikpapan, Kalimantan restored utilisation levels and is expected to continue to
drive earnings over the medium term.

In Canada, the low price of gas in the USA during the first half of FY08 severely depressed activity in the
traditional oil and gas fields in Alberta Province dampening utilisation of our civil construction equipment
rental fleet. This coincided with a temporary lull in construction and development work in the Albertan oil
sands adding further pressure on utilisation levels. Despite a slow recovery in Canada, we have observed a
noticeable improvement in demand for our product in the oil sands region in the last quarter of FY08 with
utilisation returning to trend levels of ¢.70% by value.

Emece’s US operations also delivered a significant turnaround in the second half recording a small
operating profit before interest and tax despite an impairment charge of $1.1M for slow moving Parts
inventory incurred during the same period. While the effects of the sub-prime credit crisis on the housing
market in the USA has seen a significant reduction in activity in the civil market and in equipment sales in
the US domestic market, the operating environment in the Appalachian coal (Emeco’s predominant
operating region) region remains robust,

Despite the challenges of the first half of FY08, the substantial improvement in conditions in the second
half of the year resulted in a significant improvement in our profitability with Net Profit After Tax
increasing by 21.3% in the second halfto $37.0M from $30.5M. This performance highlights the resilience
of our business model and demonstrates how the flexibility of being able to relocate assets can provide
security for all stakeholders.

With respect to the Group’s balance sheet, there was a renewed focus on more efficient capital
management. This was demonstrated by a rationalisation of working capital which was reduced by $40
million from 31 December 2007 to 30 June 2008. The Company has refinanced its senior debt facilities
for a 3 year term, whilst at the same time increasing the facilities from $515M to $630M ensuring the
Company can continue to pursue its growth aspirations.

While the overall results for FY08 are slightly behind FY07's performance, when one considers the head

winds Emeco faced for a good proportion of the year, we believe the overall performance was creditable,
but accept the responsibility te continue improve our performance into the future.

Emeco Holdings Ltd




Managing Director's Report contd.

Summary of financial performance

ASM FYo7W FY08 YOY %
Revenue 554.4 617.9 11.4
EBITDA 207.3 213.5 3.0
EBITA 128.5 120.3 (6.4)
NPATA 782 68.6 (12.3)
NPAT 74.7 67.5 (5.6)
o The financial results set out in this and the following tables and discussed below have been prepared using

pro-forma actual FY07 year results for the Emeco Group. These pro-forma actual FY07 were reported in
Emeco’s annual report for the FY07 and were derived by adjusting reported actual results set out in the
statutory financial information. These adjustments have been made to add back the non recurring costs of the
IPO in July 2006 which were incurred during FY07, with appropriate tax adjustments,

The Group’s revenue for FY08 of $617.9 miilion was up 11.4% and EBITA of $120.3 million was down
6.4% as compared to FY07. This decrease in EBITA was driven predominantly by lower utilisation across
the rental businesses including adverse impacts in Queensland and New South Wales due to weather related
disruptions, infrastructure constraints on mine output, and 1HO8 underperformance from the international
businesses.

Profit on sale of rental assets (POSA) also reduced from $11.7 million in FY07 to $9.5 millien in FY08.
NPAT declined 9.6% from $74.7 million to $67.5 million due to the EBITA factors above and increased
borrowing costs arising from higher indebtedness due to growth in funds employed in FY08.

The Group’s funds employed increased 7.8% or $61 million over FY08. The growth in funds employed
was primarily attributable to an increase in rental assets. Whilst working capital peaked at 31 December
2007, the Company significantly reduced it to more efficient levels at 30 June 2008 as part of a targeted
plan to improve capital efficiency within the business. Going forward management expect to maintain
general working capital at current levels notwithstanding expected growth in the business through ongoing
working capital initiatives, .

The combination of lower utilisation in 1HO08 and the resultant lower earnings and increased funds
employed resulted in ROFE declining to 14.0% on a 12 month rolling basis at 30 June 2008, It is important
to note that the influence of improved earnings, the successful liberation of working capital and disposal of
some fixed assets in 2HO8 translated into an improving ROFE on a 6 month rolling basis in 2H08 of 14.7%
and indicates the improving trend in ROFE. We expect ROFE to revert towards historical levels as we
move forward. Further in-depth analysis is provided in the review of operations section.

Building for the long term

We fully understand and accept the expectations of the equity markets with respect to short term results,
however, we continue to balance those expectations with our aspiration to build a truly world class global
business which capitalises on its first mover advantage in our current global businesses over the longer
term, We firmly believe all our stakeholders will be rewarded by this strategy. During the year, with this
long term vision in mind, we continued to grow our presence and capability in a commercially sustainable
manner.

I have already referred to the construction of our Indonesian facilities. In addition we also completed
construction of new workshop facilities in London, Kentucky and commenced construction of a similar
waorkshop facility in Fort McKay in Alberta province, Canada. These new facilities in Indonesia, the US
and Canada will enable us to significantly improve our operational capabilities in these regions and
confirm our reputation as a global supplier of reliable and high quality equipment,

Emeco Holdings Ltd



Managing Director’s Report contd.
Strategic initiatives during the year

Our main strategic focus for FY08 was on continued growth of our Australian businesses while further
developing our international businesses, particularly in Canada, the United States of America and
Europe, to ensure they become consistent and significant earnings contributors.

In order to better co-ordinate the activities of our Australian regional rental businesses while at the same
time accommodating the decentratised structure and decision making processes of our customers, we
reorganised our Australian businesses during FYO08 into three geographically based business units. These
units are Northern Region, encompassing the Northern Territory, Queensland and New South Wales;
Southern Region, covering Victoria and Tasmania; and Western Region which covers Western Australia,
South Australia and Indonesia. The General Manager of the Southern Region also has responsibility for
our Australian Sales and Australian Parts businesses which benefit from a national approach to managing
their significant sales inventories.

In recognition of the strength of the oil sands patch in Alberta and the mining opportunities in nearby
provinces we have been actively undertaking a reorientation of the Canadian business towards mining and
away from the civil construction market which requires smaller equipment with lower asset utilisation.
Consistent with this strategy, in FY08 we began acquiring larger equipment for deployment in mining
applications mainly in Alberta, and in addition, disposing of a number of smaller machines and
redeploying a number to Indonesia.

In the US we enjoyed considerable success in improving the financial performance of the US rental
business which delivered on expectations, genérating a small operating profit before interest and tax in the
second half of 2008, We remain committed to building the US although in a profitable and financially
restrained manner. In order to expand our range of products and services, we purchased Wildcat Spares in
the USA in January 2008, located in central Kentucky. Wildcat supplies spare parts and core components
for large earthmoving equipment and is similar to our Australian parts business. This acquisition will
provide parts to our external customers throughout the USA and importantly, support our own rental and
used equipment businesses in North America.

The strength of the Euro necessitated a change in our European business model, requiring a reorientation
of the business from a domestic procurement and sales business and exporter of equipment to an importer
and domestic and nearby regional sales provider.

Major achievements subsequent to the end of the year

During June and July 2008, the Company undertook the refinancing of its existing senior debt facilities. In
early August the Company successfully finalised a 3 year senior bank facility, increasing the facility from
$515 million to $630 million with a syndicate of 8 large domestic and international banks.

The success of the Group’s capital raising during a time of significant volatility and uncertainty in global
capital markets is a demonstration of significant support for Emeco’s business model and the future
prospects of the Company.

The recently secured facility now provides Emeco a stable funding platform with significant headroom to
pursue the growth strategy and opportunities arising in our markets.

Emeco Holdings Ltd



Managing Director’s Report contd.
Investing in our people

While we have made significant improvements to our safety and environmental management in the past
few years, we remain committed to continuously improving our performance and capability in these
critical areas. During the year we engaged [FAP, a well known occupational health and safety consulting
organisation, to conduct an independent audit of our safety, health and environmental management
systems in Australia. The results of the audit provided us with comfort that we are on the right track,
however, we are always looking to improve our performance and IFAP has provided us with a detailed
report on improvement opportunities which we are currently implementing.

Each of our international businesses has their own safety, health and environmental management strategic
plans which local management is responsible for implementing and monitoring.

Given the significant increase in the number of employees over the last couple of years, we engaged a
senior human resources professional in February 2008 who has been charged with the responsibility of
building a small human resource management advisory group to support our front line personnel, Aftera
few months we are already witnessing the benefits of this approach.

The future

The over riding strategic and operational focus for the coming year will be on extracting more from our
existing geographic footprint and installed asset base. We will be particularly focused on improving both
the quantum and quality of our profitability across all of our businesses and enhancing the sustainability of
our international businesses.

We envisage that the bulk of our growth will come from organic initiatives based on our existing global
presence. We will, however, be on continual watch for bolt-on acquisitions which are value accretive,
provide additional critical mass to existing geographies and possess acceptable risk profiles. For the time
being we will not be undertaking any major new geographic step outs as we are confident we can achieve
an acceptable level of growth from our current platform.

The near term outlook remains challenging as there is still some significant uncertainty as to how the sub
prime mortgage crisis will effect the main stream economy. However, predictably we are witnessing the
counter cyclical resilience of Emeco’s business model with increased enquiry levels from capital
constrained customers who do not have the capability to meet their equipment needs through internal
funding or do not have the confidence to acquire such long life assets for their shorter term needs.

Notwithstanding these uncertainties, we are encouraged by the level of utilisation of our asset base as we

completed FY08 and entered the new financial year and feel confident we can deliver an improvement on
last year’s performance.

Laurie Freedman
Managing Director
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Review of Operations

The Emeco Group

ASM FYo7? FY08 YOY%
Revenue 554.4 617.9 11.4

EBITDA 207.3 213.5 30

EBITA 128.5 120.3 (6.4)

NPATA 78.2 68.6 (12.3)

NPAT 74.7 67.5 (9.6)

Rental machines 1,013 units 1,071 units 5.7

Sales machines 573 units 672 units 17.3

b The financial results set out in this and the following tables and discussed below have been prepared using

pro-forma actual FY07 year results for the Emeco Group. These pro-forma actual FY (7 were reported in
Emeco’s annual report for the FY07 and were derived by adjusting reported actual results set out in the
statutory financial information. These adjllxstments have been made 1o add back the non recurring costs of the
[PO in July 2006 which were incurred during FY07, with appropriate tax adjustments.

The Group's revenue for FY08 of $617.9 million was up 11.4% and EBITA of $120.3 million was down
6.4% as compared to FY07. This decrease in EBITA was driven predominantly by lower utilisation across
the rental businesses including adverse impacts in Queensland and New South Wales due to weather related
disruptions, infrastructure constraints on mine output, and 1H08 underperformance from the international
businesses. Profit on sale of rental assets (POSA) also reduced from $11.7 million in FY07 to $9.5 million
in FY08. NPAT declined 9.6% from $74.7 million to $67.5 million due to the EBITA factors above and
increased borrowing costs arising from higher indebtedness due to growth in funds employed in FY08,

EBITA margins declined to 19.5% for the year ended 30 June 2008 as compared to 23.2% for the previous
corresponding period. The major reason for this decline in margin is the result of lower utilisation in the
various regions whilst costs increased due to business growth. In addition, underutilised rental fleet due to
operational disruptions attracted minimum hour depreciation charges without associated revenue further
impacting margins. The reduction in POSA also had an adverse impact on EBITA margins in FY08,

Depreciation increased by 18.3% to $93.2 million for the year ended 30 June 2008 as compared to the
previous corresponding period. The increase in depreciation is primarily due to the increase in the rental
fleet from 1,013 machines as at 30 June 2007 to 1,071 machines as at 30 June 2008.

Amortisation expense decreased by 68.6% to $1.1 million for the year ended 30 June 2008.

Emeco operating segments

ASM - FY07 FY08 YOY%

Revenue 554.4 617.9 11.4
Rental 318.9 3689 15.7
Sales 191.0 2106 10.3
Parts & Maintenance 44.5 384 (13.7)

EBITA 128.5 120.3 (6.9)
Rental 117.0 107.6 (8.0)
Sales 8.0 8.6 7.5
Parts & Maintenance 3.5 4.1 17.1
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Geographic highlights

Australia
ASM FY0? FY08 YOY%
Revenue 418.9 459.5 9.7
EBITDA 165.1 168.8 2.2
EBITA 106.6 100.4 (5.8)
Rental machines 553 units 582 units 52
Sales machines 281 units 324 units 153

Emeco's Australian business delivered a 9.6% increase in revenue year-on-year through the increased size
of its rental fleet and the strong demand for equipment purchases experienced in the sales business. Despite
the higher revenue, EBITDA and EBITA was flat due to a range of factors including lower rental fleet
utilisation, higher contribution of lower margin equipment sales and increasing costs due to Emeco’s
growth without revenue from expected higher rental utilisation.

Emeco's Australian rental business was adversely impacted mid year by severe weather conditions and
infrastructure capacity constraints in both major coal producing regions in Queensland and NSW, however
both of these regions returned to high utilisation in the last quarter of FYO8 The rental business achieved
substantial growth in penetration of the WA iron ore sector and the Kalgooriie gold / nickel regions during
the year.

The Australian sales business performed above expectations for FY08 and experienced a particularly strong
second half as a result of machines acquired at attractive prices in the first half of FY08 being disposed of
in the second half. In line with this strong second half performance, sales inventory declined from 292
machines at 3] December 2007 to 214 machines at 30 June 2008,

The outlook for Emeco’s Australian rental and sales businesses remains positive though we continue to
monitor closely the effects of market developments on our installed client base.

Indonesia
ASM FY(07 FY(8 YOY%
Revenue 275 238 (13.5)
EBITDA 21.6 18.5 (14.4)
EBITA 10.6 9.8 (7.5)
Rental machines 116 units 129 units 11.2

Emeco’s Indonesian subsidiary, PT Prima Traktor IndoNusa (PTT) experienced ongoing softness in the
Indonesian rental market during the first half of FY08 with low levels of utilisation laying the foundation
for a 7.5% decline in EBITA from FY07 to FY08. However, in the second half of FY08 PTI experienced a
strong increase in demand for its rental offering, due to the combination of increased coal mining activity
from higher coa! prices and the re-emergence of international mining contractors operating in the region.

Based on the second half performance of PTI which was underpinned by strong market fundamentals,
positive earnings performance is expected to continue for this business into FY09.

Emeco Holdings Ltd
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Canada

ASM FY07' FY03 YOY%
Revenue 39.8 51.7 29.9
EBITDA 22.5 27.8 23.6
EBITA 143 ' 15.5 8.4
Rental machines 281 units 277 units (1.4)

The Emeco Group's Canadian business grew its revenue by 30% through a continued focus on the more
capital intensive mining equipment and away from lower utilised civil gear. Whilst the number of units at
30 June 2008 declined marginally from 281 to 277, the value of the rental fleet increased by 17%. The
strong utilisation in mining equipment was partially impacted by a slow down in the civil construction and
conventional oil and gas markets.

While Oil Sands remain the engine for Emeco’s growth in the Canadian market place, Emeco continues to
diversify its customer base by expanding into the coal market in Western Canada. Emeco has further
broadened its geographic footprint by establishing offices in the province of Saskatchewan and in the
northwest section of Alberta. The development of its previously announced facility in the Fort McMurray
Oil Sands region is progressing as planned. Emeco expects to return to higher utilisation in its civil fleet
with the resurgence in the natural gas markets and the announcement of major infrastructure projects in
Northern Alberta.

United States

ASM FY0?7 FY08 YOY%
Revenue 452 43.2 4.4
EBITDA (1.9} (1.0) 474
EBITA 2.9 @.n® 41.4)
Rental machines 57 units 75 units 3l6

M Includes one-off impairment charge of $1.1M for slow moving Parts inventory.

Emeco USA is comprised of 3 businesses: rental, used equipment sales and used parts sales. The parts and
equipment sales businesses have generally been profitable since Emeco USA was incorporated and have
remained so throughout FYO08. This has resulted in the expansion of these businesses since the date of
incorporation. In January 2008 Emeco USA acquired Wildcat Tractor Company LLC a parts trading
business based in Kentucky, contributing solid eamings to the business since its acquisition. However, as
part of the asset value review, a one-off impairment charge for slow moving Parts inventory was recognised
during 2H08,

In the second half of FY08, the Rental business gained significant traction due to increased mining activity
in the Appalachian coal region driven by higher coal prices. This improving earnings performance was
also attributable to establishment of a quality workshop facility in Kentucky, the recruitment of experienced
management and operational personnel, and the ongoing development of Emeco’s brand in the region.

The outlock for Emeco USA’s rental and parts businesses is positive as these are primarily correlated to

activity in the Appalachian coal region, however the equipment trading business will continue to be
challenged by the broader economic issues throughout the USA during FY09.

Emeco Holdings Ltd
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Europe

ASM FYO7 FY08 YOY%
Revenue 23.0 39.6 72.2
EBITDA 0.0 0.6) -
EBITA (0.1) (1.3 -
Rental machines 6 units 8 units 333
m Includes provision for doubtful debt expense of $1.8M relating to a specific equipment purchase
transaction.

The European business experienced a softening in trading conditions during the second half of FY08, as the
strength of the Euro decreased the attractiveness of export opportunities outside the EU. Inside the EU,
tightening of monetary policy and associated slowing in growth in the major economies also impacted on
revenue.

To mitigate the impact of these factors, Emeco developed its rental capacity further during FY08 and

continued to explore markets for trading opportunities in Eastern Europe. We see continued growth of sales
opportunities in Eastern European and Middle East markets in FY09,

Capital expenditure and funds employed

ASM FY07 FY08 YOY%
Gross capital expenditure 243.2 2284 (6.1)
Maintenance 60.3 121.6 101.7
Disposals (41.3) (43.8) (7.4)
Net Maintenance capex 13.0 77.8 498.5
Growth 1829 106.8 (41.6)
Net working capital movement 72.0 4.2 (94.2)
Funds employed (year end) 782.3 843.3 7.8
ROFE EBITDA % 27.8% 24.7% -
ROFE EBITA % 17.3% 14.0% -

Gross capital expenditure for the year ended 30 June 2008 was $228.4 million. Of this total, net
maintenance capital expenditure was $77.8 million. As we have stated previously, net maintenance capital
expenditure reflects expenditures on maintaining existing fleet (including significant rebuilds and
purchases) offset by disposals.

Growth capital expenditure was $106.8 million and was primarily driven by organic growth in the
Australian fleet, the change in Canadian rental fleet from civil to mining equipment and further build out in
the US. The US and Canadian capital expenditures reflected our efforts to achieve scale in the US business
and shift the fleet composition of the Canadian fleet and were structural in nature. Current utilisation levels
by value in the US and Canada sit at 80% and 70% respectively, up from 43% and 47% in December. On a
go forward basis growth capital expenditures will return to more conservative levels and reflect
management’s focus on significantly improving group ROFE.

EBITDA ROFE of 24.7% and EBITA ROFE of 14.0% in the year ended 30 June 2008 are below historical
averages due mainly to short term market events which significantly impacted fleet utilisation, ramp up of
offshore businesses and the growth of funds employed in both the rental fleet and sales inventory.
Improved earnings through higher utilisation and the reduction of working capitai in 2HO08 which
contributed to lower funds employed, translated into improving ROFE in the final quarter of FY08. The
firm focus of management remains on continuing to improve capital efficiency within the business and
restoring EBITA ROFEs to historical levels.
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Directors’ Report :
For the year ended 30 June 2008 |

The directors of Emeco Holdings Limited (“Emeco” or “the Company™) present their report together with
the financial reports of the consolidated entity, being Emeco and its controlled entities (“the Emeco Group”
or “the Consolidated Entity™) for the financial year ended 30 June 2008 (“FY(8").

Directors

The directors of the Company during or since the end of the financial year are:
Alec Brennan, (Agae 67}, Chairman and independent Non-Executive Director

Alec was appointed an independent, non-executive Director in August 2005 and Chairman from
28 November 2006.

Alec was Chief Executive Officer of CSR until March 2007. Alec holds an MBA from City University,
London and a BSc from the University of NSW. He is Chair of Tomago Aluminium Pty Ltd and of PPI
Corporation Pty Ltd, a Fellow of the Senate of Sydney University and a director of Garvan Research
Foundation. ,

Greg Minton, (Age 46), Independent Non-Executive Director

Greg was appointed as an independent, non-executive Director and also as Chairman of the Board in
December 2004, Greg resigned as Chairman with effect from 28 November 2006.

i
Greg is Managing Partner of Archer Capital and has been since 2000 after having spent six years in senior
general management roles with CSR. Prior to his involvement with CSR, Greg was a management
consultant with McKinsey & Co in Australia, Scandinavia and the UK. Greg is a Director of BJBal|
Holdings (NZ) Ltd, the Chairman of One Source Group Limited (NZ), Leasing Solutions Limited (NZ) and
a former Director of RED Paper Group, Repco Pty Limited and Hirequip Limited (NZ) and former
Chairman of iNova Pharmaceuticals Pty Ltd. Greg holds a Master of Business Administration from IMD,
Switzerland, a Bachelor of Engineering and a Bachelor of Economics from the University of Queensland.

Laurie Freedman, (Age 59), Managing Director

Laurie was appointed Managing Director of Emeco Holdings Limited in January 2005, but has been
Managing Director of Emeco’s business since 1999,

Laurie has over 37 years experience in the building, construction materials and contracting industries both
in Australia and overseas, including senior management roles with CSR in Hong Kong, China and the
United States. Laurie was a Director and Chief Executive Officer of AWP Contractors, contract miners, for
five years before joining Emeco in April 1999. In his capacity as Managing Director of Emeco’s business,
he has overseen a business development strategy under which the Group grew substantially in the last five
years. Laurie holds a Bachelor of Civil Engineering from Curtin University, is a Member of the Institute of
Engincers Australia, a Fellow of the Institute of Quarrying - Australia, an Associate of the Australian
Institute of Management and a Member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Emeco Holdings Ltd
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Directors’ report contd.
For the year ended 30 June 2008

Robin Adair, (Age 47), Executive Director, Corporate Strategy & Business Development

Robin was appointed Executive Director, Corporate Strategy and Business Development on 4 March 2008.

Robin was Chief Financial Officer of the Company from January 2005 until his appointment to his current
role.

Robin has 15 years commercial experience across a breadth of business units within the CSR group. After
spending 12 months as Chief Financial Officer of Beltreco, he joined Emeco's business as Chief Financial
Officer in October 2000. Robin has been responsible for a number of business evaluations, start-ups,
acquisitions, joint ventures, disposals, and business and system improvements over this period. His
international experience includes engagements in Taiwan, Indonesia, Thailand and the United States.
Robin holds a Bachelor of Business (Accountancy) from University of South Australia and a Master of
Business Administration from Deakin University and is a Certified Practising Accountant.

Paul McCullagh, (Age 56), Independent Non-Executive Director

Paul was appointed as an independent, non-executive Director in December 2004,

Paul is a founding Managing Director at Pacific Equity Partners (“PEP”) and his current portfolio of board
positions include Xtralis Group Holdings Limited and Link Administration Heldings Pty Limited. Pricr to
founding PEP, Paul was the managing director of Salomon Brothers Australia. Paul was also previously

head of Australasia for Prudential Securities. He has been active in Australasia since 1986 and has a wide

range of transaction experience. Paul holds a Bachelor of Commerce and a Master of Business Studies from

University College, Dublin, and is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England, Ireland
and Wales. Paul is also a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia.

Peter Johnston, (Age 57), Independent Non Executive Director
Peter was appointed as an independent, non-executive Director commencing 1 September 2006

Peter is currently Managing Director and CEQ of Minara Resources Limited, a position he has occupied
since November 2001. Peter was employed in various senior roles with WMC Ltd from 1993 to 2001,
Peter holds an Arts degree from the University of Western Australia. He is a past president and current
council member of the Western Australian Chamber of Minerals and Energy, a Fellow of the Australasian
Institute of Mining and Metallurgy, a board member of the Minerals Council of Australia and also the
Australian Mines and Metals Association,

Emeco Holdings Ltd
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Company Secretary

Michael Kirkpatrick was appointed to the position of Company Secretary in April 2005. Michael has
previously worked as legal counsel and company secretary of Westscheme, a large industry superannuation
fund, and as a corporate lawyer with national law firms Freehills and Blake Dawson, Michael holds
bachelors degrees in arts and economics from the University of Western Australia and a law degree with
merit honours from Murdoch University. ‘

Directors’ Meetings

The number of meetings of the directors held during the year and the number of meetings attended by each
of the directors of the board and committees is outlined in the table below.

Table 1 - Directors’ attendance

Aundit & Risk Remuneration &
Director Board Meetings Management Nomination
Committee Committee
A B A B A B
Greg Minton 13 13 3 3 1 1
Paul McCullagh 10 13 3 3 il **
Laurie Freedman 13 13 *¥ ¥ b **
Robin Adair 12 13 bk ** ** **
Alec Brennan 13 13 2 2 1 i
Peter Johnston 13 13 v b 1 |
Stuart Fitton 1 1 ** bk ** **

A — Number of meetings attended
B — Number of meetings held during the time the director held office during the year
** Not a member of this committee

Mr Fitton resigned on 17" August 2007 ‘
Mr Brennan was appointed to the Audit & Risk Committee 29™ August 2007

Emeco Holdings Ltd




Directors’ report contd.
. For the year ended 30 June 2008

Corporate Governance Statement

Under ASX listing rule 4.10.3, the Company is required to include in its annual report a statement
disclosing the extent to which it has followed the principles of good corporate governance (ASX
Principles) and associated best practice recommendations set by the ASX Corporate Governance Council
(ASX Best Practice Recommendations).

Emeco has elected to make an early transition to the revised ASX Principles and ASX Best Practice
Recommendations adopted by the ASX Corporate Governance Council to take effect from 1 January 2008.
Accordingly this corporate governance statement reports on the Emeco Group's current corporate
governance practices and policies by reference to those revised principles and recommendations.

Principle 1 Lay solid foundations for management and oversight
Roles and responsibilities of the Board and management
The Board has adopted a Charter that details its functions and responsibilities.

The Charter sets out the responsibilities of:
e the Board;
» individual directors; and

¢ the Chairman.

Under the Charter the Board is accountable to the shareholders for the overali performance of the Company
and the management of its affairs. Key responsibilities of the Board include:

s developing and approving corporate strategy;
» evaluating, approving and monitoring the strategic and financial plans and objectives of the Company;
¢ determining dividend policy and the amount and timing of all dividends;

¢ evaluating, approving and monitoring major capital expenditure, capital management and all major
acquisitions, divestitures and other corporate transactions, including the issue of securities;

o evaluating and monitoring annual budgets and business plans;
s approving all accounting policies, financial reports and external communications by the Emeco Group;

* appointing, monitoring and managing the performance of executive directors.

The Charter sets a minimum number of Board meetings and provides for the establishment of the Audit and
Risk Committee and the Remuneration and Nomination Committee. The Charter also sets minimum
standards of ethical conduct of the directors, which are further elaborated on in the Company’s Code of

Conduct, and specifies the terms on which directors are able to obtain independent professional advice at
the Company’s expense.

A copy of the Board Charter is available on the Emeco website.

Emeco Holdings Lid

16
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Evaluating the performance of senior executives

The performance of the Managing Director is constantly monitored by the non-executive directors.
Formal reviews of the performance of each senior executive within the Emeco Group are conducted by the
Managing Director in August/September each year. These performance reviews provide the Managing
Director and each senior executive with the opportunity not only to review the executive’s performance
against a range of financial and operational benchmarks but also to review and assess the manager’s
personal and professional development objectives. A review of the performance of each senior executive
was undertaken during FY08,

Principle 2 Structure the Board to add value

Skills, experience and expertise of the directors

The directors consider that collectively they have the relevant skills, experience and expertise to fulfil their
obligations to the Company, its shareholders and other stakeholders.

The directors and a brief description of their skills and experience are set out at pages 13 & 14 of this
report.

Status of the directors

The table below sets out details of the status of each of the directors as independent or non-executive
directors, their date of appointment and whether they are seeking re-election at the 2008 AGM of the
Company.

Table 2 — Status of the directors

Director Date of Independent  Non-executive Seeking re-
appointment election at 2008
AGM
Mr Robin Adair 21 January 2005 No No Yes
Mr Alec Brennan 16 August 2005 Yes Yes Yes
Mr Laurie Freedman 21 January 2005 No No No
Mr Peter Johnston 1 September 2006 Yes Yes No
Mr Paul McCullagh 23 December 2004 Yes Yes Yes
Mr Greg Minton 14 December 2004 Yes Yes No

Emeco Holdings Ltd
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Mr Brennan, Mr Johnston, Mr McCullagh and Mr Minten are independent directors. Mr Fitton was also an
independent director. The Company therefore complies with ASX Best Practice Recommendation 2.t. Mr
McCullagh and Mr Minton are considered to be independent directors because, whilst they are associates of
certain shareholders of the Company, each of the sharehelder groups with which they are associated holds
less than 5% of the Company’s ordinary shares. Under clause 3.5(a) of the Board Chatrter, for the purposes
of determining the independence of a director, a substantial shareholder is one who holds 10% or more of
the issued shares of the Company.

Mr Brennan is the chairperson of the board and the Company therefore complies with ASX Best Practice
Recommendation 2.2,

Directors’ retirement and reappointment

Under the terms of the Company’s constitution, a director other than the managing director must retire from
office or seck re-election by no later than the third annual general meeting after their appointment or after 3
years, whichever is the longer.

At least one director must retire from office at each annual general meeting, unless determined otherwise
by a resolution of the Company’s shareholders.

Messrs Adair, Brennan and McCullagh will seek reappointment at the 2008 annual general mecting.
Procedure for taking professional advice

Under the Board Charter a director is entitled to seek professional advice at the Company’s expense on any
matter connected with the discharge of their duties in accordance with the procedure set out in the Charter,
a copy of which is available on the Emeco website.

Remuneration and Nomination committee

The Company has established a Remuneration and Nomination Committee, the respensibilities of which
include:

s critically reviewing the performance and effectiveness of the Board and its individual members;

e periodically assessing the skills required to discharge the Board’s duties, having regard to the strategic
direction of the Company; and

» reviewing the membership and performance of other Board committees and make recommendations to
the Board,

Members of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee are Mr Brennan (Chair), Mr Minton and Mr
Johnston, The charter of the Remuneration and Nomination committee is available on the Emeco website.

Process for evaluating the board, its committees and directors

A review of the performance of the Board was completed in June 2008 by the Chairman with the assistance
of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee. The review was undertaken uging a comprehensive
questionnaire, the scope of which covered the performance of the board, its committees, the Chairman and
individual directors. Directors’ questionnaire responses (other than in relation to the Chairman) were
collated and analysed by the Chairman and, where appropriate, discussed with the board. An analysis of
the questionnaire results was presented to the board by the Chairman. In relation to the Chairman,
directors’ questionnaire responses were collated and analysed by the Managing Director and discussed with
the Board.
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Principle 3 Promote ethical and responsible decision making

The Company considers that confidence in its integrity can only be achieved if its employees and officers
conduct themselves ethically in all of their commercial dealings on the Company’s behalf. The Company
has therefore recognised that it should actively promote ethical conduct amongst its employees, officers and
contractors.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct and a Share Trading Policy. The Code of Conduct and the
Share Trading Policy apply to all directors, officers, employees, consultants and contractors of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The Code of Conduct

The objectives of the Code of Conduct are to ensure that:

»  high standards of corporate and individual behaviour are observed by all employees in the context of their
employment with the Company or a subsidiary;

» employees are aware of their responsibilities under their contract of employment and always act in an
ethical and professional manner; and

¢ all persons dealing with Emeco, whether it be employees, shareholders, suppliers, clients or
competitors, can be guided by the stated values and practices of Emeco.

Under the Code of Conduct, employees of the Emeco Group must, amongst other things:

* act honestly and in good faith at all times and in a manner which is in the best interests of the Company
as a whole;

»  conduct their personal activities in a manner that is lawful and avoids conflicts of interest between the
employee’s perscnal interests and those of the Company;

» always act in a manner that is in compliance with the laws and regulations of the country in which they
work; and

e report any actual or potential breaches of the law, the Code of Conduct or the Company’s other
policies to the Company Secretary.

The Company actively promotes and encourages ethical behaviour and protection for those who report
violations of the Code or other unlawful or unethical conduct in good faith. The Company ensures that
employees are not disadvantaged in any way for reporting violations of the Code or other unlawful or
unethical conduct and that matters are dealt with promptly and fairly.

The Share Trading Policy

The Share Trading Policy is specifically designed to raise awareness of, and minimise any potential for
breach of, the prohibitions on insider trading contained in the Corporations Act 2001. The policy is also
designed te minimise the chance that misunderstandings or suspicions arise regarding employees trading
while in possession of non-public price sensitive information by imposing restrictions on employees and

officers in relation to the trading of the Company’s shares.

Copies of the Code of Conduct and the Share Trading Policy are available on the Emeco website,
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Principle 4 Safeguard integrity in financial reporting

The Board has established an Audit & Risk Committee to support and advise the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities to shareholders, employees and other stakeholders of the Company by:

» assisting the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities for the financial reporting process, the
system of internal control relating to all matters affecting the Company’s financial performance, the
audit process, and the Company’s process for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations and the
code of conduct; and

s implementing and supervising the Company's risk management framework,

Members of the Audit and Risk Committee during the 2007/2008 financial year were Mr McCullagh
(Chair), Mr Minton and Mr Brennan.

The Audit & Risk Committee Charter sets out the role and responsibilities of the Committee and is
available on the Emeco website,

Details regarding membership of the Committee are set out above. During FY(8, the Committee
comprised three independent non-executive directors alt of whom have financial expertise. Details of the
qualifications of the members of the Committee are set out at pages 13 & 14 of this repert. During FY08,
the Committee met 3 times. All current members of the Committee were present for each of these meetings
other than Mr Brennan who was appointed to the Committee in August 2007 following the departure of Mr
Fitton, and who attended 2 of the 3 meetings.

Principle 5 Make timely and balanced disclosure

The Company is committed to complying with its continuous disclosure obligations under the ASX Listing
Rules and disclosing to investors and other stakeholders all material information about the Company in a
timely and responsive manner.

The Company has adopted a Continuous Disclosure Policy which is available on the Emeco website.

The Continuous Disclosure Policy specifies the processes by which the Company ensures compliance with
its continuous disclosure obligations. The policy sets out the internal notification and decision making
procedures in relation to these obligations, and the roles and responsibilities of the Company’s officers and
employees in the context of these obligations. It emphasises a pro-active approach to continuous disclosure
and requires the Company to comply with the spirit as well as the letter of the ASX continuous disclosure
requirements.

The policy specifies the Company representatives who are autherised to speak publicly on behalf of the

Company and procedures for dealing with analysts. It also sets cut how the Company deals with market
rumour and speculation.
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Principle 6 Respect the rights of shareholders

The Company acknowledges the importance of effective communication with its shareholders and
encourages their effective participation at general meetings.

All public announcements are posted on the Emeco website after they have been released to the ASX. The
Company also places the full text of notices of meetings and explanatory material on the website.

The Company offers a number of options to shareholders in relation to electronic communications.
Shareholders can elect to receive notification by email when payment advices, annual reports and notices of
meetings and proxy forms are available on line. They can also elect to receive email notification of
important announcements,

Shareholders are given an opportunity to ask questions of the directors at the Company’s general meetings.
The Company provides its auditor with notice of general meetings of the Company, as is required by
section 249K of the Corporations Act. The Company also requests its auditor to attend its annual general
meetings and be available to answer shareholder questions about the conduct of the audit and the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report.

Principle 7 Recognise and manage risk

The Company accepts that risk is an unavoidable part of the Emeco Group’s activities. However, the
Company actively manages risk in order to optimise outcomes for shareholders and other stakeholders and
ensure the integrity of the Group’s financial statements.

The Board of the Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy which describes:
+ the principal risks for the Emeco Group;
¢ the Group’s risk management framework and controls; and

s the role and respective accountabilities of the Board, the Audit and Risk Committee and Emeco Group
management within the risk management framework.

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the overail risk
management framework. It is also required to review the Risk Management Policy on an annual basis.

Emeco has established a group corporate assurance unit to assist management to ensure the Emeco Group’s
risk management and internal control systems are operating effectively. The internal assurance process is
undertaken by the Corporate Assurance Manager who will provide assurance to the Audit and Risk
Committee and the Board regarding the effectiveness of the Emeco Group’s risk management, govemance
and control frameworks.

For FY(8, the Board has received an assurance from the Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer
that the declaration provided in accordance with 5.295A of the Corporations Act is founded on a sound
system of risk management and internal control and that the system is operating effectively in all material
respects in relation to financial reporting risks. Management has also reported to the Board that the Emeco
Group’s risk management and internal compliance and control system is operating efficiently and
effectively in all material respects.

The Risk Management Policy is available on the Emeco website.
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Principle 8 Remunerate fairly and responsibly

The Emeco Group remuneration policy is substantially reflected in the objectives of the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee. The Committee’s remuneration objectives are to endeavour to ensure that:

s the Directors and senior management of the Group are remunerated fairly and appropriately;

» the remuneration policies and outcomes strike an appropriate balance between the interests of the
Company's shareholders, and rewarding and motivating the Group's executives and employees in order
to secure the long term benefits of their energy and loyalty; and

¢ the human resources policies and practices are consistent with and complementary to the strategic
direction and human resources objectives of the Company as determined by the Board.

Under its Charter, the Remuneration and Nomination Committee is required to review and make
recommendations to the Board about:

¢ the general remuneration strategy for the Group so that it motivates the Group's executives and
employees to pursue the long term growth and success of the Group and establishes a fair and
transparent relationship between individual performance and remuneration;

¢ the terms of remuneration for the executive Directors and other senior management of the Group from
time to time including the criteria for assessing performance;

s the outcomes of remuneration reviews for executives collectively, and the individual reviews for the
executive Directors, and other senior management of the Group;

¢ remuneration reviews for executive and non-executive Directors;
s changes in remuneration policy and practices, including superannuation and other benefits;
¢ employee equity plans and allocations under those plans; and

» the disclosure of remuneration requirements in the Company's public materials including ASX filings
and the annual report.

Details regarding membership of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee are set out above under
Principle 2. During FY08, the Committee met once, All members of the Committee were present for the
meeting.

Emeco clearly distinguishes the structure of non-executive directors’ remuneration from that of executive
directors and senior executives. Non-executive directors are remunerated by way of fees in the form of cash
benefits and superannuation contributions. They do not receive options or bonus payments; nor are they
provided with retirement benefits other than superannuation.

A remuneration report detailing the information required by section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to FYO8 is included in the Directors’ Report.
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Nature of operations and principal activities

The principal activities during the financial year of the entities within the Emeco Group were the Rental,
Sales, Parts and Maintenance of heavy earthmoving equipment.

As set out in this report, the nature of the Emeco Group’s operations and principal activities, have been
consistent throughout the financial year.

Operating and financial review

A review of Emeco Group operations, and the results of those operations for FY08, is set out on pages 5 to
12 and in the accompanying financial statements.

Dividends paid or to be paid

During the 2007/2008 financial year a fully franked interim dividend of 2 cent per share was paid on
4 April 2008 by the Company.

Since the end of the 2007/2008 financial year the directors have declared a fully franked final dividend of
2.5 cents per share to be paid on 30 September 2008,

Significant changes in state of affairs

During the financial year under review there were no significant changes in the Emeco Group’s state of
affairs other than those disclosed in the operating and financial review section above or in the financial
statements and the notes thereto.

Significant events after balance date

On 15 August 2008 the Company finalised the refinancing of the Emeco Group’s senior debt facilities. The
Group secured a revolving 3 year $595 million senior secured debt facility provided by a syndicate of eight
domestic and international banks, and a $35 million working capital facility.

These new facilities replace the existing $490 million senior secured debt facility and $25 million working
capital facility which were to mature in July 2009.

Likely developments and expected results

Likely developments in, and expected results of, the operations of the Emeco Group are referred to at pages
5 to 12. This report omits information on likely developments in the Emeco Group in future financial years
and the expected results of those operations the disclosure of which, in the opinion of the directors, would
be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Emeco Group.
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Directors interest in shares of the Company

The relevant interests of each Director in the shares, debentures, and rights or options over such shares or
debentures issued by the companies within the Emeco Group and other related bodies corporate, as notified
by the directors to the ASX in accordance with 5.205G(1) of the Corporations Act 2001, at the date of this

report are as follows:

Table 3 - Directors’ Interests

Ordinary Options over
shares ordinary shares
Greg Minton 361,267 -
Laurie Freedman 19,000,000 4,800,000*
Robin Adair 6,100,000 1,600,000*
Alec Brennan 1,381,420 -
Peter Johnston 100,000 -
Paul McCullagh 216,707 -

*  With effect from 26 August 2008, Mr Freedman forfeited 1,600,000 options and Mr Adair forfeited
533,333 options. These forfeitures occurred because, under the terms of the Options Plan, the
Company’s earnings per share target for FY08 was not achieved. For further details, see page 29 of

this report.

Emeco Holdings Ltd
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Remuneration report (audited)

This report summarises the Emeco Group's remuneration practices and outcomes in respect of its directors
and senior executives for the 2008 financial year.

Principles of remuneration

The Emeco Group remuneration policy is substantially reflected in the objectives of the Board’s
Remuneration and Nomination Committee. The Committee’s objectives are to endeavour to ensure that:

¢ the Directors of the Company and senior management of the Group are remunerated fairly and
appropriately;

¢ the remuneration policies and outcomes of the Company strike an appropriate balance between the
interests of the Company's sharcholders, and rewarding and motivating the Group's executives and
employees in order to secure the long term benefits of their energy and loyalty; and

e the human resources policies and practices are consistent with and complementary to the strategic
direction and human resources objectives of the Company as determined by the Board.

Elements of remuneration
The remuneration structure for Emeco’s executives consists of fixed and variable components.
Fixed remuneration

Fixed remuneration comprises base salary, employer superannuation contributions and other allowances
such as motor vehicle allowances and non-cash benefits.

Each executive’s fixed remuneration is reviewed and benchmarked against appropriate market comparisons
annually in September. The executive’s responsibilities, experience, qualifications, performance and
geographic location are also taken into account.

Emeco’s broad objective is to set fixed remuneration at levels which ensure the Company is able to attract
and retain the best available key executives. The policy of the Company is to set fixed remuneration at
levels which attract and retain appropriately qualified and experienced executives capable of:

+ fulfilling their respective roles within the Group;
o achieving the Group’s strategic objectives; and

e maximising Emeco Group earnings and the returns to shareholders.
Variable remuneration

Variable remuneration is performance linked remuneration which consists of short term incentives (STIs)
and long term incentives (LTIs).
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STI remuneration

Short term incentives are used to reward the performance of key management personnel over a full
financial year. The maximum achievable STI amount payable to an executive is set as a percentage of fixed
remuneration. The actual amount of STI payable is determined at the end of the financial year in light of the
executive's performance against agreed key performance indicators (KPIs).

These KPls are mainly financial in nature and are aligned to the profitability of the Emeco Group.
However, some of them relate to non financial performance in areas considered critical to Emeco’s
operations such as:

s occupational health and safety;
s people development; and
» successful implementation of strategic initiatives.

The combination of KPI elements varies amongst executives, however, as a fundamental principle, KPls
are set for each executive’s STI plan on the basis they are aligned with the strategic objectives of the
Emeco Group. KPIs therefore generally comprise elements based on the performance of the Emeco Group
or a business unit within the Group. In most cases the measurement of KPlIs is objectively determined on
the basis of financial information or other quantifiable information. For example, where occupational health
and safety performance is a KPI element, an important measure of performance is lost time injury
frequency data.

Whilst the maximum percentage STI grant to key executives varies, no executive other than the Managing
Director and the Executive Director, Corporate Strategy and Business Development is entitled to an STI
grant which exceeds an amount equal to 50% of the recipient’s annual salary. The majority of key
executives are entitled to a maximum STI grant of 40% of annual salary.

In accordance with the terms of their respective STI plans, Mr Freedman and Mr Adair did not receive any
proportion of their respective STI bonus entitlements for FY08 because actual earnings per share did not
exceed the required earnings per share target. Details of the STI plans for Mr Freedman and Mr Adair are
set out in the section of this report headed “Service Contracts”.

Emeco Holdings Ltd
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Details of the vesting profile of the short term incentive cash grants awarded to key executives in respect of

FY(8§ are set out below:

Table 4 - Key executive STl vesting information in respect of FY08

Nature of STI Grant date % of bonus % of bonus
compensation awarded forfeited
Mr L Freedman Cash 27 August 2006 0% 100%
Mr R Adair Cash 27 August 2006 0% 100%
Mr M Bourke Cash 1 October 2007 0% 100%
Mr A Carr Cash 1 October 2007 10% 90%
Mr H Christie- Cash 1 October 2007 100% 0%
Johnston
Mr G Graham Cash 1 October 2007 0% 100%
Mr C Moseley Cash 1 October 2007 0% 160%
Mr T Sauvarin Cash 1 October 2007 0% 100%
Mr I Testrow Cash 1 October 2007 22.7% 77.3%
Mr D Tilbrook Cash 1 October 2007 20.8% 79.2%
Mr M Turner Cash 1 October 2007 16.7% 83.3%
Notes:
(A) Amounts included in remuneration for FY08 represent the amounts that vested in the year based

on the achievement of KPIs, No amounts vest in future financial years in respect of the bonus

scheme for FY08.

(B) Amounts forfeited are due to the KPIs not being met in relation to FY08.

© Mr S Gobby, having commenced employment in March 2008 with the Company, was not entitled
to an STI grant in respect of FY08.
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LTI remuneration
Performance Shares and Performance Rights

Emeco has established an LTI plan to apply to Emeco’s senior managers {which includes key management
personnel) in FY08 and subsequent years. The plan provides Emeco’s senior managers with an ongoing
incentive to achieve the long term objectives of the Emeco Group.

Grants under the LTI plan, which applies to key executives other than Mr Freedman and Mr Adair, have the
following key terms and conditions, none of which have been altered since grants were made under the plan
on 15 October 2007:

o  Each year Emeco will grant unvested fully paid Emeco performance shares to individual Australian-
based executives, with the number of shares granted being determined by reference to the seniority of
the executive and the value of the share grant as a percentage of the executive’s salary. Performance
shares are granted at no cost to the recipient and at a nil exercise price; they vest 3 years after issue if
the performance condition described below is met.

»  Emeco participants in the LTI plan who are working outside Australia are issued performance rights on
substantially identical terms as the recipients of performance shares. Each performance right provides
the recipient with the right to receive one fully paid Emeco share if the relevant performance hurdle is
met. Performance rights are issued to Emeco’s offshore executives instead of performance shares in
order to reduce the complexity of the compliance issues associated with the issue of Emeco shares in
the relevant foreign jurisdictions.

¢  The performance condition for the vesting of performance shares and the exercise of performance
rights is a performance hurdle based on relative total shareholder return (TSR). Emeco’s TSR during
the vesting period will be measured against a peer group consisting of a group of 12 companies that are
considered direct peers to Emeco and in addition the S&P/ASX Small Industrials (excluding banks,
insurance companies, property trusts/comparnies and investment property trusts/companies and other
stapled securities). The peer group currently comprises a total of 97 companies (this number may
change as a result of takeovers, mergers eic) (Peer Group). TSR for Emeco and each company in the
peer group is calculated by reference to share price growth, dividends and capital returns.

¢  Three years after the performance shares are granted, TSR for all companies including Emeco will be
measured and ranked. Performance shares will only vest and performance rights will only be
exercisable if a threshold TSR performance is achieved in comparison with the Peer Group TSR.
There is 2 maximum and minimum vesting range and vesting occurs as follows:

(a) If Emeco’s TSR is less than the TSR of 50% of the companies of the Peer Group then no
performance shares will vest.

(b) If Emeco’s TSR is equal to the TSR of 50.1% of the companies of the Peer Group then 50% of
the performance shares will vest.

(c) If Emeco’s TSR is equal to or greater than the TSR of 75% of the companies of the Peer
Group then 100% of the performance shares will vest.

(d) If Emeco’s TSR is equal to the TSR of between 50% and 75% of the companies of the Peer
Group then an extra 2% of the performance shares granted vest for each percentile increase in
Emeco’s TSR above the 50th percentile.
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¢  Performance shares that have not vested after the end of the performance period will be bought back or
transferred to a nominee of the Company. Performance rights which do not become exercisable will
lapse.

o  Performance shares which have vested must be transferred into the name of the participant within two
years of vesting. Performance Rights lapse five years after the date of grant.

Options

A separate LTI plan (Options Plan) is in place for Mr Freedman and Mr Adair. On 4 August 2006,
following the successful completion of Emeco’s initial public offering (IPO}), 4,800,000 options were
issued to Mr Freedman and 1,600,000 options were issued to Mr Adair under the Company’s Employee
Incentive Plan.

Each option granted to Mr Freedman and Mr Adair (Option) was provided at no cost and entitles the holder
to subscribe for an ordinary Emeco share at a price of $1.925 (Exercise Price), which is 2.5 cents above the
IPO issue price. The fair value of each Option at grant date was 19,43 cents, The Options issued to Mr
Freedman and Mr Adair expire 5 years after their date of issue.

The Options Plan provides for the vesting of the Options in three equal tranches, subject to the following
vesting conditions:

¢ for the financial year ending 30 June 2007, 1/3 of the Options were to vest on the date of release of
final audited results for Emeco for that year, provided that Emeco Holdings achieved actual earnings
per share equal to or greater than the Prospectus forecast earnings per share for FY07. All of these
Options vested on the date of release of Emeco’s FYO07 results because the actual earnings per share for
FY07 of 9.3 cents met the required performance target. However, neither Mr Freedman nor Mr Adair
have exercised these vested Options because the Exercise Price has been greater than the market price
of Emeco shares since these Options vested;

¢ for the financial year ending 30 June 2008, 1/3 of the Options were to vest on the date that fina! audited
results for Emeco that year are released, provided that Emeco Holdings achieved actual eamnings per
share equal to or greater than 110% of the Prospectus forecast earnings per share for FY07. None of
these Options have vested because the actual eamings per share for FY08 of 10.7 cents did not meet
the required performance target; and

o for the financial year ending 30 June 2009, 1/3 of the Options will vest on the date that final audited
results for Emeco for that year are released, provided that Emeco Holdings has achieved actual
earnings per share equal to or greater than 121% of the Prospectus forecast earnings per share for
FYO07.

Mr Freedman's Options vest only if he holds the position of Managing Director of the Company at the time
of vesting. Mr Adair’s Options vest only if he is an employee of the Company at the time of vesting or if he
is subject to a deemed termination, ie the Company materially and substantially changes his duties beyond
the duties ordinarily performed by him, other than with his agreement, or the Company is removed from the
official list of the ASX. On 4 March 2008, simultaneously with the appointment of Mr Gobby as Emeco’s
Chief Financial Officer, Mr Adair was appointed to the position of Executive Director, Corporate Strategy
and Business Development. Mr Adair’s appointment did not affect his vested Options or the vesting profile
of his unvested Options.
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All of the Options granted to Mr Freedman and Mr Adair which were subject to a vesting condition in
respect of Emeco’s FY08 financial performance lapsed as a result of Emeco not meeting the earnings per
share performance target set out above.

Prohibition of hedging LTI grants

On 25 August 2008, Emeco’s board of directors reselved to amend Emeco’s share trading policy to prohibit
directors and other officers of the Company from entering into transactions intended to hedge their
exposure to Emeco securities which have been issued to the officer as part of the officer’s remuneration.

Details of remuneration

Details of the elements comprising the remuneration of the Emeco Group’s key executives, including each
Director and each of the five named Emeco Group executives who received the highest remuneration in
FYO08 are set out in table 5. Table 5 does not include the following components of compensation because
they were not provided to key executives during FY08: short term cash profit-sharing bonuses, payments
made o a person before the person started hold a position, long term incentives distributed in cash, post
employment benefits other than superannuation and share based payments other than shares and units.
Table 6 provides comparative information in relation to the remuneration of the Emeco Group’s key
executives for the prior financial year.
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Directors’ report contd.
For the year ended 30 June 2008

Equity instruments

MISP

During FY08, the Company made share based payments to Mr Bourke, Mr Carr and Mr Christie-Johnston (MISP
Participants) under the Company’s Management Incentive Share Plan (MISP). Details of the share issue made to them

under the MISP are set cut below:

Table 7 — MISP grants to key executives

Michael Anthony Carr Hamish lan Testrow Greg Graham
Bourke Christie-
Johnston
Number of 600,000 500,000 500,000 300,000 200,000 (Tranche 1)
shares issued
under the 100,000 (Tranche 2)
MISP
Issue price of $0.92 $1.155 $0.74 $1.155 $0.61 (Tranche 1)
the MISP
shares $1.155 (Tranche 2)
Date of grant 12 June 2006 12 June 2006 14 March 2008 12 June 2006 18 August 2005
(Tranche 1}
12 June 2006
(Tranche 2)
Amount of $519,000 $550,000 $370,000 330,000 221,000
Company loan
in respect of
MISP shares
outstanding at
reporting date
Highest $546,000 $572,500 $370,000 343,500 234,500
amount of
indebtedness
during the
period
Fair value $41,077 $42,585 $4,219 25,551 16.432
recognised as
remuneration
during the year

Key terms and conditions of the issue of shares to the MISP Participants under the MISP are as follows:

In accordance with the terms of the MISP the Company provided each MISP Participant with an interest-free,
limited recourse loan (Loan) to enable him to subscribe for the MISP shares.
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The shares vest over a 5 year period with the first 6.25% of the shares vesting 2 years after the issue date. The shares
then vest on an annual basis until all of the shares have vested on the 5® anniversary of their issue.

If a MISP Participant’s employment with the Emeco Group is terminated before all of his MISP shares vest, then in
relation to those shares which have not vested, the Company is required to buy them back, cancel them or transfer
them to a nominee at a price equal to the Loan amount outstanding in respect of them and to set off the payment
against the Loan amount owed to the Company. In relation to those shares which have vested, the Company must
buy them back or transfer them to a nominee of the board and pay to the MISP Participant a purchase price equal to
their market value, subject to the Company setting off the Loan amount outstanding in respect of the vested shares.

Subject to the approval of the board, the Loan can be repaid at any time but must be repaid by the tenth anniversary
of the commencement date of the MISP.

Any dividends or capital distributions which may become payable in respect of the MISP shares may be applied by
the Company in reducing the amount of the loan.

The share issues under the MISP to each MISP Participant, and the time based vesting conditions in respect of the
shares, are not dependent on the satisfaction of a performance condition because the issue of shares to them and the
inclusion of time based vesting conditions in the terms of issue were intended to provide them with an incentive to
remain with the Emeco Group. That is, the terms upon which the shares were issued to the MISP Participants were
intended to operate as a retention incentive arrangement rather than a performance incentive arrangement.

LTI

The terms of the LTI Plan are discussed at pages 28 to 30.

During FY(8, the Company granted Performance Shares to the following key management personnel under the
Company’s LTI plan (LTI Plan). No LTI grants of Performance Shares were made to key management personnel in \

FYO07. ‘

Table 8 - LTI Performance Share grants to key executives

Number Grant Date Fair value per g:rfm:remr::ce Shares
granted during Performance vested during FY08
FY08 Share A) 9

Mr A Carr 100,000 15 October 2007 $0.87 -

Mr 8 Gobby 150,000 17 March 2008 $0.47 -

Mr I Testrow 100,000 15 October 2007 $0.87 -

Mr D Tilbrook 100,000 15 October 2007 $0.87 -

Mr M Turner 100,000 15 October 2007 $0.87 -

(A)

For Performance Shares granted in FYO08, the earliest vesting date is 15 October 2010.

During FY(8, the Company granted Performance Rights to the following key management personnel under the LTI
Plan. No LTI grants of Performance Rights were made to key management personnel in FY(7,
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Table 9 - LTI Performance Rights grants to key executives

Number Number of
granted during | Grant Date ::ir;::rlnuaenzgr Performance Rights
FYO0B (A) vesting during FY08
Right
(A}
Mr M Bourke 100,000 15 October 2007 $0.87 -
Mr G Graham 100,000 15 October 2007 $0.87 -
(A) For Performance Rights granted in FY(8, the earliest vesting date is 15 October 2010.

Options

The terms of the Options Plan are discussed at pages 29 & 30.

The percentage of Mr Adair’s and Mr Freedman’s remuneration in FYQ8 that consists of Options is 0.2% and 0.3%

respectively.

Details of the movement in the number of options held, directly, indirectly or beneficially, by each key management

person during FY08, including their related parties, are set out in the following table:

Table 10 - LTI Options grants to key executives

Vested and
2008 Vested exorcisable
Directors & Held at Granted as Other Held at 30 | during the at 30 June
Executives 1 July 2007 Compensation Exercised Changes | June 2008 year 2008
L C Freedman 4,800,000 - - - 4,800,000* - 1,600,000
R L C Adair 1,600,000 - - - 1,600,000* - 533,333

Vested and
2007 Vested exorcisable
Directors & Held at Granted as Other | Heold at 30 | during the at 30 June
Executlves 1 July 2006 Compensation Exerclsed Changes | Juna 2007 year 2007
L C Freedman - 4,800,000 - - 4,800,000 1,600,000 1,600,000
R L C Adair - 1,600,000 - - 1,600,000 533,333 533,333

* Subsequent to 30 June 2008, with effect from 26 August 2008, Mr Freedman forfeited 1,600,000 options and Mr

Adair forfeited 533,333 options. These forfeitures occurred because, under the terms of the Options Plan, the
Company’s earnings per share target for FY08 was not achieved. For further details, see page 29 of this report.

Emeco Holdings Ltd

39



Directors’ report contd.
For the year ended 30 June 2008

Service contracts

Except as outlined below, each of the key executives named in table 5 are employed pursuant to contracts which provide
for an indefinite term and which are terminable on either party giving 6 months® notice or on the payment to the

executive of up to 6 months’ salary in lieu of notice. No termination payments other than salary in lieu of notice and |
accrued statutory leave entitlements are payable under these contracts. \

Mr Bourke is employed pursuant to a contract which provides for an indefinite term and which is terminable on either
party giving 3 months’ notice or on the payment to the executive of up to 3 months’ salary in lieu of notice. No
termination payments other than salary in lieu of notice and accrued statutory leave entitlements are payable under Mr
Bourke’s contract.

Mr Graham is employed pursuant te a contract which provides for an indefinite term. Mr Graham may terminate the
contract by giving 3 months’ notice, whilst Euro Machinery BV may terminate the contract by giving 6 months’ notice
or paying him &6 months’ salary in lieu of notice. No termination payments other than salary in lieu of notice and accrued
statutory leave entitlements are payable under Mr Graham’s contract.

Mr Moseley is employed by Emeco Equipment (USA) LLC pursuant to a contract which provides for successive rolling
12 month terms, subject to either party being able to give 6 months notice of termination or on the payment by Emeco
Equipment (USA) LLC to Mr Moseley of up to 6 months’ salary in lieu of notice. No termination payments other than
salary in lieu of notice and accrued leave entitlements are payable.

Mr Freedman’s contract provides that he is to act as Managing Director of the Group until at teast 31 December 2008.
Under this contract, Mr Freedman's remuneration has been structured so that he receives a base salary (exclusive of
superannuation and other entitlements outlined in his contract}, together with the capacity to qualify for an STI
performance bonus each year of up to 100% of the base amount calculated by reference to the earnings per share
performance of Emeco. The contract may be terminated by either Mr Freedman or Emeco upon provision of 12 menths
notice of termination. Emeco may also terminate Mr Freedman's employment immediately, by making a payment in lieu
of 12 months remuneration package, which would be the total of his base amount, plus superannuation and car
allowance.

Mr Adair’s contract provides that he is to continue his employment with the Group untii at least 30 June 2009. Under his
contract, Mr Adair's remuneration has been structured so that he receives a base salary (exclusive of superannuation and
other entitlements outlined in his contract), together with the capacity to qualify for an STI performance bonus each year
of up to 50% of the base amount calculated by reference to the earnings per share performance of Emeco. The contract
may be terminated by either Mr Adair or Emeco upon provision of 12 months notice of termination, although Mr Adair
has agreed that he will not provide such notice until at least I January 2009. Emeco may also terminate Mr Adair’s
employment immediately, by making a payment in lieu of 12 months remuneration package, which would be the total of
his base amount, plus superannuation and car allowance. If Mr Adair’s duties are materially altered during the term of
his employment without his agreement or Emeco delists from ASX, Mr Adair may receive payment equal to 12 months
of his base amount plus the maximum performance bonus amount for the relevant financial year. In addition, the Options
then granted to Mr Adair will immediately vest. No material changes were made to Mr Adair’s contract as a result of his
appointment as Executive Director, Corporate Strategy and Business Development.

Mr Gobby’s contract is for an indefinite term and provides that it is terminable on either party giving 6 months’ notice or
on the payment to him of up to 6 months’ salary in lieu of notice. If, however, a change of control of Emeco Holdings
Ltd occurs or his duties are materially changed within certain time periods specified in the contract, then he is entitled to
terminate the contract and to be paid a maximum amount of 12 months base salary and the full amount of his STI bonus.
This maximum amount applies if the relevant event occurs within | year of the commencement of his employment with
Emeco and declines to an amount of 6 months base salary and the full amount of his STI bonus after the second
anniversary of his employment with Emeco.

Emeco Holdings Ltd 40



Directors’ report contd.
For the year ended 30 June 2008

Non - executive directors

A maximum amount of $1,200,000 pa is currently prescribed in the Company’s constitution as the total aggregate
remuneration available to non-executive directors.

The remuneration of all of the non-executive directors other than Mr Brennan comprises a cash director’s fee of
$100,000 pa, inclusive of superannuation contributions. As Chairman, Mr Brennan is entitled to a fee of $175,000 pa,
inclusive of superannuation contributions. An additional fee of $7,500 pa is paid to any director who is a member of a
board committee; this fee is increased to $10,000 pa for a director who chairs a committee.

Remuneration and the Company's performance

The Company was incorporated as a proprietary company on 14 December 2004. It is therefore not possible to discuss
the relationship between the Company’s remuneration policy and the Company’s performance for the previous 4
financial years,

However, based on the pro forma historical information set out in section 7 of the Emeco Prospectus dated 3 July 2006,
and the consolidated results set out in the Company’s financial statements for FY06, FY07 and FY08, the Emeco Group
has achieved a compound annual growth rate in EBITA of 31.0% for the period from FY04 to FY08,

The directors consider that the remuneration policies of the Emeco Group while it was privately held and since the IPO
have been successful in aligning the interests of the senior managers with the interests of the Emeco Group and its
shareholders. This success is reflected in the eamnings growth of the Group.

The directors also consider that the remuneration policies and practices adopted and approved by the Emeco Holdings
Ltd Remuneration Committee for the Emeco Group’s directors, secretary and senior managers for FY08 provided them
with appropriate rewards and motivated them to continue to perform in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

Unaudited

In FY08, the Company’s share price declined from $1.64 to $1.07 as at close of trading on 30 June 2008. The Emeco
Group’s EBITA decreased in FY08 by 6.4% from the EBITA result reported as pro forma EBITA for FY07*. However,
as noted above, the Emeco Group has achieved a compound annual growth rate in EBITA of 31.0% for the period from
FY04 1o FY08. This long run increase in EBITA is in part attributable to the Company’s remuneration policies and the
alignment of management’s interests with those of the Company and its shareholders. The primary means available to
the Company to grow shareholder wealth, whether by way of dividend distributions or increases in the Company’s share
price, is to continue to increase earnings. In this regard, the Company has continued to grow earnings at a rapid rate over
the past 5 financial years. The Company will continue to adopt remuneration policies and practices which reward strong
financial performance.

* FY07 pro forma EBITA is derived by adjusting reported actual EBITA to add back the non recurring costs of the IPO which
were incurred in FY07, It is considered that pro forma EBITA for FY07 is a more accurate basis of comparison for the
purposes of discussing EBITA growth rates than is statutory EBITA, as expenses incurred as a result of the IPQ are not
considered to be in the ordinary course of business.
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Indemnification and insurance of directors, officers and auditors

The Company has entered into a deed of access, indemnity and insurance with each of its current and former Directors,
the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary. Under the terms of the deed, the Company indemnifies the
officer or former officer, to the extent permitted by law, for liabilities incurred as an officer of the Company. The deed
provides that the Company must advance the officer reasonable costs incurred by the officer in defending certain
proceedings or appearing before an inquiry or hearing of a government agency.

Since the end of the previous financial year, the Company has paid premiums in respect of contracts insuring the current
and former directors and officers of the Emeco Group, including senior executives, against liabilities incurred by such a
director, officer or executive to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001, The contracts of insurance prohibit
disclosure of the nature of the liability cover and the amount of the premium.

The Emeco Group has not indemnified its auditors, KPMG.

Non-audit services

During the year, KPMG, the Company’s auditor, has performed certain other services in addition to their statutory
duties. :

The Board has considered the non-audit services provided during the year by the auditor and is satisfied that the
provision of those non-audit services during the year by the auditor is compatible with, and did not compromise, the
auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 for the following reasons:

 all non-audit services were subject to the Corporate governance procedures adopted by the Company;

o the non audit services provided do not undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as set out
in Professional Statement F1 Professional Independence, as they did not involve reviewing or auditing the auditors
own work, acting in 2 management or decision making capacity for the Company, acting as an advocate for the
Company or jointly sharing the risks and rewards.

A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as required under Section 307C of the Corporation Act 2001 is
included in the director’s repott.

Details of fees paid to the Company’s auditors for non audit services are found in Note 8 of the financial report.

Rounding

The amounts contained in this report and in the financial report have been rounded to the nearest $1,000 (where rounding
is applicable) under the option available to the Company under ASIC Class Order 98/100 dated 10 July 1998. The
Company is an entity to which the Class Order applies.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors

Laurence Freedman
Managing Director

Dated at Perth, 25 day of August 2008,
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Lead Auditor’s Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act
2001

To: the directors of Emeco Holdings Limited

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit for the year ended
30 June 2008 there have been:

i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the
Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

(ii) - no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

KinG

KFrMG

Brett EuEarton

Partner

Perth
25 August 2008

KPMG, an Australian gartnership and a member firm of the KPMG network .
of independent member firms affiliatad with KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.




Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Income Statements
For the year ended 30¢ June 2008

Revenue from rental income
Revenue from the sale of machines and parts
Revenue from maintenance services

Changes in machinery and parts inventory
Machinery and parts purchases and consumables
Repairs and maintenance

Employee expenses

Hired in equipment and labour

Gross profit

Other income
Other expense

EBITDAY

Depreciation expense
Amortisation expense

EBIT®

Financial income

Financial expenses

Profit before income tax expense
Income tax (expense)/benefit
Profit for the period

Attributed to;

Equity holders of the parent
Minority interests

Profit for the period

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations

) EBITDA - Earnings before interest expense, tax, depreciation and amortisation

@ EBIT - Earnings before interest expense and tax.

Consolidated The Company
Note 2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 000 $000
320,478 285,875 - -
255,481 238,590 - -
41,898 29,937 - -
617,857 554,402 - -
197 (59,563) - -
(212,782)  (144,942) - -
(91,440) (74,306) - -
(43,014) (35,489) - -
(5.798) (6910} - -
265,020 233,192 - -
6 10,169 14,035 33,600 7,500
{61,736) (41,292) {(1,193) {1,175)
213,453 205,935 32,407 6,325
7 (93,113) (78,860) - -
7 (L,117) (3.422) - -
119,223 123,653 32,407 6,325
7 1,624 822 - -
7 (25,169) {44,516) - (1,818)
95,678 79,959 32,407 4,507
9(c) (28,149 (23,865) 241 193
67,529 56,094 32,648 4,700
67,529 54,773 32,648 4,700
- 1,321 - -
67,529 56,094 32,648 4,700
2008 2007
$ $
33 0.107 0.093
33 0.107 0.092

The income statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial statements set out

on pages 48 to 108.
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities

Balance Sheets
as at 30th June 2008
Consolidated The Company
Note 2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Current Assets
Cash assets 14 16,804 27,740 4 4
Trade and other receivables 15 103,212 88,703 35,623 45,819
Inventories 17 187,328 187,131 - -
Prepayments 16 7,011 8.846 - -
Current tax asset 10 3,036 2,932 - -
Total current assets 317,391 315,352 35,627 45,823
Non-current assets
Trade and other receivables 15 576 3,669 511,706 507,412
Intangible assets 18 223,561 223,390 - -
Investments 19 - - 162,729 153,859
Property, plant and equipment 20 621,990 544,303 - -
Deferred tax assets I 3,484 2,369 4,164 5,492
Total non-current assets 849,611 773,731 678,599 666,763
Total assets 1,167,002 1,089,083 714,226 712,586
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 46,172 43,621 3,695 17,782
Interest bearing liabilities 22 6,557 6,521 - -
Current tax liabilities 10 24,289 12,489 24,231 12,141
Provisions 24 4,509 3,636 - -
Total current liabilities 81,527 66,267 27,926 29,923
Non-current Liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities 22 358,066 326,323 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 11 24,991 23,090 - -
Provisions 24 682 524 - -
Total non-current liabilities 383,739 349,937 - -
Total liabilities 465,266 416,204 27,926 29,923
Net assets 701,736 672,879 686,300 682,663
Equity
Share capital 25 608,995 609,278 684,882 685,165
Reserves 25 (16,192) (5,997) 489 1,023
Retained earnings/(accumulated toss) 25 108,933 69,598 929 (3,525)
Total equity attributable to equity
holders of the parent 701,736 672,879 686,300 682,663
Total equity 701,736 672,879 686,300 682,663

The balance sheets are to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial statements set out on
pages 48 to 108.
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Statements of recognised income and expense
For the year ended 30 June 2008

Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$000 §'000 $'000 $'000
Effective portion of cash flow hedge recognised directly in
equity at beginning of the year 915 1,195 - -
Effective portion of cash flow hedge recognised directly in
equity at the end of the year 90 915 - -
Movement for the year (825) (280) - -
Foreign currency translation differences for foreign
operations (8,836) {8,467) - -
Net income recognised directly in equity (9,661) (8,747) - -
Profit for the year 67,529 56,094 32,648 4,700
Total recognised income and expense for the year 57,868 47,347 32,648 4,700
Total recognised income and expense for the year
attributed to
Equity holders of the parent 57,868 46,911 32,648 4,700
Minarity interest - 436 - -
Total recognised income and expense for the year 57,868 47,347 32,648 4,700

The statements of recognised income and expense is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the

financial statements set out on pages 43 to 108.
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Statements of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2008

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers

Cash payments to suppliers and employees
Cash generated from operations
Dividends received

Interest received

Interest paid

Income tax paid

Net cash provided by/{used in)

operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds on disposal of non-current assets

Payment for controlled entities (net of cash acquired)
investment in subsidiary

Payment for property, plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceed from issue of shares

Proceed from loans

Repayment of exchangeable notes

Loan to controlled entity

Repurchase own shares

Repayment of borrowings

Payment for deferred borrowing costs
Finance lease payments

Dividends paid

Net cash provided by financing activities
Net {decrease)/increase in cash held
Cash at the beginning of the period
Effects of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held
Cash at the end of the financial period

Consolidated The Company
Note 2008 2007 2008 2007
3000 $000 3000 $000
599,508 556,414 - -
(407,647)  (431,279) (880) (655)
191,861 125,135 {(880) (655)
- - 33,600 7,500
1,624 822 - -
(25916)  (32,912) - -
(13,978) (8,844) (12,118) (5,464)
28(ii) 153,591 84,201 20,602 1,381
43,753 47,281 - -
29 (4,837) (165,140) - (117,441}
- - (8,872) (36,418)
(204,020}  (204,278) - -
(165,104)  (322,137) (8,872} (153,859
- 438,041 - 438,041
51,628 138,927 - -
- (54,694) . -
- - 17,449 (279,299)
(985) - (985) -
(11,599)  (260,000) - .
- (870) - -
(9,019) (6,805) - -
{28,194) (6,260) (28,194) (6,260)
1,831 248,339 (11,730) 152,482
(9,682) 10,403 - 4
27,740 19,240 4 -
(1,254) (1,903) - -
28(i) 16,804 27,740 4 4

The statements of cash flows are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements set out on pages 48

to 108.
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2008

1

Reporting entity

Emeco Holdings Limited (the “Company™) is a company domiciled in Australia. The address of the Company’s
registered office is Ground Floor, 10 Ord Street, West Perth WA 6005. The consolidated financial statements of the
Company as at and for the year ended 30 June 2008 comprise of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest in associates and jointly controlled entities. The Group is primarily
involved in the rental, sates, parts and maintenance of heavy earthmoving equipment (see note 13).

Basis of preparation

(a)

(b)

()

@

Statement of compliance

The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs) (including Australian Accounting Interpretations) adopted by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the Corporations Act 2001. The consolidated financial
report of the Group also complies with the IFRSs and interpretations adopted by the International Accounting
Standards Board. '

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 August 2008.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the histerical cost basis except for the following:
»  derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value

» available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value

The methods used to measure fair values are discussed further in note 4.

Functionsl and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the Company’s
functional currency and the functional currency of the majority of the Group.

The Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100 dated 10 July 1998 and in accordance with
that Class Order, all financial information presented in Australian dollars has been rounded to the nearest
thousand unless otherwise stated.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements
are described in the following notes:

»  Note § — valuation of financial instruments

s  Note 11 — utilisation of tax losses

= Note 18 — measurement of the recoverable amounts of cash-generating units containing goodwill
=  Note 29 — business combinations

»  Note 30 — measurement of share based-payments.
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities .
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2008

3 Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated
financial statements, and have been applied consistently by Group entities.

(a)
it

(i)

(iii)

(b)
@

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into account. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases.

In the Company’s financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost.

Acquisitions from entities under common control

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under the control of the
shareholder that contrels the Group are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented or, if later, at the date that common control was established; for this
purpose comparatives are restated. The assets and liabilities acquired are recognised at the carrying amounts
recognised previously in the Group’s controlling shareholder’s consolidated financial statements. The
components of equity of the acquired entities are added to the same components within Group equity. Any
cash paid for the acquisition is recognised directly in equity.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of group entities at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate at that
date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortised cost in the
functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the
period, and the amortised cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the period.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are
retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined,

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
acquisition, are transiated to Australian dollars at exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and
expenses of foreign operations are translated to Australian doliars at exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised directly in equity within the foreign currency translation reserve
(“FCTR™). When a foreign operation is disposed of, in part or in full, the relevant amount in the FCTR is
transferred to profit or loss,
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{c)
{®

(ii)

Financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity and debt securities, trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans and borrowings, and trade and other payables.

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, for instruments not at fair
value through profit or loss, any directly attributable transaction costs, except as described below. Subsequent
to initial recognition non-derivative financial instruments are measured as described below.

A financial instrument is recognised if the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets are derecognised if the Group’s contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial assets expire or if the Group transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining control or
substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are accounted
for at trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits itself to purchase or sell the asset. Financial liabilities are
derecognised if the Group’s cbligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows. )

Accounting for finance income and expense is discussed in note 3(n).

Derivative financial instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk
exposures. Derivatives are recognised initially at fair value; attributable transaction costs are recognised in
profit or loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and
changes therein are accounted for as described below.

Cash flow hedges

Changes in the fair value of the derivative hedging instrument designated as a cash flow hedge are recognised
directly in equity to the extent that the hedge is effective. To the extent that the hedge is ineffective, changes
in fair value are recognised in profit or loss.

If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. The cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity remains there until the forecast transaction occurs. When the hedged item is a non-
financial asset, the amount recognised in equity is transferred to the carrying amount of the asset when it is
recognised. In other cases the amount recognised in equity is transferred to profit or loss in the same period
that the hedged item affects profit or loss.
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(0}
i)

()
@)

{ii)

Financial instruments {continned)

Share capital

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity, Incremental costs directly attributable to issue of ordinary shares and
share options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any related income tax benefit.

Repurchase of share capital (treasury shares)

When share capital recognised as equity is purchased by the employee share plan trust, the amount of the
consideration paid, which includes directly attributable costs, is recognised as a deduction from equity, net of
any tax effects. Purchased shares are classified as treasury shares and are presented as a deduction from total
equity. When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognised as an
increase in equity, and the resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is transferred to / from retained
earnings.

In the Company’s financial statements the transactions of the Company sponsored employee share plan trust
are treated as being executed directly by the Company (as the trust acts as the Company’s agent).

Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The cost of property, plant and equipment at 14 December 2004, the date of incorporation and
transition to AASBs, was determined by reference to its fair value at that date.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the
items and restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality
of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
sepatate items {major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of
the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group
and its cost can be measured reliably. Expenditure on major overhauls and refurbishments of equipment is
capitalised in property, plant and equipment as it is incurred, where that expenditure is expected to provide
future economic benefits. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment {continued)

(iii} Depreciation
Items of property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land, are depreciated over their estimated useful
lives and are charged to the income statement. Estimates of remaining useful lives, residual values and the
depreciation method are made on a regular basis, with annual re-assessments for major items.

Assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition or, in respect of intemmally constructed assets, from the
time an asset is completed and held ready for use. Where subsequent expenditure is capitalised into the asset,
the estimated useful life of the total new asset is reassessed and depreciation charged accordingly.

Depreciation on buildings, leasehold improvements, furniture, fixture and fittings, office equipment, motor
vehicles and sundry plant is calculated on a straight-line basis. Depreciation on plant and equipment is
calculated on machine hours worked over their estimated useful life. The expected useful lives are as

follows:

Leasehold Improvements 15 years
Plant and Equipment 3— 15 years
Fumiture, Fixtures and Fittings 10 years
Office Equipment 3 - 10 years
Motor Vehicles 5 years
Sundry Plant 7 - 10 years

(e} Intangible assets
i) Goodwill
Goodwill (negative goodwill} arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

Acquisitions on or after | January 2003

For acquisitions on or after 1 January 2003, goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquiree. When the excess is negative (negative goodwill), it is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Acquisitions of minority interesis
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a minority interest in a subsidiary represents the excess of the cost of
the additional investment over the carrying amount of the net assets acquired at the date of exchange.

Subsequent measurement
Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

(ii) Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group, which have finite useful lives, are measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

(iii) Subsequent measurement
Goodwill and other intangibles are measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

(iv) Amortisation
Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets, other than goodwill, from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful lives
for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

*  contract intangibles 0 -2 years
= software 0 -3 years
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(0

(8)

()

()
it

Leased assets

Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the
lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

Other leases are operating leases and are not recognised on the Greup’s balance sheet.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the
first-in first-out principle and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to
their existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost
includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses.

Work in progress
Work in progress consists unbilled amounts to be collected from customers for work performed to date, and is
presented as part of trade and other receivables in the balance sheet.

Progressive capital work to inventory and fixed assets are carried in work in progress accounts within their
respective balance sheet classifications. Upon work completion the balance is capitalised.

Impairment

Financial assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it
is impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more
events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference
between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on a individual basis. The remaining
financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

All impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the

impairment loss was recognised. For financial assets measured at amortised cost, the reversal is recognised in
profit or toss,
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Impairment (continued)

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, excluding inventories and deferred tax assets, are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill and intangible assets that
have indefinite lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated at each
reporting date.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. In assessing fair value, the Group has assessed the amount it could obtain on disposal, less
realisation costs. Fair value has been calculated with regard to the discounted post tax cash flows and
comparable transactions for similar businesses. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets the (“cash-generating unit”). The goodwill
acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated to cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pre rata
basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses
recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased
or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Goodwill assets were tested for impairment at 30 June 2008 as part of the Group’s process of annually testing
goodwill for impairment. No impairment was recognised.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for
contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as a personnel expense in profit or loss when they
are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
future payments is available.

Other [ong-term employee benefits

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods plus related on costs: that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The
discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on Commonwealth Government bonds that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations.
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a)
(ii)

(iv)

v)

Employee benefits (continued)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the Group is demonstrably committed, without
realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to terminate employment before the normal
retirement date. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognised if the Group has made an
offer encouraging voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of
acceptances can be estimated reliably.

Short-term benefits

Liabilities for employee benefits for wages, salaries and annual leave represent present obligations resulting
from employees’ services provided to reporting date and are calculated at undiscounted amounts based on
remuneration wage and salary rates that the Group expects to pay as at reporting date including related on-
costs, such as workers compensation insurance and payroll tax. Non-accumulating non-monetary benefits,
such as medical care, housing, cars and free or subsidised goods and services, are expensed based on the net
marginal cost to the Group as the benefits are taken by the employees.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing
plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Share based payment transactions

() A management incentive share plan (“MISP”) allows certain consolidated entity employees to acquire
shares of the Company. The grant date fair value of the shares granted to employees is recognised as
an employee expense with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period during which the
employees become unconditionally entitled to the shares. The fair value of the shares granted is
measured wsing a black scholes pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the shares were granted. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of shares that vest except where forfeiture is only due to shares prices not achieving the
threshold for vesting. Employees have been granted a limited recourse 10 year interest free loan in
which to acquire the shares. The loan has not been recognised as the Company only has recourse to the
value of the shares.

(b) The share option programme allows certain employees to acquire shares of the Company. The grant
date fair value of options granted to employees is recognised as an employee expense with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period during which the employees become unconditicnally
entitled to the options. The fair value of the options granted is measured using an opticn-pricing
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that vest except
where forfeiture is only due to market conditions not being met, i.e. share prices not achieving the
threshold for vesting.

(c) A long term incentive plan (“LTIP”) allows certain sentor management personnel to receive shares of
the Company upon satisfying performance conditions. Under the LTIP shares granted to each LTIP
participant vest to the employee after 3 years if the prescribed performance condition is met. The
performance condition is a performance hurdle based on relative total shareholder return (“TSR”).
The peer group that the Company’s TSR is measured against consists of 105 Companies and includes
12 Companies that are considered direct peers to Emeco, in addition to the S&P/ASX Small Industrials
(excluding banks, insurance companies, property trust companies and investment property
trust/companies and other stapled securities).

During the period the trust acquired 775,000 shares on market at a fair value of $985,000 to be held in
trust to satisfy the potential vesting of shares under the LTIP and MISP. Shares that have been
forfeited under the Company’s MISP due to employees under that plan not meeting the service vesting
requirement have also been transferred to the trust. At period end L.5 million shares were held in the
trust,
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(ii}

(iii)

(m)

(n}

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present lega! or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability.

Revenue

Rental revenue

Revenue from rental of machines is recognised in profit and loss based on the number of hours the machines
operate each month. Contracts generally have a minimum hour clause which is triggered should the machine
operate under these hours during each month. Customers are billed monthly.

Goods sold

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair vatue of the consideration received or receivable, net
of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable,
the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, and there is no continuing
management involvement with the goods.

Maintenance services
Revenue from services rendered is recognised in profit or loss in proportion to the stage of completion of the
transaction at the reporting date. '

Lease payments

Payments made under operating [eases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term
of the lease.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Finance income and expenses

Finance income comprises of interest income, dividend income, changes in the fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, and foreign currency gains. Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using
the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognised on the date that the Group’s right to receive
payment is established, which in the case of quoted securities is the ex-dividend date.

Finance expenses comprises of interest expense on borrowings, foreign currency losses and impairment losses
recognised on financial assets. All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest
method.
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(0)

Income tax
Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in

equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of
goodwill, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and
that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and
jointly controlled entities to the extent that they probably will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse,
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets and
they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax
entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and
liabilities will be realised simultanecusly.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised at the same time as the
liability to pay the related dividend is recognised.

Tax consolidation

The Company and its wholly-owned Australian resident entities have formed a tax-consolidated group with
effect from 16 December 2004 and are therefore taxed as a single entity from that date. The head entity
within the tax-consolidated group is Emeco Holdings Limited.

Current tax expense/income, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences
of the members of the tax-consolidated group are recognised in the separate financial statements of the
members of the tax - consclidated group using the ‘separate taxpayer within group’ approach by reference to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the separate financial statements of each entity and the tax
values applying under tax consclidation.

Any current tax liabilities {(or assets) and deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses of the
subsidiaries are assumed by the head entity in the tax-consolidated group and are recognised by the company
as amounts payable (receivable) to/(from) other entities in the tax-consolidated group in conjunction with
any tax funding arrangement amounts (refer below). Any difference between these amounts is recognised
by the Company as an equity contribution or distribution.

The Company recognises deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses of the tax-consolidated group to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits of the tax-consolidated group will be available against
which the asset can be utilised.

Any subsequent period adjustments to deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses as a result of
revised assessments of the probability of recoverability is recognised by the head entity only.
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Income tax (continued)

Nature of tax funding arrangements and tax sharing arrangements

The head entity, in conjunction with other members of the tax-consolidated group, has entered into a tax
funding arrangement which sets out the funding obligations of members of the tax-consolidated group in
respect of tax amounts. The tax funding arrangements require payments to/from the head entity equal to the
current tax liability/(asset) assumed by the head entity and any tax-loss deferred tax asset assumed by the
head entity, resulting in the head entity recognising an inter-entity receivable/(payable) equal in amount to
the tax liability/(asset) assumed. The inter-entity receivable/(payable) are at call.

Contributions to fund the current tax liabilities are payable as per the tax funding arrangement and reflect the
timing of the head entity’s obligation to make payments for tax liabilities to the relevant tax authorities.

The head entity in conjunction with other members of the tax-consolidated group, has also entered into a tax
sharing agreement. The tax sharing agreement provides for the determination of the allocation of income tax
liabilities between the entities should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations. No amounts have
been recognised in the financial statements in respect of this agreement as payment of any amounts under the
tax sharing agreement is considered remote.

Goods and services tax

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In these circumstances, the
GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable
from, or payable to, the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are classified
as operating cash flows.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which comprise convertible notes,
management performance shares, and share options granted to employees.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing related products or
services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment
(geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.
Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business and geographical segments. The
Group’s primary format for segment reporting is based on business segments. The business segments are
determined based on the Group’s management and intemal reporting structure,

Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm’s length basis.
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Segment reporting {continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly loans and borrowings and related
expenses, corporate assets (primarily the Company’s headquarters) and head office expenses, and income tax
assets and liabilities.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets other than goodwill.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The following standards, amendments to standards and interpretations have been identified as those which
may impact the entity in the period of initial application. They are available for early adoption at 30 June
2008, but have not been applied in preparing this financial report:

Revised AASB 3 Business Combinations changes the application of acquisition accounting for business
combinations and the accounting for non-controlling (minority) interests. Key changes include: the
immediate expensing of all transaction costs; measurement of contingent consideration at acquisition
date with subsequent changes through the income statement; measurement of non-controlling (minority)
interests at full fair value or the proportionate share of the fair value of the underlying net assets;
guidance on issues such as reacquired rights and vendor indemnities; and the inclusion of combinations
by contract alone and those involving mutuals, The revised standard becomes mandatory for the Group’s
30 June 2010 financial statements. The Group has not yet determined the potential effect of the revised
standard on the Group’s financial report.

AASB 8 Operating Segments introduces the “management approach” to segment reporting. AASB 8§,
which becomes mandatory for the Group’s 30 June 2010 financial statements, will require the disclosure
of segment information based on the internal reports regularly reviewed by the Group's Chief Operating
Decision Maker in order to assess each segment’s performance and to allocate resources to them.
Currently the Group presents segment information in respect of its business and geographical segments
(see note 13).

Revised AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements introduces as a financial statement (formerly
“primary” statement) the “statement of comprehensive income”. The revised standard does not change
the recognition, measurement or disclosure of transactions and events that are required by other AASBs.
The revised AASB 101 will become mandatory for the Group’s 30 June 2010 financial statements. The
Group has not yet determined the potential effect of the revised standard on the Group’s disclosures.
Revised AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements changes the accounting for
investments in subsidiaries. Key changes include: the remeasurement to fair value of any
previous/retained investment when control is obtained/lost, with any resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss; and the treatment of increases in ownership interest after control is obtained
as transactions with equity holders in their capacity as equity holders. The revised standard will become
mandatory for the Group’s 30 June 2010 financial statements. The Group has not yet determined the
potential effect of the revised standard on the Group’s financial report.

AASB 2008-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standard - Share-based Payment: Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations changes the measurement of share-based payments that contain non-
vesting conditions. AASB 2008-1 becomes mandatory for the Group’s 30 June 2010 financial
statements. The Group has not yet determined the potential effect of the amending standard on the
Group’s financial report.
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4 Determination of fair values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and / or
disclosure purposes based on the following methods. Where applicable, further information about the assumptions
made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

(i)  Property, plant and equipment
The fair value of property, plant and equipment recogmsed as a result of a business combmatlon is based on
market values. The market value of property is the estimated amount for which a property could be
exchanged on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction
after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion.
The market value of items of plant, equipment, fixtures and fittings is based on the quoted market prices for
similar items.

(ii) Intangible assets
The fair value of contract intangibles acquired in a business combination is based on the discounted estimated
net future cash flows that are expected to arise as a result of the contracts that are in place when the business
combination was finalised.

(iti) Inventory
The fair value of inventory acquired in a business combination is determined based on its estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and sale, and a reasonable
profit margin based on the effort required to complete and sell the inventory.

(iv) Trade and other receivables
The fair value of trade and other receivables, excluding construction work in progress, is estimated as the
present value of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.

(v) Derivatives
The fair value of forward exchange contracts is based on the discounted value of the difference between the
rate the forward exchange contract was entered and the year end exchange rate.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is based on broker quotes. Those quotes are tested for reasonableness by
discounting estimated future cash flows based on the terms and maturity of each contract and using market
interest rates for a similar instrument at the measurement date.

{vi) Non-derivative financial liabilities
Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of future
principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. For finance
leases the market rate of interest is determined by reference to similar lease agreements.

(vii) Share-based payment transactions
The fair value of employee share options management incentive plan shares, and long term incentive plan
shares are measured using an option pricing model. Measurement inputs include share price on issue, exercise
price of the instrument, expected volatility, weighted average expected life of the instruments, market
performance conditions, expected dividends, and the risk-free interest rate. Service and non-market
performance conditions attached to the transactions are not taken into account in determining fair value,
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5 Financial risk management

Overview

The Company and Group have exposure to the following risks from their use of financial instruments:
= creditrisk

v liquidity risk

*  market risk.

This note presents information about the Company’s and Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, their
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the management of capital. Further
quantitative disclosures are included throughout this financial report.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management
framework. The Board has established the Audit and Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for
developing and monitoring risk management policies. The Committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on
it activities.

Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company and Group, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s and Group's activities.
The Company and Group, through their training and management standards and procedures, aim to develop a
disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for overseeing how management monitors compliance with the
Company’s and Group’s risk management policies and procedures and reviewing the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company and Group.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers and investment
securities. For the Company it arises from receivables due from subsidiaries.

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Consolidated
Carrying amount
Note 2008 2007

In thousands of AUD
Trade and other receivables 15 101,412 82,738
Other receivables 7,178 8,316
Cash and cash equivalents 14 16,304 27,740
Interest rate swaps used for hedging:

Assets 15 361 2,907
Forward exchange contracts used for hedging;

Assets - 9

125,755 121,710

The Company’s financial assets are all intercompany and does not represent a credit risk.
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5

Financial risk management continued

Trade and other receivables .
The Company’s and Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The demographics of the Group’s customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in
which customers operate, has less of an influence on credit risk. The Group sets individual counter party limits and
also insures the majority of its rental income within Australia, Indonesia and Canada, and generally operates a “cash
for keys” policy within its sales business.

The Group’s credit policy requires each new customer to be individually analysed for creditworthiness before the
Group’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Group’s review includes external ratings,
when available, and in some cases bank references. Purchase limits are established for each customer, which represents
the maximum open amount without requiring approval from the responsible General Manager. Customers that fail to
meet the Group’s benchmark creditworthiness may transact with the Group only on a prepayment basis.

In monitoring credit risk the Group insures the majority of its rental customers at set limits who are not considered
either blue chip customers, subsidiaries of blue chip companies or Government. Blue chip customers are determined
as those customers who have a market capitalisation of greater than $1 billion. Inventory sales are generally on cash
for keys terms.

The Company and Group have established an allowance for impairment that represents their estimate of incurred
losses in respect of trade and other receivables. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss
component that relates to individually significant exposures, and a general loss component established for groups of
similar assets in respect of losses that have been incurred but not yet identified. The general loss allowance is
determined based on historical data of payment statistics for similar financial assets. For the purpose of allocating
the general toss component to the aging trade receivable table, the total general loss component has been allocated to
the not past due.
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5 Financial risk management continued

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by geographic region was:

Consolidated
Carrying amount
2008 2007
In thousands of AUD
Australia 66,469 48,860
Asia 9,965 14,562
North America 17,333 7,006
Europe 5,209 3,422
Africa 2,436 8,888
101,412 82,738

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by type of customer was:

Consolidated
Carrying amount
2008 2007
In thousands of AUD
Insured 54,202 52,519
Blue Chip (including subsidiaries) 15,115 11,889
Govermnment 358 263
Uninsured 31,737 18,607
101,412 83,278

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:

Consolidated

2008 2007
In thousands of AUD
Balance at 1 July 1,598 1,134
Impairment loss recognised (571) {24)
Doubtful debt provision 4,351 488
Balance at 30 June 5,378 1,598

Nene of the Company’s receivables are past due (2007: nil). The aging of the Group’s trade receivables at the
reported date was:

Consolidated Consolidated
Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
2008 2008 2007 2007
In thousands of AUD
Not past due 52,291 1,362 46,285 1,058
Past due 0-30 days 29,943 1,006 24,949 -
Past due 31-60 days 9,685 33 11,496 532
Past due 61 days 9,493 2,977 8 8
101,412 5,378 82,738 1,598
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5 Financial risk management continued

Guarantees
Financial guarantees are generally only provided to wholly-owned subsidiaries or in the process of entering into a
premise rental agreement, Details of outstanding guarantees are provided in note 27.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it wiil always have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group monitors working capital limits and employs maintenance planning and life cycle costing modules to
price its rentaf contracts. These processes assist it in monitoring cash flow requirements and optimising cash return
in its operations. Typically the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational
expenses for a period of 60 days, including the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact .
of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters. In addition, the Group
maintains working capital facilities of $25M and has a $490M senior debt facility. At year end it had an aggregate
headroom in these facilities of $167.7M (2007: $189.8M).

Subsequent to year end the Group refinanced its existing syndicated debt facility. The new facility has a
commencement date of 2 September 2008 and a tenure of 3 years. The facility limit is $595M of senior debt and

$35M under the working capital facility.

Consolidated

30 June 2008
Contract-

Carrying ual cash 6 mths or More than
In thousands of AUD amount flows less 6-12mths 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 year
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Secured bank loans 347,275 (364,499) (8,612) (8,612) (347,27%5) - -
Finance lease liabilities 17,965 (19,481) (3,735) (3,735) (7,400) (4,611) -
Trade and other payables* 45,943 (45,943) (45,943) - - - -
Bank overdraft - -

411,183 (32%923) {58,290} (‘l 2,347)  (354,675) (4,611} -

Derivative financial

liabilities

Interest rate swaps used

for hedging asset/(liability) 361 472 124 124 512 (288) -
Forward exchange

contracts used for hedging:

Outflow (229) {19,375) (19,375) - - - -
Inflow - . 19,145 19,145 - - - -
132 242 (106) 124 512 {288) -

* Excludes derivatives (shown separately)
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5 Financial risk management continued

Consolidated
30 June 2007
Contract-
Carrying ual cash 6 mihs or More than
In thousands of AUD amount flows less 6-12mths  §-2 years 2-5 years 5 year
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Secured bank loans 323,731 (366,599) (9,712) (9,712)  (19,424) (327,751) -
Finance lease liabilities 8,257 (8,822) (2,825) {2,608) (3,389) - -
Trade and other payables* 43,621 (43,621) (43,621) - - - -
Bank overdraft 1,500 (1,500) (1,500) - - - -
377,109 (420,542) (57,658) (12,3200 (22,813) (327,751) -
Derivative financial
liabilities
Interest rate swaps used
for hedging asset/(liability) 2,907 3,157 752 679 1,285 441 -
Forward exchange
contracts used for hedging:
Outflow (1,607) (26,981) (26,981) - . . .
Inflow 9 25,383 25,383 - - - -
. 1,309 1,559 (846) 679 1,285 241 -
* Excludes derivatives (shown separately)
Company
30 June 2008 Contract-
Carrying ual cash 6 mths or More than
In thousands of AUD amount flows less 6-12mths 1-2years 2-5 years S year
Payables 18,660 (18,660) (18,660) - - - -
Company
30 June 2007
In thousands of AUD
Payables 17,782 (17,782) (17,782) - - - -
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5 Financial risk management continued

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices
will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the
return,

The Group enters into derivatives, and also incurs financial liabilities, in order to manage market risks. All such
transactions are carried out within the guidelines set by the Group’s hedging policy. Generally the Group seeks to
apply hedge accounting in order to manage volatility in profit or loss.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are denominated in a currency other
than the respective functional currencies of Group entities, primarily the Australian dollar (“*AUD™), but also the
United States Dollars (“USD”), Canadian Dollars (“CAD™), and Euro Dollars (“EURO™). The currencies in which
these transactions primarily are denominated are AUD, USD, CAD, EUROQ and Japanese Yen (“JPY™).

The Group hedges all trade receivables and trade payables that is denominated in a currency that is foreign to its
functional currency, and greater than $50,000. The Group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its foreign
currency risk. Most of the forward exchange contracts have maturities of less than 6 months,

In respect of other monetary assets and liabilities held in currencies other than the AUD, the Group ensures that the
net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by matching foreign denominated financial assets with matching financial
liabilities and vice versa,

Interest on borrowings is denominated in currencies that match the cash flows generated by the underlying
operations of the Group, primarily AUD, but also USD, CAD and EURO. This provides an economic hedge and no
derivatives are entered into for these debts.

In respect of other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Group ensures that its net
exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary to
address short-term imbalances.

Exposure to currency risk
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at balance date was as follows, based on notional amounts:

In thousands of AUD AUD usD USD IDR* EURO
30 June 2008 30 June 2007

Trade receivables 7,800 559 3,190 - 111

Trade payables # - - - (106) -

Gross balance sheet exposure 7,800 559 3,190 (106) 111

Forward exchange contracts (7,800) - (3,190) - (111)

Net e‘xposure - 559 - (106) -

The Company had no exposure to foreign currency risk (2007; nil)

* Indonesian Rupee (“IDR™)

#  Trade payables does not include future purchase commitments denominated in foreign currencies. The Group
hedges these purchases in accordance with its hedging policy. The payable is not recognised until the asset is
received. The fair value of outstanding derivatives are recognised in the balance sheet at period end.
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$ Financial risk management continued

Exposure to currency risk continued
The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:

Average rate Reporting date spot rate
2008 2007 2008 2007
AUD
CAD 0.9045 0.8966 0.9722 0.8965
usD 0.8956 0.8414 0.9653 0.8463
EURO 0.6098 0.6271 0.6107 0.6295
IDR 8,266 7,116 8,895 7,669

Sensitivity analysis

A 10 percent strengthening of the Australian dollar against the following currencies at 30 June would have increased
(decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2007.

Consolidated
Equity  Profit or loss

Effect in thousands of AUD

30 June 2008

UsD (940) -
EURO (18) -
YEN (259) -
30 June 2007

UsD (772) -
EURO 5 -
YEN (443) -

A 10 percent weakening of the Australian dollar against the above currencies at 30 June would have had the equal
but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain
constant.

The effect on the Company would be Nil (2007: Nil).
Interest rate risk

The Group adopts a policy of ensuring that a minimum of 50% of its exposure to changes in interest ratcs on
borrowings is on a fixed rate basis. This is achieved by entering into interest rate swaps.
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Financial risk management continued

Profile

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company’s and the Group’s interest-bearing financial

instruments was:

Cash at bank

Variable interest bearing liabilities
Variable interest bearing finance leases
Total interest bearing liabilities

Interest rate swaps to hedge interest rate risk

Australian dollars

Canadian dollars C$80M (2007: C$80M)
United States dollars USD$30.0M (2007: Nil)
Euro dollars €10.0M (2007: Nil)

These interest rate swaps principle amount expiring over the
next 5 years:

No later than one year

Later than one year but not later than two

Later than two years but not later than three

Later than three years but not later than four

Later than four years but not ater than five

Consolidated Company
Note 2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 £000
14 16,304 27,740 4 4
347,275 325,231 - -
17,965 8,257 - -
23 365,240 333,438 - -
82,500 95,000 - -
82,288 89,236 - -
31,078 - - -
16,375 - - -
212,241 184,236 - -
12,500 12,500 - -
152,288 12,500 - -
- 159,236 - -
31,078 - - -
16,375 - - -
212,241 184,236 - -

The Company does not directly hold any derivative transactions. All derivatives are held by subsidiaries. All trade
receivables and trade payables of the Company are to entities that are part of its tax Consolidated Group. No interest

is charged on these balances.

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial asset and liabilities at fair value through the profit and loss
and the Group does not designate derivatives (interest rate swaps) as hedging instruments under a fair value hedge
accounting model. Therefore a change in interest rate at reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and
profit or loss by the amounts shown below. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign
currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2007,

Profit or loss Equity
Effect in thousands of AUD 100bp 100bp 100pb 100pb
increase decrease increase decrease
30 June 2008
Cash flow sensitivity (1,806) 1,806 4,532 {4,532)
30 June 2007
Cash flow sensitivity (1,299) 1,299 2,339 (2,339)
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5 Financial risk management continued

Fair values
Fair values versus carrying amounts

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the balance sheet, are

as follows:
Consolidated 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
In thousands of AUD Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Receivables 103,212 103,212 89,456 89,456
Cash and cash equivalents 16,804 16,804 27,740 27,740
Interest rate swaps used for hedging: '
Assets 361 361 2,907 2,907
Liabilities - - - -
Forward exchange contracts used for hedging:
Assets - - 9 S
Liabilities (229) (229} {(1,607) (1,607)

Secured bank loans
Finance lease liabilities
Trade and other payables*
Bank overdraft

(347,275)  (346,658)
(17,965) (17,965)
(45,943) (45,943)

(323,087)  (323,731)
(8,257) (8,257
(43,621)  (43,621)
(1,500)  (1,500)

(291,035) ___ (290,418) (257,960)  (258,604)

* Excludes derivatives (shown separately)

Company 30 June 2008 30 June 2007

In thousands of AUD Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Valie

Trade and other receivables 547,329 547,329 553,231 553,231

Cash and cash equivalents 4 4 4 4

Trade and other payables (3,695) (3,695) (17,782) (17,782)

543,638 543,638 535,453 535,453

The basis for determining fair values is disclosed in note 4.

Interest rates used for determining fair value

The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, where applicable, are based on the Government yield curve

at the reporting date plus an adequate credit spread, and were as follows:

2008 2007
Derivatives 30% - B8.0% 40% - T7.0%
Loans and borrowings 30% - 8.0% 4.0% - 8.0%
Leases 40% - 10.0% 6.0% - 10.0%

The Group has not identified other price risks that it considers it is material exposed to, other than those identified.
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5

Financial risk management continued

Capital management

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which the
Group defines as earnings before interest, tax and amortisation (“EBITA”) divided by total closing net tangible
assets plus interest bearing liabilities. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividends to ordinary
shareholders.

The Board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. The Group’s EBITA return on
funds employed for the year was 14.0% (2007: 17.3%).

Primarily for satisfying potential future obligations under its employee share plans the Group purchases its own
shares on the market. The timing of these purchases depends on the number of shares that have been issued under
either of its employee share plans. Buy and sell decisions are made on a specific transaction basis; the Group does
not have a defined share buy-back plan.

There were no changes in the Group's approach to capital management during the year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$£000 3000 $000 $000
Other income
Net profit on sale of non current assets 9,476 11,687 - -
Ineffective portion of cash flow hedges - 454 - -
Bad debt recovered - 591 - -
Sundry income 693 1,303 - -
Dividend received - - 33,600 7,500

10,169 14,035 33,600 7,500

M Included in net profit on the sale of non current assets is the sale of rental equipment which occurs in the
ordinary course of business.
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Profit before Income Tax Expense

Profit before income tax expense
has been arrived at after charging/
(crediting) the following items:

Cost of sale of machines and parts
Write-down in value of inventories

Depreciation of:

- buildings

- plant and equipment - owned
- plant and equipment - leased
- furniture fittings and fixtures
- office equipment

- motor vehicles

- leasehold improvements

- sundry plant

Amortisation of:
- contract intangible
- other intangibles

Total depreciation and amortisation

Financial expenses:

- interest expense

- exchangeable notes

- amortisation of debt establishment costs

- loss on extinguishment of debt M

- other facility costs
Financial income:

- interest revenue
Net financial expenses

Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss

Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'o00 $'000 $'000
212,585 204,505 -

8,294 4,951 -

378 227 -
86,961 72,827 -
1,204 2,274 -
164 161 .
601 415 -
1,661 1,544 -
489 311 -
1,655 1,101 -
93,113 78,860 -
911 3,279 -
206 143 -
1,117 3,422 -
94,230 §2,282 -
23,517 19,813 16
- 4,490 -

294 476 -

- 18,848 1,802

1,358 839 -
25,169 44,516 1,818
(1,624) (822) -
23,545 43,694 1,818
316 413 -

Due to the extinguishment of the Group’s debt facilities and exchangeable notes, the associated deferred borrowing
costs, and the discount on conversion of notes to shares in the Company were expensed during the prior year.
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8 Auditor’s Remuneration
Audit services

Auditors of the Company
KPMG Australia:
- audit and review of financial reports
Overseas KPMG Firms:
- audit and review of financial reports
- other assurance services

Other services

Auditors of the Company
KPMG Australia:
- transaction services

. - taxation services
Overseas KPMG Firms:
- taxation services
- accounting assistance

- transaction services "

M

Emeco Holdings Ltd

Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007

$ $ b b3
392,528 357,500 392,528 357,500
249,413 238,700 - -
- 6,500 - -
641,941 602,700 392,528 357,500
116,030 113,013 - 48,099
108,953 297,115 108,953 -
115,960 262,917 - -
2,081 - - -
440,107 262,000 - -
783,131 935,045 108,953 48,059
1,425,072 1,537,745 501,481 405,599

Included in these amounts are fees for transaction and assurance services for offshore business combinations.
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9 Income tax expense

{a) Recognised in the income statement
Current tax expense:
Current year
Adjustments for prior years

Defetred tax expenses:

Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Reduction in tax rate

Adjustment for prior years

Total income tax expense in income statement

{b) Deferred tax recognised directly in equity:
Capital raising costs
Cashflow hedges

{¢) Numercial reconciliation between tax expense
and pre tax net profit:
Prima facie income tax expense/(benefit) calculated
at 30% on net profit

Increase/(decrease) in income tax expense due to:
Effect on tax rate in foreign jurisdictions
Discount on exchangeable notes

Share based payments

Reduction in tax rate

Sundry

Decrease in income tax expense due to:
Dividend from subsidiary

Under/(over) provided in prior years
Income tax expense/(benefit)

Emeco Holdings Ltd
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Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
000 $'000 $'000 $'000

28,856 15,038 (264) (203)
23 10 23 10
28,879 15,048 (241) (193)
5,997 9,457 - -
(1,024) (640) - -
(5,703) - - -
(730 8,817 - -
28,149 23,865 (241) (193)
1,328 (5,492) 1,328 (5,492)
(379) (355) - -
949 (5,847) 1,328 (5,492)
28,703 23,988 9,715 1,352
(124) 110 - -
- 541 - 541

145 195 10 154
(1,029) (640) - -

426 (339) - -

- - (10,080) (2,250)
23 10 23 10
28,149 23,865 (241) (193)
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10 Current tax assets and liabilities

The current tax asset for the Group of $3,036,000 (2007: $2,932,000) and for the Company of Nil (2007; Nil)
represents income taxes recoverable in respect of prior periods and that arise from payment of taxes in excess of the
amount due to the relevant tax authority. The current tax liability for the Group of $24,289,000 (2007: $12,489,000)
and for the Company of $24,231,000 (2007: $12,141,000) represent the amount of income taxes payable in respect

of current and prior financial periods.

The Company liability includes the income tax payable by all members of the tax consolidated group in Australia.

11 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Liabilities

Assets Net
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Consolidated 3600 $000 $'000 $000 §'000 $'000
Property, plant and equipment (474) (639) 25,333 20,999 24,859 20,360
Intangible assets - - 90 300 90 300
Receivables (3,926)  (3,343) 10 122 (3,916) (3,221)
Inventories (51) - 13,650 12,950 13,599 12,950
Payables (1,130) (1,039 - - (L130) (1,039)
Derivatives (69) - 107 417 38 417
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (3,908) (1,022) 2,721 1,403  (1,187) 381
Employee benefits (1,434) (1,221) - - (1,434) (1,221)
Equity - capital raising costs (4,164) (5,492) - - (4,164) (5,492)
Provisions (50) (254) - - (50) (254)
Other items (294) (255) - 477 (299 222
Tax losses carried forward (4,904) (2,682) - - (4,904) (2,682)
Tax (assets) / liabilities (20,404) (15,947) 41,911 36,668 21,507 20,721
Set off of tax 16,920 13,578 (16,920) (13,578) - -
Net tax (assets) / liabilities (3,484) (2,369) 24,991 23,060 21,507 20,721
The Company
Equity - capital raising costs {4,164) (5.492) - - (4,164)  (5.492)
Net tax {assets)/ liabilities (4,164) (5,492) - - (4,164) (5,492)
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2008

12 Dividends

() Dividends recognised in the current year by the Group are:

Cents Total Franked/ Date of
In thousands of AUD per share amount$ unfranked payment
2008
Final 2007 ordinary 2.5 15,781 Franked 28 September 2007
Interim 2008 ordinary 20 12,625 Franked 4 April 2008
Total amount 28,406

Franked dividends declared or paid during the year were franked at the tax rate of 30%.

Subsequent to 30 June 2008
After the balance sheet date the following dividends were proposed by the directors, The dividends have not
been provided. The declaration and subsequent payment of dividends has no income tax consequences.

Cents Total Franked/ Date of
per share amount $§ unfranked payment
2008
Final 2008 ordinary 25 15,781 Franked 30 September 2008
Total amount 15,781

The financial effect of these dividends have not been brought to account in the financial statements for the
financial year ended 30 June 2008 and will be recognised in subsequent financial reports.

Dividends recognised in the prior year by the Group are:

Cents Total Franked/ Date of
In thousands of AUD per share amount § unfranked payment
2007
Interim 2007 ordinary 1.0 6,312  Franked 21 March 2007
Total amount 6,312
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12 Dividends continued

(ii) Franking account The Company
2008 2007
$'000 $'000

Dividend franking account
30% franking credits available to shareholders of Emeco Holdings Limited
for subsequent financial years 39,181 16,708

The above available amounts are based on the balance of the dividend franking account at year-end adjusted
for:

{a) franking credits that will arise from the payment of current tax liabilities and recovery of current tax
receivables;

{b) franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends recognised as a liability at the year end;

(c) franking credits that will arise from the receipt of dividends recognised as receivables by the tax
consolidated group at the year-end; and

(d) franking credits that the entity may be prevented from distributing in subsequent years.

The ability to utilise the franking credits is dependent upon there being sufficient available profits to declare
dividends. The impact on the dividend franking account of dividends proposed after the balance sheet date but
not recognised as a liability is to reduce it by $6,763,000 (2007: $6,763,000). In accordance with the tax
consolidation legislation, the Company as the head entity in the tax-consolidated group has also assumed the
benefit of $39,181,000 (2007: $16,708,000) franking credits.
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13 Segment reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business and geographical segments. The primary
format, business segments, is based on the Group’s management and internal reporting structure.

Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm’s length basis.
Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items mainly comprise interest earnings assets and revenue, interest-

bearing loans, borrowings, and expenses, and corporate assets.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire segment assets that are expected to
be used for more than one year.

Business Segments
The Group comprises the following main business segments, based on the Group’s management reporting system:

Rental Provides a wide range of earthmoving equipment to customers.

Sales Sells a wide range of earthmoving equipment to customers in the
civil construction and mining industries.

Parts Procuring and supplying global sourced used and reconditioned parts
to external customers and internally to the rental and sales division,

Maintenance Maintenance, repair and refurbishment of customer plant and
equipment.

Geographical segments
In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical
location of customers. Segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets.

The Group’s business segments operate geographically as follows:

Australia Rental, sales, parts and maintenance divisions throughout Australia
Asia Rental division in Indonesia

North America Rental, sales and parts divisions throughout North America
Europe Rental and sales division in Netherlands
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2008

Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
14 Cash Assets
Cash at bank 16,804 27,740 4 4
15 Trade and other receivables
Current
Trade receivables 101,412 82,738 - -
Less: Impairment of receivables (5,378) (1,598) - -
96,034 81,140 - -
Receivables from subsidiaries - tax balances - - 35,623 45,319
Other receivables 7,178 7,563 - -
103,212 88,703 35,623 45,819
Non-Current
Other receivables 215 762 - -
Fair value derivatives 361 2,907 - -
Loans to controlled entities - - 511,706 507,412
576 3,669 511,706 507,412

Intercompany loans

The Group does not charge interest on loans established within the Australian group. Interest is charged on
intercompany cross boarder loans at arms length interest rates. Loans are repayable at call but are not expected to
be repaid within 12 months.

Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000
16 Prepayments
Tyre prepayments 4,644 .5,274 - -
Other prepayments 2,367 3,572 - -
7,011 8,846 - -
17 Inventories
Equipment and parts - at cost 145,446 142,075 - -
Work in progress - at cost 5,620 1,935 - -
Consumables, spare parts - at cost 36,262 43,121 - -

187,328 187,131 - -
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18

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year
Acquisition through business combination
Effects of movement in foreign exchange

Contract intangibles - at cost
Less: Accumulated amortisation

Other intangibles - at cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Total intangible assets

Movement in contract intangibles

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year
Acquisition through business combination
Less : Accumulated amortisation

Amortisation charge

The amortisation charge is recognised in the following line item in the income statement:

Amortisation expense

The Company
2008 2007
$'000 $'000

Consolidated
2008 2007
$000 $'000
221,927 211,852
3,868 13,290
(2,910) (3.215)
222,885 221,927
712 22,390
(623) (21,390)
89 1,000
1,388 968
{801) (505)
587 463
223,561 223,390
1,000 2,766
- 1,513
(511) (3,279)
89 1,000

Consolidated

2008 2007
$'000 $000
1,117 3.422

The Company .
2008 2007
$'000 $'000

Impairment tests for cash generating units contained goodwill
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Group’s geographical operating divisions which
represents the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

The aggregate carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each unit are as follows:

Australian rental
North American rental
Asian rental

Total rental

Australian sales
European sales
Australian parts
North American parts

Emeco Holdings Ltd

Consolidated

The Company
2008 2007
$'o00 $'000

2008 2007

$'000 $000
168,591 168,029
7,445 8,136
17,129 19,538
193,165 195,703
16,376 16,376
6,323 6,119
3,729 3,729
3,292 .
222,885 221,927
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18  Intangible assets cont’d

The methodology for determining recoverable amount of cash generating units is based on fair value less cost of
sale (2007 methodology: value in use}. The change in methodology is due to management’s assessment that this
is a more accurate methodology to measure the Group’s assets, and uses the same principals that the Group uses
for valuing potential business acquisitions. The calculation is based on discounted cash flow for five years plus a
terminal value. The terminal value is cross referenced to recent transactions of similar assets. Post tax discount
rates have been determined using 10 year bond rates plus an appropriate margin for each functional currency’s
cash generating unit.

Consolidated The Company
Note 2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $000 $'000 $:000
19  Investments
Investments in subsidiaries 29 - - 162,729 153,859

The Company’s investment in subsidiaries represent its investment in Emeco (UK) Limited.

Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$000 $'000 $£000 $'000
20 Property, Plant and Equipment

Freehold Land and Buildings - at cost 23,171 8,989 - -
Less: Accumulated depreciation (706) (388) - -
22,465 8,601 - -
Leasehold Improvements at cost 4,551 3,198 - -
Less: Accumulated depreciation (1,180 (736) - -
3,371 2,462 - -
Plant and Equipment - at cost 745,948 649,103 - -
Capital work in progress 6,116 - - -
Less : Accumulated depreciation (185,420) (141,553) - -
566,644 507,550 - -
Leased Plant and Equipment - at capitalised cost 19,523 17,159 - -
Less : Accumulated depreciation (1,980) {4,500) - -
17,543 12,659 - -
Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings - at cost 1,915 1,533 - -
Less : Accumulated depreciation (624) (425) - -
1,291 1,108 - -
Office Equipment - at cost 2,808 2,563 - -
Less : Accumulated depreciation (1,639) (1,260} - -
1,169 1,305 - -
Motor Vehicles - at cost 5,970 9,440 - -
Less : Accumulated depreciation (1,823) (3,080) - -
4,147 6,360 - -
Sundry Plant - at cost 9,041 6,576 - -
Less : Accumulated depreciation (3,681) (2,318) - -
5,360 4,258 - -

Total Property, Plant and Equipment - at net book
value 621,990 544,303 - -
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20 Property, Plant and Equipment cont'd
Reconciliations

Reconciliations of the camrying amounts for each class
of property, plant and equipment are set out below:

Freehold Land and Buildings

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year
Additions

Acquisition through entity acquired

Disposal

Depreciation

Effects of movements in foreign exchange
Carrying amount at the end of the year

Leasehold Improvements

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year
Additions

Acquisition through entity acquired
Disposals

Depreciation

Carrying amount at the end of the year

Plant and Equipment

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year
Additions

Capital work in progress

Transfer from leased plant and equipment
Acquisition through entity acquired
Disposals

Depreciation

Effects of movements in foreign exchange
Carrying amount at the end of the year

Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year
Additions

Acquisition through entity acquired
Dispaosals

Depreciation

Effects of movement in foreign exchange
Carrying amount at the end of the year

Office Equipment

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year
Additions

Acquisition through entity acquired
Disposals

Depreciation

Effects of movement in foreign exchange
Carrying amount at the end of the year

Emeco Holdings Lid

The Company
2008 2007
$'000 $'000

Consolidated
2008 2007
$£000 $'000

8,601 8,569

15,207 1,657
- 40

(569) (1,171)

(378) (227)

(396) (267)
22,465 8,601

2,462 2,151
1,075 625
323 -
- 3
(489) (311}
3,371 2,462
507,550 402,933
175,391 194,803
6,116 -
9,672 2,926
110 29,168
(30,366) (34,137
(86,961) (72,827)
(14,868) (15,316)
566,644 507,550
1,108 731
176 509
177 29
(6) -

{164) (161)

1,291 1,108

1,305 711

605 923
- 92

(140) (6)

(601) 415

1,169 1,305
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Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $000 $000 3000
20  Property, Plant and Equipment cont'd
Reconciliations cont'd
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts for each class
of property, plant and equipment are set out below:
Motor Vehicles
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year 6,360 4,193 - -
Additions 2,638 3,641 - -
Acquisition through entity acquired 59 393 - -
Disposals (3,180) (266) - -
Depreciation (1,661) (1,544) - -
Effects of movement in foreign exchange {69) (57) - -
Carrying amount at the end of the year 4,147 6,360 - -
Sundry Plant
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year 4,258 321 - -
Additions 2,813 2,120 - -
Acquisition through entity acquired - 53 - -
Disposals a7n (11 - -
Depreciation (1,655) (1,101 - -
Effects of movement in foreign exchange (39) (14) - -
Carrying amount at the end of the year 5,360 4,258 - -
Leased Plant and Equipment
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year 12,659 20,454 - -
Additions 17,208 - - -
Transfer to owned plant and equipment (9,672) (2,926) - -
Depreciation (1,204) (2,274) - -
Effects of movements in foreign exchange (1,448) (2,595} - -
Carrying amount at the end of the year 17,543 12,659 - -
Security
The Group’s assets are subject to a fixed and floating charge under the terms of the syndicated debt facility.
Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $000 $:000 $'000
21  Trade and Other Payables
Trade creditors 18,660 22,404 - -
Other creditors and accruals 27,512 21,217 - -

Payable to subsidiaries - tax balances 3,695 17,782

46,172 43,621 3,695 17,782
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22

Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$000 $'o00 $'000 $'000
Interest Bearing Liabilities
Current
Working capital facility - 1,500 - -
Lease liabilities - secured 6,557 5,021 - -
6,557 6,521 - -
Non-Current
Bank loans - secured 347275 323,731 - -
Lease liabilities - secured 11,408 3,236 - -
Debt raising costs (617} (644) - -
358,066 326,323 - -
Bank loans

Under the terms of the Group’s syndicated facility the banks hold a fixed and floating charge over the assets and
undertakings of the Group. The facility has an expiration date of 21 July 2009. Each entity of the consolidated
group is a guarantor. The syndicated facility allows for funds to be drawn in Australian, United States, Canadian
and Euro dollars. At year end the Group had drawn A$110.2M, US$86.6M (A$89.7M), C$114.8M (A$118.1M)
and €17.8M (A$29.2M) (2007: AS$120.2M, US$67.5M (A$79.8M), C$95.5M (A$106.5M) and €10.8M
(AS17.2M)).

Subsequent to year end the Group refinanced its syndicated senior debt facility. The facility is a 3 year revolving
senior secured debt facility with a limit of $595.0M. The new facility has a commencement date of 2 September
2008.

Working capital facility
The working capital facility is secured under the syndicated facility mentioned above, and has a limit of $23.0M
(2007: $25.0M).

Subsequent to year end the working capital facility was renegotiated as part of the refinance of the syndicated debt
facility, and is secured under the new facility with a limit of $35.0M.

Lease Liabilities

Under the terms of the syndicated facility the Group is allowed to utilise finance lease facilities totalling $40.0M
(2007: $40.0M). At year end the Group has been granted a US$35.0M (2007: US$15.0M) finance facility and has
provided a Letter of Comfort to guarantee the terms and conditions of the finance facilities. Assets leased under
the facility are secured by the facility.

Finance lease liabilities
Finance lease liabilities of the Group are payable as follows:

Consolidated

Present Present

Future value of Future value of

minimum minimum minimum minimum

lease lease lease lease

payments Interest payments payments  Interest payments

In thousands of AUD 2008 2008 2008 2007 2007 2007
Less than one year 7,471 (914) 6,557 5,433 (412) 5,021
Between one and five years 12,010 (602) 11,408 3,389 (153) 3,236
More than five years - - - - - -
19,481  (1,516) 17,965 8,822 {565) 8,257

The Group leases plant and equipment under finance leases. The Group’s lease liabilities are secured by the leased
assets of $17,543,000 (2007: $12,659,000). In the event of default, the leased assets revert to the lessor,

Emeco Holdings Ltd 86



Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes te the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2008

Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
3000 $'000 $'000 3000
23  Financing Arrangements
The Group has the ability to access the following
lines of credit:
Total facilities available:
Bank loans 490,000 490,000 - -
Finance leases 36,258 17,724 - -
Working capital 25,000 25,000 - -

551,258 532,724 - -

Facilities utilised at reporting date:

Bank loans 347,275 323,731 - -
Finance leases 17,965 8,257 - -
Working capital 1,500 - -

365,240 333,488 - -

Facilities not utilised or established at reporting

date:

Bank loans 142,725 166,269 - -
Finance leases 18,293 9,467 - -
Working capital 25,000 23,500 - -

186,018 199,236 - -

24  Provisions

Current

Employee benefits:

- annual leave 4,087 3,319 - -
- long service leave 422 317 - -

4,509 3,636 - -

Non-Current
Employee benefits - long service leave 682 524 - -

Defined contribution superannuaticn funds
The Greup makes contributions to defined contribution superannuation funds. The amount recognised as expense
was 53,099,000 (2007: $2,574,000).
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25 Share Capital and Contributed Equity

Consolidated The Company
Note 2008 2007 2008 2007
$000  $000 $000  $000

Share capital
631,237,586 (2007: 631,237,586 } ordinary shares, fully paid 684,882 685,165 684,882 685,165
and unpaid -
Acquisition reserve 29(c)(v) (75,887) (75,887) - -

608,995 609,278 684,882 685,165

Ordinary Shares
2008 2007

On issue at 1 July 631,237,586 53,145,894
Issued as part of business combinations (pre IPO) 29(e)(iii) - 333,333
Conversion of preferred ordinary shares (pre IPO) - 113,251,248
Conversion of management performance shares (pre [PO) . - 18,000,000
2:1 split of ordinary shares on issue (pre [PO) - 184,734,475
Conversion of Emeco Limited exchangable notes
to ordinary shares - 37,952,218
1PO gift offer - 140,442
Ordinary shares issued through IPO - 223,675,976
On issue at 30 June - fully paid 631,237,586 631,237,586

Share options

On 4 August 2006 the Company issued 6,400,000 options over ordinary shares under an Employee Incentive
Plan. These options had a fair value at grant date of $1.2M and will be recognised over the vesting period of the
options,

Terms and conditions
Ordinary shares
Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one

vote per share at shareholders' meetings.

In the event of winding up of the Company, the ordinary shareholder ranks after all other creditors are fully
entitled to any proceeds of liquidation.
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2008

25 Share Capital and Contributed Equity (cont’d)
Reconciliation of movement in capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of the parent cont’d

Share based Reserve 2007
Company Issued payment ofown Retained Total
$'000 capital reserve shares  earnings equity
Balance at 1 July 2006 173,928 150 - (1,965) 172,113
Total recognised income and expense - - - 4,700 4,700
Dividend paid - . . (6,260) (6,260)
Share based payments - 873 - - 873
Conversion of exchangeable notes 72,109 . - - 72,109
Shares issued {net of costs) 439,128 - - - 439,128
Balance at 30 June 2007 685,165 1,023 - (3,525) 682,663

Share based Reserve 2008
Company Issued payment ofown Retained Total
$£000 capital reserve shares  earnings equity
Balance at 1 July 2007 685,165 1,023 - (3,525) 682,663
Total recognised income and expense - - - 32,648 32,648
Dividend paid - - - (28,194) (28,194)
Share based payments - 451 - - 451
Shares issued (net of costs)* (283) - - - (283)
Own shares acquired by employee share plan trust - - (985) - (985)
Balance at 30 June 2008 684,882 1,474 (985) 929 686,300

* Cost incurred as a result of the Company’s Initial Public Offering settled during 2008.

Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises ail foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the financial

statements of foreign operations.

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in fair value of cash flow hedging

instruments related to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred.
Share based payment reserve

The share based payment reserve comprises the expenses incurred from the issue of the Company’s securities under its
employee share/option plans (refer note 3(j)(v)).
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26 Commitments

Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007

(a) Operating Lease Commitments $000 $000 $000 $'000

Future non-cancellable operating leases

not provided for in the financial statements

and payable:

Within one year 6,208 4,370 - -

One year or later but not later than five years 11,736 7,305 - -

Later than five years 924 2,345 - -

18,868 14,020 - -

The Group leases the majority of their operating premises. The terms of the tenure are negotiated in
conjunction with the Group’s in-house and external advisors and is dependent upon market forces.

During the financial year the Group recognised an expense in the income statement in respect to operating
leases of $11,642,000 (2007: $8,268,000).

Under the terms of the Group’s syndicated loan facility the Group is allowed to enter into operating leases up to
320,000,000 (2007: $20,000,000).

{b) Capital Commitments
The Group has entered into commitments with certain suppliers for purchases of fixed assets, primarily rental
fleet assets, in the amount of $49,108,000 (2007: $43,632,000) payable within one year.

27 Contingent Liabilities
Details of contingent liabilities where the probability of future payments/receipts is not considered remote as set out
below, as well as details of contingent liabilities, which although considered remote, the directors consider should be
disclosed.

Guarantees

The Group has guaranteed the repayments of $381,250 (2007: $317,000) with varying expiry dates out to 30 June
2013.
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28 Notes to the Statements of Cash Flows

(i) Reconciliation of Cash
For the purposes of the statements of cash flow, cash includes cash on hand and at bank and short term deposits.
at call, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash as at the end of the financial year as shown in the statements of
cash flows is reconciled to the related items in the statements of financial position as follows:-

Consolidated The Company
Note 2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $:000 §'000
Cash assets 14 16,804 27,740 4 4
(ii) Reconciliation of net profit to net cash provided by

operating activities

Net profit 67,529 56,094 32,648 4,700

Add/(less) items classified as investing/financing

activities:
Net profit on sale of non-current assets (9,476) (11,687) - -

Add/(less) non-cash items: .
Amortisation 1,117 3,422 - -
Depreciation 93,113 78,860 - -
Amortisation of borrowing costs 295 17,522 - -
Discount on issue of shares - 1,802 - 1,802
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss 502 394 - -
Stock write downs 8,294 4,951 - -
Equity settled share based payments 451 873 335 648
{Decrease)/increase in income taxes payable 13,571 8,735 6,871 9,427
{Decrease)/increase in deferred taxes (1,105) 8,817 - -

Net cash provided by operating activities before change in

assets liabilities adjusted for assets and liabilities acquired 174,291 169,783 39,854 16,577
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (14,591) (19,275) (5,166) (12,770)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (2,197) (67,999) - -
Increase/{decrease) in payables {4,943) 824 (14,086) (2,420)
Increase/{decrease) in provisions 1,031 868 - -

Net cash provided by operating activities 153,591 84,201 20,602 1,381

(iii) Non-cash investing and financing activities

- During the year there were $17.2M acquisitions of plant and equipment by means of finance lease (2007:
Nil). Finance lease acquisitions are not reflected in the cash flow statements.

- During the prior year the Company acquired control of Bevan’s. Part of the consideration was $1.0M of
the Company shares which is not reflected in the statement of cash flow.

- During the prior year, as a result of the Company’s initial public offering exchangeable notes with a face

value of $70.3M were exchanged for $72.1M of shares in the Company. This is not reflected in the
comparative statement of cash flow.
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29 Controlled Entities

(a) Particulars in Relation to Controlled Entities Country Ownership Interest
of 2008 2007
Note Incerporation % %

Parent entity

Emeco Holdings Limited

Controlled entities

Emeco Pty Limited Australia 100 100
Emeco International Pty Limited Australia 100 100
Emeco Sales Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
Emeco Parts Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
Emeco {(UK) Limited (i) United Kingdom 100 100
Emeco Equipment (USA) LLC (i) United States 100 100

Wildcat Tractor Company LLC (iii) United States 100 0
Emeco International Mauritius (iv) Mauritius 0 100
Emeco Global (iv) Mauritius 0 100
PT Prima Traktor IndoNusa (PTI) ) Indonesia 100 160
Emeco International Europe BV {(vi) Netherlands 100 100
Emeco Europe BV (vi) Netherlands 100 100
Euro Machinery BV (vii) Netherlands 100 100
Emeco Canada Ltd {viii) Canada 100 100

Notes

() Emeco (UK) Limited was incorporated in and carries on business in the United Kingdom. Emeco (UK)
Limited is the parent entity of Emeco Equipment (USA) LLC, Emeco intemational Mauritius, Emeco
Global, Pt Prima Trakter IndoNusa (“PTI”), Emeco International Europe BV and Emeco Canada Limited,
Emeco (UK) Limited was acquired as a subsidiary on 4 August 2006 as a result of the Company’s initial
public offering. Prior to this Emeco (UK) Limited was a special purpose entity and was reflected as a
minority interest within the Group’s results.

(ii) Emeco Equipment (USA) LLC was incorporated in and carries on business in the United States.

(iii) Wildcat Tractor Company LLC was acquired by Emeco Equipment (USA) LLC on 4 January 2008 and is
incorporated in and carries on business in the United States,

(iv) Emeco International Mauritius (“Mauritius”} and Emeco Global (“Global™) were incorporated in Mauritius
and carry on business in the United Kingdom. At 30 June 2007 Mauritius and Global transferred at cost
their total shares held in PTI of 5,149 and 1 shares to Emeco (UK) Limited and Emeco Europe BV
respectively. Mauritius and Global were wound up during the year.

V) PT Prima Traktor IndoNusa was incorporated in and carries on business in Indonesia,

{vi) Emeco International Europe BV and Emeco Europe BV were incorporated in and carries on business in the
Netherlands. Emeco International Europe BV is the parent entity of Emeco Europe BV, and Euro
Machinery BV.

(viiy  Euro Machinery BV was acquired on 4 January 2007 and carries on business in the Netherlands.

(viii) Emeco Canada Ltd was incorporated and carries on business in Canada. On 2 August 2005 Emeco Canada

Ltd acquired River Valley Equipment Company Ltd, which operates within Emeco Canada Lutd.

Emeco Holdings Lid ‘ ' 93



Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2008

29 Controlled Entities cont’d

(b) Acquisition of entities in the current year
On 4 January 2008, Emeco Equipment (USA) LLC, a subsidiary of the Company acquired the business of Wildcat
Tractor Company Inc, a parts business based in London, Kentucky USA. The consideration paid was
US$4,500,000 (A$5,111,000). Subsequent to acquisition the business changed its name to Wildcat Tractor
Company LLC. From the date of acquisition to 30 June 2008 the subsidiary contributed a net profit after tax of

$526,000.

$'000 Recognised Fair value Carrying
value adjustment amounts

Cash and cash equivalents 274 - 274

Property, plant and equipment 669 - 669

Inventories 2,978 1,435 1,543

Trade and other receivables 219 - 919

Interest bearing loans and borrowings (2,317 - (2,317)

Trade and other creditors (83) - (83)

Deferred tax liability (567) (529) (38)

Net identifiable assets and liabilities 1,873 906 967

Goodwill on acquisition 3,238

Total consideration 5,111

Consideration paid, satisfied in cash (cash

outflow) 5,111

Cash (acquired) . (274)

Net cash outflow 4,837
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29 Controlled Entities cont’d

() Acquisition of entities in the prior year
(i) On 28 June 2007, Emeco Intemnational Pty Ltd, a subsidiary of the Company acquired the business of JK
Mining, an independent contract mining business based in Queensland for a consideration of $12,983,000

cash. Upon acquisition the business was merged into the existing Queensland rental division of Emeco, and
commenced generating revenue in July 2007.

Eifect of acquisitions
The acquisition had the following effect on the consolidated entity’s assets and liabilities.

Acquiree’s net assets at the acquisition date

$'000 Recognised ¥
value
Property, plant and equipment 8,441
Inventories 559
Deferred tax asset 5
Provisions (17)
Net identifiable assets and liabilities 8,988
Goodwill on acquisition 3,995
Consideration paid, satisfied in cash 12,983
i

As the acquisition of JK Mining by Emeco was the acquisition of a business and not a company, the

recognised values represent their fair values. The carrying amounts in the JK Mining business are not
available to the Group.
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29 Controlled Entities cont’d

(¢) Acquisition of entities in the prior year cont’d

(i) On 4 January 2007, Emeco International Europe BV, a subsidiary of the Company acquired Euro Machinery
BV and Euro Rental BV, independent earthmoving equipment rental and sales Companies based in
Hardenberg, Netherlands. Consideration comprised of a cash component of €4.4M (A$7.3M), and the
equivalent of €2.0M (A$3.3M) of the Company’s shares acquired on market on behalf of the vendors
nominee. At acquisition all assets and liabilities of Euro Rental BV were transferred to Euro Machinery BV.
Euro Rental BV is in the process of being liquidated. From the date of acquisition to 30 June 2007 the
subsidiary contributed a net profit after tax of $201,000 for the period.

Effect of acquisitions
The acquisition had the following effect on the Group’s assets and liabilities.

Acquiree’s net assets at the acquisition date

§s'000 Recognised Fair value Carrying
value adjustment amounts
Cash and cash equivalents 7 - 7
Property, plant and equipment 1,163 - 1,163
[nventories 11,043 - 11,043
Trade and othet receivables 2,371 - 2,371
Interest bearing loans and borrowings (5,973) - (5,971
Trade and other creditors (3,429) - (3,429
Provisions (164) - (164)
Deferred tax liability (216) - (216)
Net identifiable assets and liabilities 4,802 - 4,802
Goodwill on acquisition 5,848
Total consideration ‘" 10,650

Consideration paid, satisfied in cash {cash

outflow) 7322 @
Consideration paid, satisfied in shares in the

Company (cash outflow) 3,328
Cash (acquired) UJ)]
Net cash outflow 10,643

' Total cash consideration paid is subject to an eam out agreement. Under the terms of the agreement the
seller will be entitled to scaled payments upon reaching certain performance hurdles. The value of these
contingent payments have not been reflected in the total consideration paid.
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29 Controlled Entities cont’d

{c) Acquisition of entities in the prior year cont’d

(iit) On 5 July 2006, Emeco International Pty Ltd, a subsidiary of the Company acquired the Bevan’s business, an
independent earthmoving equipment rental and sales business based in Orange, New South Wales for
consideration comprised of a cash component of $8.7M, and an issue to the vendor of 666,666 shares (on a
post split basis) in the Company. Upon acquisition the Bevan’s business was merged into the New South

Wales division of Emeco International Pty Lid.

Effect of acquisitions

The acquisition had the following effect on the consolidated entity’s assets and liabilities.

Acquiree’s net assets at the acquisition date

$'000

Property, plant and equipment
Inventories

Deferred tax asset

Contract intangibles

Provisions

Deferred tax liability

Net identifiable assets and liabilities
Goodwill on acquisition

Total consideration

Consideration paid, satisfied in cash (cash
outflow)

Consideration paid, satisfied in shares in the
Company

Total consideration

Recognised
value

6,699
528
i8
1,400
(61)
(420)
8,164
1,810
9,974

8,974

1,000
9,974

m

Contract intangibles were recognised in the business combination at the date of acquisition.

m

As the acquisition of Bevans by Emeco International Pty Limited was the acquisition of a business and

not a company, the recognised values represent their fair values. The carrying amounts in the Bevans

business were not available to the Group.

(iv) On 10 July 2006, Emeco Equipment (USA) LLC (“Emeco USA”), a subsidiary of the Company, acquired a
package of machines and business from TSM North America Inc. (*TSM”) for a consideration of
$15,189,000. Included in the acquisition were machines with a fair value of $13,473,000, goodwill of
$1,637,000, contract intangibles of $113,000 and a deferred tax liability of $34,000. These machines joined

Emeco USA existing fleet within its rental segment,

The contribution of an acquired business on the Group's performance has not been separately disclosed given it
has been merged into an existing business of Emeco and the results can not be separately determined.
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29 Controlled Entities cont’d

(¢) Acquisition of entities in the prior year cont’d

(v) Following completion of the Company’s initial public offering on 4 August 2006 the Company acquired all
the shares in Emeco (UK) Limited, an entity which had previously been consolidated into the Company’s
financial statements as a minority interest. Consideration paid for Emeco (UK) Limited was $117.4M.
Subsequent to the acquisition, the profits of Emeco (UK) Limited and its subsidiaries have been attributed to
the equity holders of the parent. Prior to this, Emeco (UK) Limited consolidated results had been recognised

as a minority interest for the period 1 July 2006 to 4 August 2006.

In accordance with AASB 127: Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, the economic entity method
has been adopted for recording the acquisition of Emeco (UK) Limited. Under this method the differences
between the consideration paid and the net assets acquired is recognised as an acquisition reserve in equity.

Effect of acquisitions

The acquisition had the following effect on the Group’s assets and liabilities.

Acquiree’s net assets at the acquisition date

$'000 Note Recognised Fair value Carrying
value adjustment @ amounts ‘"

Cash and cash equivalents 5,388 - 5,388
Property, plant and equipment - 171,715 - 171,715
Inventories 25,11t - 25,111
Trade and other receivables 34,267 - 34,267
Current tax asset 2,692 - 2,692
Intangibles 29,997 - 29,997
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (191,130} - (191,130)
Trade and other payables (25,949) - (25,949)
Deferred tax liability (10,412} - (10,412)
Provisions (125) - (125)
Net identifiable assets and liabilities 41,554 - 41,554
Acquisition reserve 25 75,887

Consideration paid, satisfied in cash 117,441

M The carrying amount of net identifiable assets and liabilities was the amount that Emeco (UK) Limited

and its subsidiaries were recognised in the Group as a minority interest at acquisition.

@ No fair value adjustments given the assets and liabilities had been previously consolidated by the Group.
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Emeco Hcldings Limited and its Controlled Entities
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2008

30 Key management personnel disclosure

The following were key management personnel of the Group at any time during the reporting period and unless
otherwise indicated were key management personne! for the entire period.

Non-executive directors

A N Brennan (Chairperson)

P B Johnston

P J McCullagh

G J Minton

J S HFitton (resigned 17 August 2007)

Executives directors

L C Freedman {(Managing Director)

R L C Adair (formerly Chief Financial Officer,
Appointed Executive Director Corporate Strategy
and Business Development 1 November 2007)

Executives

M A Turner (General Manager Global Procurement)

M Bourke (President, Emeco Canada Ltd)

A Carr (General Manager Emeco Parts, Maintenance & Plant)
C Moseley (President Emeco USA)

G Graham (Managing Director Europe, appointed 12 August
2007)

D O Tilbrook (Executive General Manager Western Region
Rental)

H Christie-Johnston {General Manager Southern Region
Rental & Australian Sales, appointed 30 July 2007)

[ Testrow (General Manager Northern Regional Rental
appointed 1 March 2008)

S G Gobby (Chief Financial Officer, appointed 4 March
2008)

T T Sauvarin (General Manager Emeco Sales transferred to
Global Procurement 30 July 2007 and was no longer
classified as key management personnel)

During the year R Parish and DA Jeffery were not classified as key management personnel. Subsequent to year end
A Carr ceased to be classified as key management personnel.

Key management personnel compensation

The key management personnel compensation is as follows:

Short-term employee benefits
Other long term benefits
Post-employment benefits
Termination benefits

Equity compensation benefits

Emeco Holdings Ltd

Consolidated The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
4,884,734 5,463,152 - -

- 1,132,224 - -

375,250 353,658 - -
274,119 851,768 - -
5,534,103 7,800,802 - -
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Emeco Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities
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For the year ended 30 June 2008

30 Key management personnel disclosure continued

Remuneration of key management personnel by the Group
The compensation disclosed above represents an allocation of the key management personnel’s compensation from
the Group in relation to their services rendered to the Company.

Individual directors and executives compensation disclosures
Information regarding individual directors and executives compensation and some equity instruments disclosures as
permitted by Corporations Regulations 2M.3.03 and 2M.6.04 are provided in the Remuneration Report section of the

Director’s report on pages 25 to 41.

Apart from the details disclosed in this note, no director has entered into a material contract with the Company or the
Group since the end of the previous financial year and there were no material contracts involving directors’ interests
existing at year-end.

Equity Instruments

Shares and rights over equity instruments granted as compensation under management incentive share plan
The Company has an ongoing management incentive share plan in which shares have been granted to certain directors
and employees of the Company. The shares vest over a five year period and are accounted for as an option in
accordance with AASB 2 Share Based Payments. The Company has provided a ten year interest free loan to facilitate
the purchase of the Shares under the management incentive share plan.

Shares and rights over equity instruments granted as compensation under long term incentive plan

The Company has an ongoing long term incentive plan in which shares have been granted to certain employees of the
Company. The shares vest after 3 years depending upon the Company’s total shareholder return ranking against a
peer group of 105 Companies. The shares have been accounted for as an option in accordance with AASB2 Share
Based Paymenits.
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30 Key management personnel disclosure cont’d

The movement during the reporting year in the number of shares issued under the management incentive share plan
and the long term incentive plan in the Company held, directly, indirectly or beneficially, by each key management
person, including their related parties, is as follows. Directors or executives with no holdings are not included in the
following tables.

2008 Held at Vested Vested
Held at  2:1 share Granted as 30 June during  at 30 June
1 July 2007 gp)jt™V compensation Exercised 2008  the year 2008

Directors & Executives
Alec Brennan 500,000 - - - 500,600 - 500,000
Michael Bourke 600,000 - 100,000 - 700,000 - -
Anthony Carr 500,000 - 100,000 - 600,000 - -
Hamish Christie-Johnston - - 500,000 - 500,000 - -
Stephen Gobby - - 150,000 - 150,000 - -
David Tilbrook - - 100,000 - 100,000 - -
Michael Turner - - 100,000 - 100,000 - -
Ian Testrow 300,000 - 100,000 - 400,000 - -
Greg Graham 300,000 - 100,000 - 400,000 - -
1007 Held at Vested Vested
Heldat 2:1 share Granted as 30 June during at 30 June
1 July 2006  gplit" compensation Exercised 2007  the year 2007

Directors & Executives
Alec Brennan 250,000 250,000 - - 500,000 500,000 500,000
Rodney Parish 300,000 300,000 - - 600,000 - -
Michael Bourke 300,000 300,000 - - 600,000 - -
Anthony Carr 250,000 250,000 - - 500,000 - -

No shares held by key management personne! have vested under the management incentive share plan and are
therefore not included in issued capital.

M As a result of the Company’s initial public offering there was a 2:1 share split of existing shares on issue

immediately prior to the offering.
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30 Key management personnel disclosure cont’d

Options over equity instruments granted as compensation under a share option programme

During the prior year options were issued to Mr L C Freedman and Mr R L C Adair following the successful
completion of the Company’s 1PQO, the term of which are disclosed in the Remuneration report. The movement
during the reporting year in the number of options held, directly, indirectly or beneficially, by each key management

persen, including their related parties is as follows:

2008

Directors & Held at Granted as
Executives 1 July 2007 compensation
L C Freedman 4,800,000

R L C Adair 1,600,000

2007

Directors & Held at Granted as
Executives 1 July 2006 compensation
L C Freedman - 4,800,000
R L C Adair - 1,600,000

Exercised

Exercised

Held at

Other 30 June
Changes 2008

4,800,000*
- 1,600,000*

Held at

Other 30 June
Changes 2007

- 4,800,000
- 1,600,000

Vested and

Vested exercisable
during at 30 June
the year 2008

- 1,600,000
- 533,333

Vested and
Vested exercisable
during at 30 June

the year 2007
1,600,000 1,600,000
533,333 533,333

* Subsequent to 30 June 2008, with effect from 26 August 2008, Mr Freedman forfeited 1,600,000 options and Mr
Adair forfeited 533,333 options. These forfeitures occurred because, under the terms of the Options Plan, the
Company’s earnings per share target for FYO8 was not achieved. For further details, see page 29 of this report.

Equity holdings and transactions

The shares in the Company held, directly, indirectly or beneficially, by each key management person, including their
personally-related entities at year end, is as follows. Directors or executives with no holdings are not included in

these tables.
2008 Held at
1 July 2007
Ordinary
Shares
Directors
L C Freedman 18,000,000
R L C Adair 6,000,000
G J Minton 161,267
P J McCullagh 184,907
A N Brennan 1,031,420
P B Johnston 20,000
Executives
D O Tilbrook 5,500,000
M A Turner 5,500,000
S G Gobby -
I Testrow 186,368

H Christie-Johnston -

)

Purchases

1,000,000
100,000
200,000

31,800
350,000
80,000

50,000

150,000

M Total does not include shares held under the Company’s share plans.

Emeco Holdings Lid

Sales

{2,200,000)

Held at

30 June 2008

Ordinary
Shares

19,000,000
6,100,000
361,267
216,707
1,381,420
100,000

3,300,000
5,500,000
50,000
186,368

150,000
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30 Key management personnel disclosure cont’d

2007 Conversion of
"A" and "B"
Held at Class Held at
1 July 2006 Management 30 June 2007
Ordinary Performance 2:1 Share Sold Ordinary
Shares Shares " Split(z) Purchases during IPQ Shares

Directors
L. C Freedman 17,452,188 1,875,000 19,327,188 - {20,654,376) 18,000,000
R L C Adair 4,128,604 2,625,000 6,753,604 - (7,507,208) 6,000,000
G J Minten - - - 161,267 - 161,267
P J McCullagh - - - 184,907 - 184,907
AN Brennan 200,000 - 200,000 131,420 - 531,420
J S H Fitton 108,225 - 108,225 171,578 - 388,028
P B Johnston - - - 20,000 - 20,000
Executives
D O Tilbrook 3,819,804 2,625,000 6,444,804 - (7,389,608) $,500,000
D A Jeffery 3,819,804 2,625,000 6,444,804 - (7,389,608) 5,500,000
T T Sauvarin 4,264,204 1,875,000 6,139,204 215924 (6,278,408) 6,215,924
M A Tumner 3,819,804 2,625,000 6,444,804 - (7,389,608) 5,500,000

@) All A & B class performance shares held from the prior year were converted to ordinary shares immediately prior
to the Company’s initial public offering as a result of performance hurdles being achieved.

@ As a result of the Company’s initial public offering there was a 2:1 share split of existing shares on issue
immediately prior to the offering,

Loans

Other than the loan issued under the management incentive share plan no specified director or executive has entered
into any loan arrangements with the Group.
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30 Key management personnel disclosure cont’d

Other key management personnel transactions
A number of key management persons, or their related parties, hold positions in other entities that result in them
having control or significant influence over the financial or operating policies of those entities.

A number of these entities transacted with the Company or its subsidiaries in the reporting period. The terms and
conditions of the transactions with management persons and their related parties were no more favourable than those
available, or which might reasonably be expected to be available, on similar transactions to non-director related

entities on an arm’s length basis.

The aggregate amount recognised during the year related to key management personnel and their related parties were

as follows:

Key management
person and their
related parties

{i) Key management
person

Nil

(ii) Other related parties

Mr G ] Minton
Mr] D Carnegie

- Archer Capital Pty Limited

Mr R I Koczkar
Mr P J McCullagh

- Pacific Equity Partners Pty Limited

Mr M A Turner
Mr D O Tilbrook
- [vy Street Unit Trust

Transaction

Consulting Services

Consulting Services

Sale of 510 Great
Eastern Highway

Note

(1)

M

@

Transaction value

year ended
30 June
2008 2007
$'000 $000
- 937,500
- 937,500
- 2,950,000

Balance
outstanding as
at 30 June
2008 2007
$000 $000

(1) Archer Capital Pty Limited (“Archer”), a related party of G J Minton and J] D Camegie in the capacity as
Partners, and Pacific Equity Partners Pty Limited (“PEP™), a related party of R I Koczkar and P ] McCullagh in
their capacity as Managing Directors each entered into an Investment Services Agreement with the Company to
provide consulting services to the Company. The agreements terminated as a result of the Companies IPO.
Archer and PEP each received $750,000 for the completion of the IPO and $187,500 for consulting services up to

the date of the [PO.

(2) The Group sold its premises at 510 Great Eastern Highway, Redcliffe in Western Australia to Demo! Investments
Pty Ltd as trustee of the Ivy Street Unit Trust (“Trust”) in June 2007 for a consideration of $2.95M. The sale price
was negotiated on an arms length basis and in light of two independent expert valuations of the property. Two of
the Group’s key management personnel, Mr David Tilbrook and Mr Michael Turner, hold units in the Trust and

each of them has a significant influence over the Trust.

Emeco Holdings Ltd
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31 Non key management personnel disclosures

The classes of non key management personnel are:
o subsidiaries (Note 29)

Consolidated
2008 2007
Transactions $°000 $°000

The aggregate amounts included in the profit before
income tax expense that resulted from transactions
with non director related parties are;

Dividends - -

Aggregate amount of other transactions with non
director related parties:
Loan advances to:
Subsidiaries - -

Subsidiaries

The Company
2008 2007
37000 $'000

33,600 7,500

511,706 507,412

Loans are made between wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group for capital purchases. Loans outstanding between
the different wholly owned entities of the Company have no fixed date of repayment. Loans made between
subsidiaries within a common taxable jurisdiction are interest free. Cross border subsidiary loans are charged at

LIBOR plus a relevant arms length mark up.

Ultimate parent entity
Emeco Holdings Limited is the ultimate parent entity of the Group.

32 Subsequent events

Subsequent to 30 June 2008 the Company declared a 2.5 cent fully franked dividend payable 30 September 2008.

Emeco Holdings Ltd
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33 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic eamings per share at 30 June 2008 was based on the profit attributable to ordinary

shareholders of $67,529,000 (2007: $56,094,000) and a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for
the year ended 30 June 2008 of 631,237,586 (2007: 603,496,000).

Weighted average number of ordinary shares Consolidated Consolidated
In thousands of shares 2008 2007
Issued ordinary shares at 1 July 631,238 166,401
Effect of shares issued during the year - 237,716
Effect of conversion of performance shares - 16,323
Effect of 2:1 share split - 183,056
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

at 30 June 631,238 603,496

Diluted earnings per share
The calculation of diluted earnings per share at 30 June 2008 was based on profit attributable to ordinary sharcholders

of $67,529,000 (2007: $56,094,000) and a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year ended 30 June 2008 of 631,238,000 (2007: 609,299,000). Options are considered potential ordinary
shares and have been included in the dilutive earnings per share.

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) Consolidated Consolidated
In thousands of shares 2008 2007
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 30 June 631,238 603,496
Effect of conversion of options - 5,803
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

at 30 June 631,238 609,299

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share
InAUD 0.107 0.093

Diluted earnings per share
InAUD 0.107 0.092

Comparative information
The average market value of the Company’s shares for the purpose of calculating the dilutive effect of share options

was based on quoted market prices for the period that options were outstanding.
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34 Deed of cross guarantee

Pursuant to ASIC Class Order 98/1418 (as amended) dated 13 August 1998, the wholly-owned subsidiaries listed
below are relieved from the Corporations Act 2001 requirements for preparation, audit and lodgement of financial
reports, and directors’ report.

It is a condition of the Class Order that the Company and each of the subsidiaries enter into a Deed of Cross
Guarantee. The effect of the Deed is that the Company guarantees to each creditor payment in full of any debt in the
event of winding up of any of the subsidiaries under certain provisions of the Corporations Act 2001. 1f a winding up
occurs under other provisions of the Act, the Company will only be liable in the event that after six months any
creditor has not been paid in full. The subsidiaries have also given similar guarantees in the event that the Company is
wound up.

The subsidiaries subject to the Deed entered into during the year are:
*  Emeco Pty Ltd
»  Emeco Intemnational Pty Limited

A consolidated income statement and consolidated balance sheet, comprising the controlled entities which are a party
to the Deed, after eliminating all transactions between parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee, at 30 June 2008 is set
out as follows:

Summarised income statement and retained profits

Consolidated Consolidated

2008 2007

$'000 $'000
Profit before tax 87,566 73,902
Income tax expense (26,360) (22,232)
Profit after tax 61,206 51,670
Retained profits at beginning of year 66,693 22,523
Dividends paid during the year {33,600) {7,500)
Retained profits at end of year 94,299 66,693
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company 94,299 66,693

Profit for the period 61,206 51,670
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34 Deed of cross guarantee cont’d

Balance Sheet

Current Assets

Cash assets

Trade and other receivables
Inventories

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Trade and other receivables
Intangible assets

Investments accounted for using the
equity method

Property, plant and equipment
Total non-current assets

Total assets

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions

Total current liabilities

Non-current Liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities
Non interest bearing liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Provisions

Total non-current liahilities

Total liabilities
Net assets

Equity

Issued capital

Reserves

Retained earnings

Total equity attributable to equity
holders of the parent

Emeco Holdings Ltd

Consolidated Consolidated
2008 2007
$'000 $'000

12,067 13,627
77,401 69,301
134,543 130,227
224,011 213,155
60,405 54,527
188,965 189,145
398,394 361,120
647,764 604,792
871,775 817,947
70,982 49,757
2,001 1,500
4,038 3,322
77,021 54,579
169,649 172,792
514,717 507,412
15,339 15,052
660 503
700,365 695,759
777,386 750,338
94,389 67,609
90 916
94,299 66,693
94,389 67,609




Directors' Declaration

L. In the opinion of the directors of Emeco Holdings Limited (“the Company”):

(a) the financial statements and notes as set out on pages 44 to 108, including the remuneration disclosures
of the Remuneration report in the Director’s report, set out on pages 25 to 41 are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including:

(0] giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and the Group as at 30 June
2008 and of their performance, as represented by the results of their operations and their cash
flows, for the financial year ended on that date; and

(ii) complying with Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001;

(b) the remuneration disclosures that are contained in pages 25 to 41 of the Remuneration report in the
Directors’ report comply with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 124 Related Party Disclosure, the
Corporations Act 2001 and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(©) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company is able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable.

2. There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company and the group of entities identified in Note 34 will be
able to meet any obligation or liabilities to which they are or may become subject to by Deed of Cross Guarantee
between the Company and those group of entities pursuant to ASIC Class Order 98/1418.

. 3 The directors have been given the declarations required by Section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 by the
| chief executive officer and chief financial officer for the financial year ended 30 June 2008.

Dated at Perth, 25" day of August 2008.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

i

Laurence Freedman Robin Adalr
Managing Director Director
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Emeco Holdings Limited

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Emeco Holdings Limited (the Company),
which comprises the balance sheets as at 30 June 2008, and the incormne statements, statements of
recognised income and expense and cash flow statements for the year ended on that date, a
description of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes and the directors’
declaration of the Group comprising the company and the entities it controlled at the year’s end
or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors' responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian
Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes
establishing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing
Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
report is free from material misstatement. .

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We performed the procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report
presents fairly, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and Australian Accounting
Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations), a view which is consistent with
our understanding of the Company’s and the Group’s financial position and of their performance

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

KPMG, an Australian ganqership and a membar firm of the KPMG network
of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
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Auditor's opinion
In our opinion:

(@) the financial report of Emeco Holdings Limited is in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001, inchuding:

() giving a true and fair view of the Company’s and the Group’s financial position as
at 30 June 2008 and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian
Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

(b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as
disclosed in note 2(a).

Report on the remuneration report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 25 to 41 of the directors’ report for
the year ended 30 June 2008. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation
and presentation of the remuneration report in accordance with Section 300A of the
Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the remuneration report,
based on our audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards.

Auditor's opinion

In our opinion, the remuneration report of Emeco Holdings Limited for the year ended 30 June
2008, complies with Section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

Brett F on
Partner

Perth
25 August 2008
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Emeco Holdings Limited

Ground Floor
10 Ord Street

West Perth, WA 6005

Date of lodgement: 26-Aug-2008

Title: Open Briefing®. Emeco Holdings. MD & CFO on FY08 Results & Outlook
Record of interview:

corporatefile.com.au

Emeco Holdings Limited (ASX: EHL) today reported NPAT of $67.5 million
down 9.6 percent from the previous year. NPAT in the second half was up 21.4
percent to $37 million. Can you explain the contrasting performance in each six-
month period?

MD Laurie Freedman

Whilst we are disappointed with the lower earnings in 2008 compared to 2007, we
characterise the 2008 performance as a tale of two halves and consider this result a
factor of adverse short term events impacting the business over the first nine
months of the year. We are pleased to deliver a full year result within guidance
provided to the market in February.

During the first six to nine months of the year, profitability was affected by some
weather related one-off or special events including the drought in south east
Queensland which affected the Tarong power station, flooding in the Bowen Basin
in Queensland and the Hunter Valley and Newcastle in New South Wales, and a
cyclone in the Pilbara region in Western Australia. Offshore, there was a change in
conditions in Indonesia and continuing start-up losses in the US that also impacted




our results. All these events had a negative impact on our asset utilisation in the
first six to nine months of the year, but we finished very strongly.

The second half was particularly encouraging and especially the last quarter’s
contribution with our second half profit increasing 21.4 percent to $37 million
reflecting a step-up in Australia, Indonesia, Canada, and US. The contribution of
profits on the sale of our rental fleet continues to form part of our core earnings
arising from our continuous asset management cycle. Profits on sale were $7.3
million in the second half compared with $2.2 million in the first half. Some of
this variance is attributable to equipment shipping delays that straddled the hatf
year.

As indicated to the market in February, the US became profitable in the second
half and we continue to re-orientate Canada towards mining, which is now
performing very well. The lead times on the delivery of some classes of new large
earthmoving equipment lengthened considerably and along with increased
volumes in the mining and infrastructure industries we are witnessing strong
demand for our equipment overall as we move into 2009.

corporatefile.com.aun

Revenue was $617.9 million up 11.5 percent from the year before, but your
EBITA margin was down to 19.5 percent from 23.2 percent in FY07. What were
the factors contributing to the lower EBITA margins? Do you expect similar
margins in the current year ending June 2009?

CFO Stephen Gobby

We entered 2008 with the expectation of continued revenue growth by way of
investing further growth capital whilst maintaining high utilisation. This growth in
funds employed in rental fleet and sales inventory together with general business
growth led to higher direct and indirect costs. Due to the impacts of weather and
offshore factors that Laurie has mentioned, we experienced lower asset utilisation
which impacted top line revenue growth with a growing cost base. Furthermore,
high valued assets sitting idle and not contributing revenue, whiist continuing to
attract minimum monthly depreciation charges further impacted EBITA margins.
These factors translated through to overall margin compression.

However, with utilisation trends strengthening through the end of the year, and
with our cost base remaining relatively stable into FY09, we expect a retumn to
higher margins going forward.

corporatefile.com.au
EBITA ROFE was down to 14 percent for the full year from 17.3 percent in the
previous corresponding period. Can you detail the trend through the year?

MD Laurie Freedman

This ROFE trend is a combination of a small decline in FY08 earnings together
with a growth in funds employed through targeted growth capex and a short term
spike in working capital. Firstly, the utilisation issues experienced in the first




three quarters of 2008 had an adverse impact on the earnings component of ROFE.
Secondly, funds employed increased through the well documented increases in
working capital and additional investment in rental fleet. The combination of
these items had a negative impact on ROFE.

It is important to note that reported ROFE is calculated on a 12-month rolling basis
which is somewhat of a lagging indicator. When you calculate ROFE at 30 June
2008 on a six month or three month rolling basis, the trend is positive showing
ROFE of 14.7 percent and 16.1 percent respectively. This further underscores the
positive finish to 2008 and reflects improving eamnings through higher utilisation
and the fact that some of the working capital and capital management initiatives
we focused on in the second half started to bear fruit. We expect that trend to
continue to 2009.

corporatefile.com.au
What has been the trend in plant and equipment utilisation though the year? Can
you give some insight into performance by region?

MD Laurie Freedman

There has been substantial improvement in all regions in the second half. Across
all the business units in Australia, Indonesia, Canada and the US, the combined
utilisation by written down book value rose from 68 percent in December 2007 to
82 percent by year end. We are encouraged by this trend continuing in July to 84
percent.

In Australia, utilisation increased from 75 percent in December to 89 percent in
June. Indonesia was the strongest performer from December to June, going from
57 to 95 percent. The US and Canada also improved dramatically. The US
increased utilisation from 43 to 71 percent and has continued to improve through
July and August to 80 percent. In Canada, utilisation went from 47 to 56 percent
over the half. As we are re-orienting our fleet mix in Canada from a civil to a
mining fleet, we expect our utilisation will continue to improve over time as
mining applications tend to be more all weather protected compared to civil work
which is subject to weather conditions.

corporatefile.com.au
US operations contributed profitability in the second half. Have you established
critical mass in the US and do you expect profits to be sustained?

MD Laurie Freedman

In the second half, at the EBIT level the business produced a $1.2 million profit
excluding a one-off write-down of slow moving parts inventory of $1.1 million.
This was an acceptable outcome, particularly compared to the first half year’s
performance and recognising the business is still in its development stage and
needs a little time to deliver its potential.

We’re getting more recognition as our brand equity is building in Eastern USA.
Our enquiry levels have increased significantly and we’re working on a number of




new opportunities that will build further critical mass and in tumn enhance the
ROFE contribution of this business. We expect the US to continue building its
profitability as the business matures.

corporatefile.com.an
What is the outlook for your other international operations?

MD Laurie Freedman

Indonesia looks particularly strong with continuing organic growth of existing
mines and a string of opportunities with new mines being brought inte production.
In Canada, we’re migrating towards mining applications from civil. We're
building new facilities in Fort MacKay in the middle of the Athabascan oil sands
and we’re getting significant pull-through due to increased brand awareness.
We’re starting to market our services into other areas of Alberta Province and
penetrating the metalliferous sectors in British Columbia and other projects in
Saskatchewan.

Whilst the European businesses are a small component of our global operations,
both in terms of capital invested and earnings contribution, the strength of the Euro
and the generally soft economic environment in Europe has been hampering the
trading business. We’re continuing to explore trading opportunities in the former
Russian States, the Middle East and Africa and looking to leverage currency
movements by changing from procuring and selling in Europe to procuring
internationally and selling into and through Europe.

corporatefile.com.au
What impact did the severe weather conditions in Australia have on the FY08
results?

MD Laurie Freedman

As | mentioned earlier, the weather-related one-off events were significant and
impacted our earnings performance especially in the first half and into the third
quarter.

corporatefile.com.au
What is the underlying demand trend in Australia? Are there any signs that
demand for your services is peaking? Where are we in the cycle?

MD Laurie Freedman

There are three key market factors which are driving demand for our rental
offering: the short supply of mining equipment, the contraction of global capital
liquidity and the underlying strength in earth moving activity in bulk commodities.

As I mentioned earlier, certain classes of mining equipment are experiencing
extensive delivery lead times which is resulting in an increased demand for our
rental fleet. Furthermore, our global procurement capability of low hour used
equipment is also leading small and large companies to Emeco for equipment
supply solutions.




Furthermore, in the current economic climate where capital is in short supply and
there’s less preparedness by our customers to buy long-life assets for their short
term needs, we find there’s an increased level of enquiry towards the rental model.

With respect to mining activity, our key exposures are in coal, gold, iron ore and
oil through the oil sands patch in Canada: In our view, the medium term outlook is
very tobust for coal, iron ore and oil sands. We’re continuing to increase our
exposure to the respective coal markets in Australia, Indonesia, US and Canada.
Oil sands activity is significant now and expected to continue over the next decade
with an estimated C$120 billion of capital to be invested in Alberta Province
alone. From a concerted strategic effort to increase our exposure in iron ore, we
have been quite successful in FY08 and as a resuit of the penetration we have
effectively diluted the importance of the gold sector to our Western Australian
rental business. We’re targeting further penetration into the iron sector in FY09.

While the future is somewhat unpredictable, we feel comfortable that all of these

factors put us in a sound position to deliver an improvement in the next 12 months
compared with FY08.

corporatefile.com.an

Working capital was $254 million at the end of June down from $299 million at
the end of December. Can you explain the swings in working capital through the
year? What is your target level for working capital going forward?

CFO Stephen Gobby

The key driver of the working capital increase through the middle of the year
related to some unique buying opportunities for our Australian sales business due
to the strength of the Australian dollar and the relative weakness in the US market
for various types of gear. We undertook a significant amount of used equipment
purchasing in the first half, which increased our inventory levels. Delays in
shipping the inventory to Australia exacerbated the level of working capital we
would ordinarily be comfortable with. However, in pursuing this strategy, we
achieved strong sales at acceptable margins in the Australian sales business in the
second half making it a valuable contributor to the business over 2008 and more
than justified the temporary higher level of working capital.

We indicated to the market in our half year result a targeted reduction of $50
million in working capital from December to June. As part of our renewed focus
on balance sheet efficiency and quality of earnings, we successfully reduced
working capital by $49 million after excluding cash movements. This reduction
included a reduction in sales inventory and tyres by $71 million. This was partly
offset by an increase in receivables of $22 million. Going forward, we’ll be
targeting to keep general working capital relatively flat into 2009 despite our
expectation of business growth. This is a reflection of our continuing focus on
working capital initiatives to ensure we’re using our balance sheet as efficiently as
possible. We’re also expecting some small growth in working capital for sales and




parts inventory over the year. However, that will be subject to stock turn in the
respective businesses and close management scrutiny.

corporatefile.com.au

Growth capex was $106.8 million, and net maintenance capex was $77.8 million,
what has been the focus of your capex initiatives and what is the outlook for
growth and net maintenance capex?

MD Laurie Freedman

Firstly, the majority of our growth capex during 2008 was directed towards the
Canadian and US businesses, and that was part of our strategy to build some scale
in those businesses, We started to see the benefits of that investment towards the
end of June 2008. There was also some organic growth capex in our Australian
and Indonesian business. We continue to generate significant free operating cash
flow which is available for reinvestment in growth capex. However, our pritnary
focus is on increasing the returns on funds employed back to historical levels. We
expect some continuing growth capex into 2009, mainly organically based, but not
ignoring any strategically sensible acquisition opportunities.

Net maintenance capex is a combination of both expenditure to replace or overhaul
existing equipment and the disposal of equipment that’s getting to the end of its
life cycle. As the fleet size grows, as it has done over the last two to three years,
the requirements for maintenance capex will grow accordingly. We expect
maintenance capex to remain at similar levels over the coming years, subject to the
timing of certain pieces of equipment reaching the end of their life cycle.

corporatefile.com.au

You’ve recently announced a refinancing and upsizing of your senior debt facility
from $515 million to $630 million, which comprises a $595 million three-year
senior bank facility and $35 million renewable one-year working capital facility.
How much head room do you have within your existing and new facilities and to
what extent have finance costs risen?

CFO Stephen Gobby

Firstly, I must say we are very pleased with the support we received from the eight
banks in the syndicate during an extremely volatile and uncertain time in global
capital markets. Having increased the facility size and with a number of new
banks joining the syndicate, this was a positive sign of support for the Emeco
business. This funding certainty allows the Company to now focus on short term
performance improvement and medium term strategy without the distraction of
capital market volatility.

At 30 June, we had net debt of approximately $350 million. The new senior
facility together with existing finance lease facilities of $36 million provides us
with head room of approximately $280 million. In 2008, we generated free cash
flow of $90 miilion after net maintenance capex. We expect to use free cash flow
to reinvest in the business alongside utilisation of our debt facilities.




As is well known, borrowing costs have gone up significantly in the current
economic climate and we haven’t been immune from this trend. We’re estimating
our effective borrowing cost to increase about 130 basis points as we move into
using this new facility which has been factored into our guidance to the market.

corporatefile.com.au

Net debt was $347.8 million up from $305.1 million from the year before. Gearing
increased 5.8 percent to 49.7 percent. What are your expectations for the trend in
net debt levels in FY09?

CFO Stephen Gobby

When you look at gearing levels in this business, it is important to recognise the
asset backed nature of our balance sheet. The mobility and relative liquidity of our
tangible asset base enables us to readily convert assets into cash permitting higher
gearing levels. Relative to our global peers and our high cash flow coverage
ratios, we consider current gearing levels to be conservative. '

Whilst we are very conscious of maintaining relatively conservative gearing levels
during this period of uncertainty, future growth capex will be funded through a
combination of our free cash flow and debt. But when you bring it back to both
Laurie and my earlier comments about our primary focus on returning ROFE to
historical levels, we expect any increase in debt to equity gearing levels to be
supported by strong cash flows through higher earnings.

corporatefile.com.au

You’ve announced a fully franked dividend of 2.5 cents per share bringing the full
year dividend to 4.5 cents. This brings the dividend payout ratio to 42 percent
compared with 30 percent in the previous year. What is the outlook for dividends
in the current year?

MD Laurie Freedman

We’re still in a growth phase, and we consider our dividend levels on the basis of
providing shareholders as much income as we prudently can, whilst continuing to
fund growth, which is in the long-term interest of shareholders. Our ability to
reward shareholders is expected to be maintained in the current year.

corporatefile.com.au

You expect NPAT of $75 million to $81 million in the current year ending June
2009, an increase of 11 percent to 20 percent from the current NPAT of $67.5
million. How confident are you of achieving this target with the current market
conditions?

MD Laurie Freedman

We expect the second half recovery to be continued into FY09. We’re comfortable
in guiding the market to the levels you have indicated, but with the caveat that we
are operating in unprecedented times of significant uncertainty and the future is
less predictable than in more usual periods in history. Notwithstanding this
uncertainty, the relatively strong demand we are witnessing, and our l[ead




indicators suggest we can improve on last year’s performance. It is worth
reiterating that the increase in funding costs will have an unavoidable impact on
2009 earnings. To minimise this impact, our focus will remain firmly on extracting
more value from our installed asset base and managing working capital levels
rigorously.

corporatefile.com.an
Thank you Laurie and Stephen.

For more information about Emeco, please visit www.emecoequipment.com or
contact Stephen Gobby, Chief Financial Officer, Emeco Group, telephone + 61 8
9420 0222.

For previous Open Briefings with Emeco or to receive future Open Briefings by e-
mail, please visit www.comporatefile.com.au.

DISCLAIMER: Corporate File Pty Ltd has taken reasonable care in publishing the information contained in this Open Briefing®.
t is infarmation given in a summary form and does not purport to be complete, The information contained is not intended ta be
used as the basis for making any investment decision and you are solely respansible for any use you choose to make of the
information. We strangly adviss that you seek independent professional advice befora making any investment decisions.
Corporate File Pty Lid is not responsible for any consequences of the use you make of the information, including any loss or
damage you or a third party might suffer as a result of that use.




ASX

Facsimile AUSTRALIAN SECURITIES EXCHANGE

To Company Secretary

Company EMECO HOLDINGS LIMITED

Fax number 0893211366

From ASX Limited — Company Announcements Cffice

Date 26-Aug-2008

Time 09:52:45

Subject Confirmation Of Receipt And Release Of Announcement

Number of pages 1 only

MESSAGE:

We confirm the receipt and release to the market of an anncuncement regarding:

2008 full year results presentation

ASX Limited
ABN 938 008 524 691
20 Bridge Street

Sydney NSW 2000

PO Box H224

Australia Square

NSW 1215

Telephone 61 2 9227 0334

Facsimile:

Austrafia: 1300 135 638

New Zealand: 0800 449 707

international: 61 2 9347 0005
612 9778 0999

WWW.3SX.Com.au
DX 10427 Stock Exchange Sydney

6lite]
Mol Disgens
Sadtion vg

AUG 7 & Fomn

Washingion, GC
70D

52 B8 o3
= % 71
-
=3 E-}
[ N H "1
=% U m
e O
(_: - (o]

(W]

IfASX considers an announcement to ba sensitive, trading wrill be hatted for 10 mimutes.

if your ennouncement is chssfied by ASX as sensitive, your company’s securities will be placed into *pre-open” status on ASX's frading syst=m. This means that
trading in your company's securities is tamporarily stopped, to allow the market ime to assess the contents of your amouncement. "Pre-open” is approximataly

10 minutes for mest amouncaments but can be 50 minutes (approximately) for takeover announcements.

Once *pre-open” period is completed, L1l trading of the comparny’s securities recommances.




LUOIRIUDSO1d S NS9Y 1eaA [INn4 8007
paywi] sbuipjoy odsw3

8 "ON 8114 uopdwax3




Z abey
-DUWEWQ

1 —1

‘Pl8Y Apuaiing senunoas Aue uejal 0} Jo pi SBuIpjoH 008w Ul S8nUN0as Joj 8qLIsqns
10 8seyaind 0} uolepuUSWIIODa] 10 JBY0 U Jou SI Uoijejussald siy) ul uojewlojul ayy e

‘uonejuasald siyj woyy
pajiwo 10 Ui paulejuod BulyiAue uo adsuel(al Jo jo asn ay} ybnoiyj uosiad Aue Aq paiayns
aq Aew yoiym abewep 1o sso| Aue 10} Ajigel| wiejosip syuabe pue seakojdws ‘s1sd1yo
's10108.1p S ‘p1 sbuipjoH 028w ‘me| Aq pajiuiiad Jus)xs wnwixew ay} o] “Ajeucieussjul
pue eljel)sny Ul Yjog ‘Suoijipuod jaxew |eloueul) pue 21woucds [essusb pue suoienjony
aoud ‘uonizadwod Aisnpul ‘wswdinba Buinowypes Aaeay Jo jejual sy buipiebas
saoualajald Jawojsnd Buibueys ‘S10joas UONONIISUOD JIAID pue Buiuiw ay} Ul paAow yues
JO BWIN[OA JO} puewap 8y} ul $abueyo 0] pajii] Jou aie Jng ‘apnjoul Sa2UBISWNII 8say |
‘sjuswse)s Hunjoo| piemio) assy) ul paljduwi 10 passaldxa synsal ay) wolj Apuesyubis Jsyip
0] S}jnsal [enjoe asned pinod Yoiym seauejswnol jo abuel e Aq paroaye aq Aew paseq a.e
Aay} yaiym uodn suondwnsse ay) pue SaAjaswIay) SjuUsWaels ay) ‘suondwnsse a|qeuoseal
UO paseq 8q 0] PaJapISucd ale Sjuswalels 9say} IS|IUM “SBIUIBHaouUn pue SJojoe)

ysu Jo abuel e 0] 108lgns ale ey} sjuswale)s buyoo| plemio;) uiejuod Aew uolejussaid siy| e

pwiepsiq

Z9 "ON {14 uopdwaxy




£ abed
DU@EW@

Xipuaddy ‘¢
aoueping 'y
joopnQ odlbslens ¢
sjeloueul{ -z
siybiubiH "L

epuaby

£-28 'ON 3)14 uopdwaxg



1 abey
@ xey jsod wiz$ pue kepaid we'zg jo sway ueagubis Buproy| !

BJON

C

1apes| Asnpul ue aq o)
AALS 003W T Se wa)sAs Juswabeuew JuawuoIAug pue yiesH ‘A18jeS uo Snooj psnuijuo) ¢

1VdN J0 %zt Buussaidal
'sdo Gy Jo puspIAIp payueuy Alny Jeak |In4—paiejoap sdo Gz Jo pusplalp payueyj Alinj jeul4 ¢

dod 9,0°6 JO MOJ} yseo 88y} ul ymolb B (yseo 'xa) wepy$ 4o jeydes
BuiyJom ul suoionpal goHZ 0} paInguiucd Juswabeuew [ejided Jualdlys uc snaoj panuiuo)

WwOEas 03 WG| G4 Wouy SaNIoe) 1gap Joluas jo Bulpueulal |njssaaong

Q0HZ Ul epeuBR) ¥ SN ‘BISBUOpPU| Ui SjuswaAoldwi aduewiopad ssauisng jeuorjeussiy
(80HL U0 %¢'8L+ Kq paseasdur ¥1¥dN 80H2) ,W9'89$ 0} %) Z| Aq pasealoap VivdN
(80HL U0 %¥"Lg+ Aq pasealoul 1 YdN 80HZ) WG /9% 0} %9'6 AQ Pasealosp | YdN
we'0zL$ 0} %9 Aq pasealdsp v1ig3

WG'ELe$ 0 %0°€ Aq paseasoul yaLig3
we 219$ 0} 2002 U0 %t | | Aq pasealoul senusasl Bulelado

A A A A A A A o

mainIano Jeak In4—siubiubiy 800z

"8 'ON 3ji4 uopdwax3g




¢ afied

OJVIUI=
‘ ! %41 %L¥ %L1 %601 Y1VdN
%601 %SEL %Z'LL %90L 1¥dN
%561 FYAYA %26} %Z 6l v1lg93
%S'vE %b'LE %8've %2 ve valiga
5719 s L62E 882 {Wgy) anuansy
BOAA L0Ad 80H¢ BOHL
Syuow 7L 01 Syjuow g
« £ 2» 2 2 § § & o & % <
& g £ & & 3 % % & & % 0§
% 59 saaneniul yuswabeuew jendes
pue uonesiinn aybiy jo uoneuiguiod
% 0L ybnosyy goHz u1 s340Y buinosdw) <
QuunAq
"s q0Hz ul 9jgeloid buiwosaq ssauisnq N <
Ajeqolb sassauisng jje
% 08 ssosde uonestjnn ui yamolb goHz buons <
onien $ A sassauisng aloysyo jo aseyd dn-pess pue
% S8

SUOIIIPUOJ JAYIBaM JIBNAS ‘SHI3u3[Noq
aimanaqseul £q padajje goHL
uonesijin jejual |eqo|9 Bunuioddesip e paisenuod goHZ aMHSOd <

(9) wonestin

sanjey om) Jo aje]—swybiybiy 800z

2@ 'ON 8|14 uopdwexy



g ebeqd

m @ usadong wg'L gy pue sHed S0 Wi 'L §Y O uUMOpSIUM B 0} Bugera) ‘veg j90d Ww'gsy O SWay syads ald it

810N

L

safiunyoddo
uo asieydes 0] paysigelse ||sm mou sssuisng

g0HZ Ubnosy) azis Jybu o} paunaul xaded Jayung
g0 aunp anjea Aq uojesiiin %0/ PeASIYIY a|geyjold yD pue €D usAyealq SN

S{aAd) JuaLing Je [eyided Buryiom ploy o} joadx3 -
Sa|qeAld .

[GEeAIS93) Spel} Ul asealdul wzz$ 90-5UnF 0] wogs

Kiojuaaur k| pue Aiauiyoejy Ul suoponpal wl ¢«  (4SED "X8) Wk Jo uononpaliaN uoionpal ejdes Bupjiop

80 8unr* ie %9/ 9} L0980
1e 9,99 woy paseasaul {anjea Aq) uonesi|in [eqojO

QOH | U1 Sjusas Jayleu
wia} Hoys Aq payedw Ajuewud )nsa) Jesk |ng (WG 69$) WG /99 WZ/$-98 1V

JUaWLLI0) ynsay a|qesanjag

Jnsal Jeak jjey ayl 1e paiuapl sajqelanljap 1axlew Aay

sajqelanijap Ay —swbnubiy 800z

8 ‘ON 3j|4 uopdwaxsg




1 afied
-DU@EW@

Xipuaddy
aouepIng)
300N dibsjeNS
sjeloueul{ -

syybijubIH

- &N M <t W0

epuaby

} "ON 2li4 uondwaxg



,DUNENAV

g ebag
pauad jey) ssao paiojdwa
spun) eGelase AqQ papinip w1183 Gugio sypuow xis pus anjam) eapadsal uo paleina|ea 81 JJ0M WL 1824 JIBH puB Jeaj (N4 Z
adoin3 up jqap jnPgnop Joj uoisiaoid e

-

jiey uo jjey Asano2al buong

uonesijnn 01 suondnisip
80HL Jo aAnd3)a1 auIjdap
340y wanbasuod pue uibley

g0HL Aq pajoedun
Ajabue| sbujuiea gop4

saAnenul
Juawabeuew pue suopuod
Butaosdwn Bundayjal

pue Aojusau sped S BulAow majs Jo umopelum e o) Bunejay xe) 1sod wze pus ¥y ed wy'gg Jo sway ayweds apnpu| sbuiwsel ‘1
] RN
T k
%0PL  %ELlL \ I %lPL %eEl 2 (%) 340
|
L' 8'Zv8 £28L ' 8- m 8'Zvs 8'0.8 peAojdw3 spuny
I
i
R
9'8Z Sy §'e ‘o'z | ST 02 (sd2) sda
\ |
(9°6) L0l 8Lt ‘622 , 6§ 8y (sdd) sd3
" |
L [}
(9°6} §'19 L've 712 ! 0Le 508 , LVdN
(1zL) 9'89 1'8L | €81 Im r A 2155 , VLVdN
[}
56l 2€Z ! _" 164 Z'64 (%) uibsew
1
(v'9) €0zl - 4:74 'VLL 0 69 'S , v1i83
f ]
5vE vLE u . 8'vE Zve (%) uibrew
i
0'¢ S'€Le £202 mmdr 5 41 9'86 , valga
1
an 6219 ' $SS Ray A-14> 2'88¢ anusanay
(%) A 800ZAd  200ZAd ! (%) uy , 8g-unr  1g-38Q wev
abueysn syjuow g1 1 affueyy, 0} syjuow g
! I

ON 3jl4 uopdwexg

sBbuiuiea Arewwng




¢ 9bed
,DUWEWAV

C 1

60A4 W suibiew anosdwi o3 paroadxa
aInjonns 1509 aqels yum uonesinn buioidwy <

¢ u buipooyy pSNpue . & s S 0N 0 o .
P10 Aq paroedun Kjabiej elensny ul suibsew goHZ <

BOHZ
BOHL
L0HZ
LOHL
90HZ
90HL
SOHZ
S0HL

%00
- %05

leab dNO¥D—  |BuOjeWSl —  eleqsny —
1J0 piej uo sabieyd Jnoy WNWIUIW Jo 3AI133|)0. - %00l

uonnguIuod uonenaldap aanepas jueaiiubls < L %0°S1

%L'6L %2 6L
suonesado -

SJawolsna ojul uonjesbisyul g16arens ing ‘suiblew
13MO] 1@ S3JIALAS |elual AJejiIoue Ul 3sealdu] <

- %002

- %0'S2

r %0'0€

S1S09 pasealdul sey
AINONNSEAHUI SSAUISNQ Ul JUBLLISAAUI pUB IMOI) ¢ %0'sE

anuanay Jo %
$10}38) 19)JeW )
W) Hoys 0} anp paidadxa uey) ajel JOMo|S BNUBASY JO % YLIF3
218 INq 80A4 Ul %p'LL Kq Pasealdul anuanay ¢

suibiew uo sn2o4{

 'ON 814 uopdwaxg



01 afiag
oosaw3x
xe] aud wy Z¢ Jo swajl JyKads sapnu] g

TN

vSOd R aoueuAuIRW ¥ Sed O saes O feway [
s 3823838 2383233
8 S 8 8 R 8 g 2 8 8 B 8
0 0
(wg'1$v)
adoun3 ui1qap npgnop 001
J1oj uoisiaoid pue (wi1$y) . i .
f10juaaun spued jo umop . e * 00z
-ajiim SN Aq peroedunl Sem gOHZ ¢ . pe | 08 R %1
Ly
ajp1 bulaq andsap ¢ . 008
sabieyd oy wnwjuiw 0} anp . &
anuanal 0] uonerdaidap JaybiH < 9 ce 00y
3j2£2 jesodsip jued |ejual 00l et
J0 ued w0y 0] SANUNUOI YSOd ¢ 68 005
jopow 023w3 o - -
wawidwos Ajjexbalens sued - | | V58 009
pue sajes 1S)Iym Jaaup sbuiuies 62l 929
3109 SUIBWAI SSAUISNQ jeIud
. ISNQ [eludy < V193 anusAay

uomisodwod sbuiuiey

8 "'ON 9||4 uondwax3




1} afed

no u m E m 1G8p ;yanap Joj uoisinord ueadaung wy'| $y pue Asousaul sped S Buinow mofs Jo W | $y jo usmop aum B o) Buieres ey jsod wZeY o swaY aypads ‘I
:8)oN
1vdN 1VdN
80Ad Xe| Jsalalu| uoyesipowy ySOd  adoing ¥SN  epeue)  elssuopu) elensny  JOAd
09
P sway ayi0adg !
()
. 69
619 (¢2)
- d (1)) _
- " ay (672) g
€2 KT "
(1)
Ll .
sjyoid jesodsip 198y [ejual Sj08)8Y Ly
6l

dod 1eak |n) abpuq sbuiule

Z9 'ON 8[14 uopdwax3y



AR

- u " m r r- m @ 195p Ianep Joj umsaosd uaadoms wg| §y pue Aajuary) sped ) BuiAoW Majs JO wi | $Y JO umop alim e o) Bupe;a) ‘¥el1sod wQ'zsy Jo sway ayads gl

‘BION

{ - |

wey

1¥dN 1VdN
80HZ Xe| Jsassly| uonesipowy  YSOd adoin3 vsn epeue) EISAUOpu| eleNsnyY  GOHi
114
{sway ooeds} G08
ﬁ 0¢
(9°¢) [
0}  (1¢) poemm=ny Lo 9y g€
T 81 , 9
O.N+ [ I, S | ﬁmov A O _‘
gy
— ] ov
6t
1'G
80 JINsa) goH | Jo awn e
v/ 1eab |ejual pakojdapal jo ajes 41

paAejap 8y} uo pajusILIo?)

adoun3 buieq a1ydesboab jje ssosoe JuawaAoidwi [eLIBR

Jjey uo jjey abpuq sbuiusey

8 ‘ON 3|4 uojdwax3y




¢| abey
-o u m E m @ 1980 18N 559] 'Wag Jo Aljioe) ased| saveud Bunsixa snid ‘Aoey jqap J0uag WGRSE SSpRRU! WooJpeay saijijioe) g sunp i

£
yser) $59] ‘saljjiqe)| sasea) asueuld snjd 'jgap JOIUSS SB PSJEINOED 199( JaN A
MO[3q 3un) uo pajuasald Aicjuaaul SHEY puE sajes sepnjoxe [ejided Buniom 1
[ ¥ “STI0N
sajel a|piny juawAhojdep
jendes abuins asow ‘yuswabeuew
jendes Bunyiom ybnosy
S3IJUBIDIYJD 193YS 3duejeq UO SNI04 ¢ L'6 G'6 1L {(1sa18)ul/yaL1g3) 19A02 JS3IYU|
%LBY  %9LS  %YSY (Aunba yoogaqap j8u) 9 Buuess
S|euswiepuny 193ys aouejeq %EBY  %YE  %9LE (dea joxnJewnqap jau) % Buuesg
Buons sajensuowap JOA0I 1Sl
%L°2ZS1 - . ) wooipeay sail
Buons pue buueab aaneasasuoy ¢ % LKL L > peot onhioRd
%@hl-  P8YE  TG6E  L'SOE 199p 19N
sdqog| Aj1ewixoidde aseassu ez Lo, 8589 6249 S10SSE 1ON
01 Pa103dxa aleJ 1Sa43)Ul SAIIAYI %12 0Z9L'L TT6L'L 1'680°L sjosse |2j0L
S]o)Jew )Ipasd 9sIaApe 01 an(Q ¢ %l 1’826 019§ 202G el [ejuay
IS %aC 8¢- 1 214" 1202 L'evrl Aojuaaul sued pue ssjeg
1198y %LEL  €80L 856 ZTOL , [endeo Bupiop
101Uds 13k ¢ wees$ bulpnjoul (%)M go-unr  10-28Q l0-unp wgy

wog9$ 01 wsLss wouy Aypoey 1gap abueyo

jueq 101uas pasueulydl A|NjssadoNg ¢

fuiepas Buipuny sapiaoad Kipiaey 1qap Jowuas jo buizisdn pue Buroueulyal nyssadong

Buiieab pue 199ys ajuejeg

g "ON a]14 uondwaxgy



v1 ebeg

-OUm.Em.AV

ymo.b

ssauisnq andsap oA 4 Ul JueISUOD

ujewsa. 0} pajabie) go aunr og 1e .

we'goLs Jo [ende) bunpiopy jessusn <
asuewouad suim vsz| (0°€) 1)

¥201s 01123lgns e'd 96 1e moib o) — - (c60) 562

padadxa Alojuanul sed pue sajes < L0 _

wawabeuew A 6/Z
sa|qeAdsas anoadusi o0} saimunuoddo
ing Auanae go vy Buons 562
yum aul-u Aisow S3jqen1adds —
apeJ) pua Jeak ul 9sealou wz'gzs < "

S|9Ad| JU3WISaAUI 5044 | sle
|€31101S1Y Ylm 3uij-ul mou ul juswabeuew

saulyoew sajeg ui uondnNpal wWe'gse <« 8]qeA197a1 uo 272
$NJ0j Jayun —

go-unp
sa|qefed
Aojuaau Jsui0
salh]
sped
SAUIYIBW SB[ES
$3|qBAI9084 apel |
Used
£0-9eQ

wey

S6¢

gee

pJemio Buiob paurejuiew aq o} [euded Bupjiom ur uonanpal uedipubig

ey uo jjey) abpuq jended bunpopy

E-Z8 'ON 214 uohdwex3



51 efied
- D u m cr- m 0 wawdinba Aipuns pue sBulping pue pue| 'saalyaA 10jow o xaded asueuuey 7

saouaiayp Bunwn ou Bununsse ‘sjuawysnipe ewlo} 01d Uo Juawisnipe xe) ewio) oid $108)91 xe) 10 °|
:SION

[ —1

340y =23ueyua (z'z9) (992) Papuny MOjYSED a3l

01 xadea yimoub Bunsaau 1sjIym 6o A 4 o) (£°901) papuny 1ge@

ui eydes pajsaaus Buiisixa uo suinial P xodes oIy

Jo1ealb bunoenxa uo snaoy Klewnd ¢

ywolb ainny puny 01 wooipeay 1gap 729 99, Yimo19 210j2q MOJSED 3214

a|qe|ieAe yuim 1ay1obol mojjyses aal{ e c'8z) (€'9) spusping

m—._“_.: ow o6 628 mopyse) aalg

71 1Se] JAAO pajsanul xaded woly gev el sfesodeia

pajoadxa mopyses aayy ut ymoib oAy ¢ o5 W 0D el 220

{696} {ze9) fjuay

ssauisng sn :xades aoueuajuiely

pue epeue?) jo Buieas o1 sjqeinquiie p— po S —

Ajabie] goA4 ul xadea yumos ¢ o o= L

awn Jano uoneidaidap spiemo) £22) ree) saseu|

puaJ) pinoys nq Adwnj sineylano (92) 08 YO/

Jofew 3 Juswaoe|dal wawdinba 1) (0'08) leydea Bupyiom

Buisuidwos xaded asueudjuiew 19N < §ELz £ 102 vaLig3

mopysed bunesado jueanyubis S0A1 LOA wsv
a1eJ3uab 0) sanuUOI 0%83WT ¢ o

mol yses Bunesadp

8 "ON 3]!4 uopdwex3




n 9, ebied
SYILOLW anam] JaY] Jao pakojdwa spuny eBesane AQ pepp YO LIBLY1IG3 Buillo: SYuow BAjaM) 1SB] SY) S8 paulap St 404 W11 L

BJoN

L 1

go-unr
80-Aen
80~dy

80-EW
80-G94
g0-uer
1009
10-hON
L0P0
10-deg
Lo-Bny
Linr

. %0l
60A4 U1 paydadxa 340y N1 duljpeay uy w2l
puan psemdn yum punoleusn) aamsod %o} -
lealpul gOHZ Ul S340Y wisl ;BUoYS ¢ WM "™
%Ll o
pasijeal %3l
bulaq mou >o:o_u_=w J93ys aduejeq 340 vLIg3 3404 V1163 3404 V1183 %0z
P g Yoo g— Bz —
pue Juawko|dap jeuded ‘jendes Bunjiom 3404
uo snJ0j pamaual ybnoayl pansiyoe 3403 VL1183 wie) Joys
akojdwa spunj Jaued| Jo SHjouUdyg <
PRTOICHD Spun) JDHERI B SS9 s ERYSEISsEELEERE LIRS
QQIN =_ m_ﬂﬂcmsm_u_h:..— . £ 9 8 2 3 2 &K g R EER 2 8 "
1axysew Buinoidwi pue uonesynn aybiy N : : Il ;_ ; __ _ ___: I H w
Kq pasuapiaa suolbal |{e $S0J3e G0A4 oo | FHHL |11 Il | e
o paoadxe swawanosdw sbuiuiey ¢ ?;P;i 4 o
sjana| A1ojuaauy 002 e
m&_mm b am&_“_ _Sco._ ul _._tsc._m pue 052 % 340d ¥OLliE3 — % 340Y vilga— %0F
$9SS3UISN( 310YsHo Jo dn dwel ‘sluana WSV g udoq Dugos Wy e Ws V1183 601 i == 3404
19)Jew W9) Moys 01 anp sauljasp 3408 ¢ 3408 W11

pafkojdwa spunj uo wINRY

8 "ON 8j14 uopdwexg




1| afigg
,DUNEWQ

Xipuaddy g
aoueping  °y
yoojinQ Jibajens ¢
_ sleloueuly °Z
SIybIUbIH "1

epuaby

'8 "ON 2|l uondwexy




g| afied

o u m E m QIsauUopU| Jo JgNday — SFUNOSIY [Blouly pue ABieu3 jo Asiuy
- (200z aunp) poday uoisuedxg auljadid puB 1BYIBI 1SEI3I04 (1O 6PNID S130NPAd Whajallad Jo LORBID0ssY uBipeur] {ddv2)

('1ea2 @qea|es Jo vopanpad |B1a) sjuUssaldal B2 vRIBNSNY) '§00Z YIBW — YOORNO Apowwo?) JYyay Punes

| — |

a0z 002 8002 9002 POOC 2002 9002 (1% 002 dJeL02 JLioe 46002 £002 <002
mE EE— B EE RN T 0 o coot
3
L ooa £ F 0SZ4
m ool
Sulu m o [ 0051
toode B =
misa m B F0GLL N_
w 05
000E 3 %Ll - ¥OVD) %S -HOVD |
= - L 0002
%0l - YOVD o L |
- ooor < 0 - 052z
spueg iz
1O uelpeues) |eon ueisauopu| uejjeisny
4€102 41102 46002 1002 5002 12102 40102 8002 5002 45102 41102 46002 1002 G002
_H_ 002 002 M T 002
: - 052
- 052
- 00g
i [ 05¢ - 00¢
05 o =
3 m =1
- 00F | - 0S¢
T - ogp = 7..  00¢ L]
] %01 — HOVI %E — YOVD %I=UOVD | 5op
- 005
L 0gg - 0G¥
alQ uoJ| uejjelysny ploc) uejensny lea) ueljensny

LWI9] wnpaw
ay) Jano eyd o401—-¢ uaamiaq e buimolb snunuoa o} 1seI310§ 3JE Sl lew frewnd s,000w3

samunuoddo ymoib ouebig

7@ "ON 2)14 uondwex3




61 ebed
,OUUENAV

1 — ]
| — d

wia) Yoys u anoidwi 0} papadxa jng jey uiewal sjexyiew seb pue |0 -
Buusyo aaA19s anbiun §,003w3 pasa)s|oq sey Alijioe) aoUBUUIBW MON -
paysiqelsa ||oam mou uoibal ul Aynba puelqoddwy .

BIqUIN|0Y) ysiug ul saiiunpoddo mau juasald 0} anuuUOD SaUIW SNOUBJIEIBN -

wawdinba 10} puewap Buisealdul 81NjoNIiselul pajeldosse pue Ayaioe Buluiw spues |0 - epeues

sanunpuoddo jeuonippe juesyiubis Buneass ‘uony o} Bullod sposfoid mau snoJaWNN - -

9,06 ar0qe
SUONESI|IIN [E2U0}SIY O} UIN}al §,008W3 BulALIp S| SIBUIL J0BIUOD UBlfelISNY JO Juawabebus-ay -

saoud saybiy Jo ¥oeq ayj uo uononpold [eod JaybiH . eIS3UOPU|

awi) awos axyey o} payoadxe ybnoy) ssaibosd yosuspoq-ap anponyseyu) -
a1nug) JoBJU0d JaBuo| pue suonesiin 1aybly Buiaup sijuswdinba mau jo Ajiqejieae pajw) .

uonesiyn 193); Buons o} Bunje|suel) aie sjadIew pjob pue al0 uoll ‘[eod ul ymolb panuguod - eljenSnY

60A4 ojul Buipeay BuoJys ulewal wnjusawow sbujulea pue JOORNO S,038W3

SUOI}PUO0? 19)Jew jualing

’8 ON 8}i4 uopdwax3g



(¢ efad
.OUWEWQ

BISSNY pue
1Seq S|ppIW Ul [enuajod pue suolipuod J1Wou09a BuiAcidwl 10} $S3UIPED] U pauIBjulEW SSauisng -

0dN3 Buons Aq papoddns auoz oung ol juawdinba jo uojepodw| -

saiunpoddo Buipes; papw) ypm ymolb oiwouoda yos Buimoys adoing uisisapy adoing

aasod Aan saqunuoddo uawsainooid fBAemoy ‘passalidap sulewal ssauIsng sgjeg -
anjea BuuaAljap s| ssauIsng sped ul Ayoedeos pasealou] -
sanunpoddo uo asiended o) paysI|qelsa ||]aM MOU aInjonsjseljut ssauisng gn -

Aynjoe paseasou; o) bueisuel syjuow xis jsed 180 94,00| paseasoul aney ssolid [Bod uelyoeeddy  « | sayeyg papun

60A4 0w buipeay buons ulewas wmuawow sbuiuiea pue J00[INo S,009WJ

SUONIPUOI 19yJewl JUaLIn)

-Z8 ON 3j!4 uohdwax3



12 8fed
,DUWEWQ

L ]

199]} {elUs! U0 suinial pue |epded Bupjiom Jo Juawabeuew uo snooy ypm Asuallye
[eydes aaoldwil 0} SNO0) pamaual B §I alay] paulesjsuod Ajbuiseasoul Bulwooaq jended yuipy ¢

aulpdiasip 19ays aouejeg

passau)im Butaq sjaas) uoijesiun
21I0}SIY O} LIN}3J B YIM 1SNQOJ Suielal SPUes |io pue 810 uoll ‘|eod ul AyAloe Buluiw [eqojs) e

Buliayo [ejuss 008w JO S|aA8| Alinbus Jaybiy ojul ajejsuel; o)
pajoadxa sI S1awo)sna Ino Joj siayiew Ajnba pue jgap wouy saainos Bulpuny jo Ajuleyasun e

S|oA8] 1IOJSIY O} uolesI|iin /340y Buluinial pue sje)ew
pue suolbal Bunsixa 008w 40 (|e ul saijiunyoddo ymoib auebio Buialp uo snooj oibejens <

ymosb Jibarensg

}00JIno J1baens

28 "ON 9Ji4 uopdwax3y

R R RS




z¢ abed
-DUWEWAV

{ |

sjeyew Buibisws a10|dxa pue suoifial ssoloe Juswdinba sjeaojal 0] Jsixa ssunpoddp  —
Apgepsoid pue ymolb salsod sjeljsuowap sassauIsng SN pue epeue)  —
by awi} [|e Je Sajel uoes)|in eISBUOPU|]  —
sjeyJew [euoljeusajul Jolew ul ssew [eo)UO dojsAsp 0] anuijuo) ¢
sJ0)oB) apIs puewsp pue Alddns o} anp ymwoib panuiuod Bunoadxs sessauisng eljelisny ¢
suoibai bunsixg

sanunuoddo ymolb
oiba)el}s Buinsind jsjiym ssauisng buysixe Jo uonesiwndo oyl Bunejsuel; si (jeuonesado
pue aAlIndaxa) Ayjqeded pue yjdep wes) juswabeuew Jo juswdoasp buiocbup ¢

wes) Juswabeuew jasse pue uawaindold [eqolb Jo Juswaoueyuy ¢

$985820.d
pue SWa)sAs 035W3 JO UolesIpiepue)s pue syun ssauisng |eqolb jo uonelbsjul panujuon 4

sanjiqedes jeuonesiueblip

yoopno oibajens

] "ON 314 uopdwaxy



£z abegd
,DU@EWQ

Xipuaddy
ajueping
300N dlbsjens
s|eloueul

spybIybIH

— &N M = w0

epuaby

£-Z8 "ON 9ji4 vopdwax3



vz 8beg
oosausy @

SjaAs| [ea1I0ISIY pJemo) yoeq 340y dnoib Buliojsal pue Aousiolye
jendes Buinoidwi uo pasnooy ulews) Juswabeuew ‘ymwolb Jjoud Jseasio) o) uolippe U] ¢

uoljiw 18§ - G£$ 12 19S S1 (1¥dN) 60A4 4o 3duepinb Jjoud Ynsare sy ¢
60A4 Ul Spjoud Joedwi Ajesioape jim (sdqog | '0) S1500 Buimolloq ul asessoul juedyiubisy ¢

6002 A4 10} YOO[IN0 8y} Ul Juapluod ulewa) juswabeuew ‘sainsodxs bunesado s,008wW3
JO UyoB3 U] %00jIN0 1snqos Buinunuod e pue 09aw3 1o} A18A0081 gOHZ Buoys e Buimojjod <

aouepino

8 ‘ON 8|14 uondwax3y



gz abey

Xipuaddy g
aoueping 'y
joopnQ dlbslens ¢
sleloueul{ ¢
S)ubybIH )

 "ON 8|14 uopdwex3

epuaby




oz obeg
o u m E m wedoged 10ew e $) Avedwco
- abiie| @ 9J3UM SAIBICOSSE JO SaINJUIA O] Jo ‘'uolng | § vey) Jajesib vonesendes jayew e ypm ssedwes se pavyap S Jawoisng afie v 'z

S0A4 10) anuaass uo paseq sabejuaniad ‘|

_ — :SO10N
YOO J0JRNUON T AU O 13pUlBWSY W 0z~ 11 dog O U0l a0 ol m nom
[E301 |lews abien 0L-9dol O gdoy O
%0 uzC  peoO (2030
%02
%L} %6l %6C
b %61
9
%09
g,
%08 s %G
0
g %62 Ll
%00} -
Jowo}snd JO 8dA} [ejusy a|yoid Juald [ejusy ainsodxa JoyJew pus [ejusy

MOIAJONO—eIjRNISNY

] ‘ON 3|14 uopdwoexg




12 o6ad
...o u m E m {nsuex ul saunoaw BUIpNixa) SBYS JOWALSNA |8 [E1UI U S) 1L} Jeay [eua) 5 0dawT Jo sbkpuaased se pauysp & LoRESIAN 7

senyiqey Buueaq jsalaiu) snid sasse ajquue) jeu sB pauyap st paAoidwa spung ‘|

SN
anjea Aq uoljesin — SPUN AQ Uolesi)) =—— pafoidwsa spund —J
§5538c8fs88c2§88¢8¢
85855285858 5888888¢%88
— [ [ U T N R B | 11 | I 1l [ 1 i I [ | | L1 P11 1l § 1 1 .$O
. 0,
0oL %0k
\m I~ OAUON
2 002 - %0€
L 7 BYIO
.M_uV.v. 00g | ﬁr 1 %0t m
= UL i - %08 § ov 1apei9
£ oov JUL Lo - %09 S 8g JojeAeax3
o | | UL
2 005 [ BUERIEIE - %04 8zl 18pe0
- L 2,08
009 é oo €9 1ez0Q
° 81z XanuL
002 - %001
uoijesin pue pakojdws spun aj1j0Jd aulydeW [ejuay

MAINIONO—eIjeNSNY

 "ON @14 uopdwaxg




gz abeg
o u m E m {ysuen u saurew
i Buipnpxa) $3yis 1BWASNS 18 [EIUS) U0 51 18U} 183y (AU §,00013 [0 abejuediad se paugap $1 UoRBSYIN ¢

saninqey Buueaq 1sasequ snid sjasse ajquBuey jau se pauyap s pakojdwa spuny 'g
9044 10} 8nuaass uo paseq sabieyuaciad °|
'$310N

T —]

6 BYO ¥ Japeo
0z Japeig) ¢ 1920
61 I0)eARIXT 6F ¥an|

ajyoid suiyosew [ejuay

spun Aq uoyesin —— pakodwa spundC—1

mmwm%ﬂmmmwwﬂuwmmwm%w
TeE5855885583858858238% o-gdoi  gdoLD Ropom DL
= P T T %0 pooO  [eonO
- %01 ,
o0z %L\
[ W0E - %L1
[ %or 2 %19
L] u..x.om W.. 0
m.”i.J It L %09 S
! [;[ _ - %0
- - %08
ﬁo\og %8¢
aX_OO—. nxumuw okuo
uorjesiyn pue pakojdwe spun4 a|ljoid jusl|o feluay 18)Jew pus |ejudy

MAIAJANO—BISAUOpU|

8 "ON 8j14 uoRdwax3



62 abed
rD u m E m {ysuen v sauiyaew
Buipnpa) Sayis JSWIoiSND J8 [BTuR) ug §1 18y) Jaa) [ENaI 5,000w3 jo abigjuaatad s pauysp s1 uoesiAn ‘¢

sanqey Bureaq 1sasen snid s1esse ajqbue; jau se pauysp st pakoiduss spund Z
. 90A4 10} anuana) uo paseq sabieuaniag '|

{

:SBJ0N
0t Byl § lapeo
1z 18peio g/ 1az0Q
6¢ J0)eARIX3 0L yoni|

ajljoid sutyorW |EjuSY

anjea Aq uoesnn —— Ssjiun Aq uoiesi —— patojdwa spung ]
5558855538583 838¢c 1opueway M 0Z— L1 dol O Byon [eod O
B2k 5582882885885352%5
~ mmnnmTTTn T T %0 or-9doLO gdoym  segpue|oO Ing a
oz | - %0L
- L o027 %S¢
E ov
< I - %0€ o\omm
B 09 \\\ /r..\_..J ‘ i - %0F <
s o8 | e / V L Bl 4!
% 001 ‘er-ﬁr by - %09 S
S oo | & [ %0
2 o PRt - %08 %L %28 et
) - %06
% %
091 L %00 e ol
uonesijin pue psiojdwsa spun4 ajyoid Jual|o [ejusy ]eyJew pus [ejuay

M3IAIOA0—EpRUR)

 "ON 9()4 uondwaxsy



o¢ afied

D u m E w yduib S Ul pASIEWIOY UBBY $BY YIn KIOJUaALY SUeg Buinow MOjs J0 UMOP-alum Wy |$ SSpNidul V1163 8070 b
- (1Sues ur sauyews Bupnioxa) Sals JaWOISNO je |BUA UD S| jeu} 1aal) [E1U3) 5008w Jo sbeusosed se paulep & uoTes|N ¢
sanqige) Buueaq jsalai snid gasse sjgibuey 18U $8 Pauysp S| pakoidwa spun. 2

B0A Joj BNuBAs) uo paseq safieuaasad '}

_ 1 SA10N
0008Y
r (pos'e)
[ {000'2)
 (oos1) ¢ B0 6l 19peoT
(oot ¢ Japessy g| 1820Q
[+ ] I {oos)
o ® c L 9 JojeARIX] 67 ¥oni)
L]
o5 a|ljoid aulyoeW [BjuUSY
- 0001
yUOHN|OAB Y] |94 80Ad
0L—-9doy0 gdol O ByioC [eoy O
anjea Ag uonesiyn—— spun Ag ucnesii —— pafojdwa spund ] %9 -
e FEs3¢:555sg:5FsFf:
< wwwwmwwwm%%%wwwmmfo
g O : : _ : z : :::Ez:_[ %0Z
e %y =
§ O i %09 o
w Ov =
° 0S r_ %08 S
2 09 %001
- %¥6 %9
uoljesiin pue pakojdws spun4 ajlj0id 3o [EJUSY 19)JeW pus |ejusy

M3IAIBNO—S()

’8 “ON 8J|4 uondwex3




| ¢ afieg
) m @ saniqer Buuesq jsaseju snid sjasse sjqibue) jau se pauyap s paiojdwa spung -|

BON

pakojdwa spun4 3
e g e egyg e
2225855352353
gon ?
g
Ly
121 .Saulyoew sa|es Jo JaquinnN 1 ol m:
8 .Saulyoew |ejusl JO JOqUINN - gl “W
LY a
| QNM
] S g
e I R L 6z
0g

paAojdwa spun4

MIINIDN0—ad0IN]

"ON 3]|4 uondwax3y



,DUWENQ

2¢ ofiad

pakojduwsa spuny pajeacjeun;3jeiodiod sepnpxg ‘¢

sjesodsip 10 aunipuadyxa fendes Jaylo Aue apnpu jou sa0¢] “suoisinbae pue jasy |ea) uo Buipuads ssoug) 7

= — B0 01d 20A4 PUB 90AS ')
S3)oN
EEL Lzl ¥ 13 0L 65 8l vz - - - - [q%4 Zsl 161 soUjyIEW sejeg
2 9 - 72 i - Lz 182 661 621 oLl gvl z95 £55 69% sauysew |ejuey
¥z e £ 5 8¢ 1 6LL 604 2] o2 z9 69 69¢ (444 99¢ pu3 je pakodwa spung
2’9 g - Fa AR v+ A Lge r444 0'L6 Loy o1z g6b 918 0L 6l9L Ier0L
g0l g zsr - - FatY - - 6'12 Z'sE suaisinboy
r9 - - 1'zz 9L - 9zt TYe Lop ] val vae ziz 0z £sot Ummos)
- - 9z - - 55 0oL 9z ove [+ (A1 vrs i'ge ¥iZ FIUBUIUIEW jEIUTY
xadey ssoin
%ie'e) %0 %igzr)  %ke) %G9 %L %00 %098 %OLE %60r %.I8C %6y %82 %GST %0€Z (%) uibieu
ey 00 (go 0+ (&2 S0 §'Gl £yl g 26 g0l Lel $00L 9901 049 via3
%St} % - wezvl) W% %@y %9¢ %LES %SY9C %BOIS %8I %GE. %0¥, %L %ESC %09 (o) uibirew
(90 - (s'0) oy &) 80 842 Gz ovl g8l 91z Zve gagL 1S9 6v0L valg3
g6E 0EZ €0 ey  ZSr  60e LLg 9'6E ¥iz %ET §12 ree a6y  6'glP  FLBE anuaady

asuewuopad |Bjoueulq

800ZAd L00ZAd 900ZAd 800ZAd LOOZAd 900ZA4  800TAd L00ZAd 900ZAd

adoing 8N EpeuE]

800TAd LOOTAd 900TAd

gjsauopu]

800ZAd  200ZAd 900ZAd

Bliensny

Wigy

uonew.oju

8 'ON 9ji4 uondwex3

| |eIDURUL} |BILIOISIH



